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PROFILE

Lifestyle China Group Limited ("Lifestyle China” or together with its
subsidiaries, the "Group”) is an established operator of department stores
based in the PRC. The Group operates two “lifestyle” department stores
under the brand of Jiuguang in Shanghai and Suzhou respectively, with
middle to upper-end market positioning in the PRC. Shanghai Jiuguang
and Suzhou Jiuguang, which have differentiated themselves with
appealing product and brand portfolios and top-notch one-stop shopping
experiences, are the most sought-after shopping destinations in the
region. The Group's department stores offer a wide variety of goods
catered to customer needs and a pleasant shopping environment. The
Group also operates supermarkets in the PRC. In an effort to diversify its
operations, the Group owns a strategic stake in Beiren Group, a leading
retailer group based in Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province in the PRC.

In light of the large retail market and strong spending power of consumers
in Shanghai, Lifestyle China is in the process of developing a new
commercial complex in Daning, Shanghai (the “Daning Project”), which will
house the Group’s second Jiuguang department store in Shanghai. Upon
commencement of operation, the Daning Project is expected to boost the
Group's market presence and further enhance its brand equity in
Shanghai. With the Group's strong financial position and unparalleled
brand equity, the Group is always prepared to take on new investment
opportunities to facilitate the long-term sustainable growth and looks

forward to generating better returns for shareholders in the long run.
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Corporate Information (continued) &% & ¥ (&)

Head Office and Principal Place
of Business in Hong Kong

20th Floor, East Point Centre
555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Agricultural Bank of China
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Independent Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

Solicitor
Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum

Hong Kong Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Cayman Islands Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House, 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road, P.O. Box 1586
Grand Cayman, KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Share Information

Place of listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock code: 2136

Board lot: 500 shares

Financial year end: 31 December

Closing share price at 31 December 2019: HK$2.40

Market capitalization at 31 December 2019: HK$3,515 million

Website

www.lifestylechina.com.hk
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CHAIRMAN’S : 552
STATEMENT

In 2019, as affected by the protracted Sino-United States trade war, China
recorded 6.1% growth in its gross domestic product growth, the lowest
growth since 1991. In an attempt to cope with the situation, the Chinese
government adopted measures to reduce taxes and fees with an aim to
stimulate domestic demand during the year. However, growth in the retail
sales of consumer goods also saw a slowdown amid weakening consumer
sentiment as a result of economic slowdown. In addition, intensifying
competition from newly opened large shopping malls and the increasing
popularity of on-line channel exert pressure on traditional brick-and-
mortar department store business operations.

To take on the challenges, Lifestyle China Group Limited (together with its
subsidiaries, collectively "Group”) fully leveraged the strength of its
established Jiuguang brand equity, geared its product assortment further
towards its targeted markets for mid-range and high-end goods. With the
Group's effective promotional and marketing efforts, the loss in traffic
footfall at the Group's two department stores to their competitors has
been reduced. The Group also adopted such information system
technologies as mobile internet-enabled application that runs on online
social media platforms as well as carried out digitalized management of
both customer relationships and marketing through collectivized business
management and omni-channel customer relationship management. The
Group also adjusted the proportion of various types of retail operations
and reinforced its operations’ positioning as department stores that offer
mid-range and high-end goods to meet the needs of middle-class families.
These initiatives have helped enhancing customer loyalty and deepening
customers’ engagement with the Group's marketing activities.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group's sales revenue edged
up by 1.7% to RMB1,204.1 million. The businesses operated by the Group
attained stable performance and recorded a slight growth. The two
department stores of Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang, recorded
increase of 6.2% and 4.1% respectively in sales revenue for 2019. The
Group has a strategic investment in Beiren Group, a well-established
Shijiazhuang-based retailer which has a dominant market position and
strong brand equity. Revenue from its main operations remained steady
this year. The Group, however, noted that the guarantor and ultimate
owner of certain trade receivables held by Beiren Group is currently being
detained by the relevant local authority in Hebei province and all the
directly and indirectly controlled companies and assets of the guarantor in
the Hebei province have been seized by the relevant local authority. Beiren
Group has taken legal actions to recover the above-mentioned
outstanding trade receivables. After a conservative assessment, the Group
decided to make a provision for expected credit loss of the above-
mentioned trade receivables, resulting a share of loss from Beiren Group.
The Group recorded a net loss of RMB83.5 million for 2019 (2018: net profit
of RMB338.1 million). The unexpected loss was mainly attributable to the
share of loss from the Beiren Group of RMB294.7 million this year as a
result of the above-mention expected credit loss provision made, whereas
it was a share of profit of RMB204.0 million in 2018. Loss per share for 2019
was RMBO0.057 whereas it was earnings per share of RMB0.222 in 2018. The
board of directors has resolved not to declare any dividend for the year.

Just as the market was expecting a silver lining at the beginning of the year
when the phase one trade deal was reached between China and the United
States at the end of 2019, the novel coronavirus outbreak reported soon
thereafter firstly in China has brought about damages to China’s economy,
infected areas were lockdown and people were discouraged from going out
to prevent the spread of the disease. All these have put a stop to the
economic activities and the impact on retail store’s business is going to be
far-reaching. The Group’s department stores in Shanghai and Suzhou
adjusted their business hours and stepped up hygienic measures to provide
a safe environment for both the employees and customers. Meanwhile, the
Group has been working to offer its business partners relief measures with
an aim to help supporting each other over the difficult times. All this shows
the Group's initiative to cooperate with its business partners and employees
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to overcome the difficult times. The epidemic situation in China has
reportedly become more manageable and somewhat under control in
recent weeks and retail sector has been alleviated since the middle of
March. The retail sector has pinned its hope on the future release of pent-
up demand for a period after the pandemic receded. However, the
epidemic situations in Europe and the United States have been worsening.
It increases the uncertainty on the recovery of retail sector with possibilities
of the disease being brought from foreign countries to China. With the
pandemic causing damage to the economy and dampening the consumer
sentiment, coupled with the uncertainties regarding the upcoming
lingering trade talks between China and the United States, it is difficult for
the Group to predict the performance of the Chinese economy and its
retail market for the rest of 2020.

Putting the economic uncertainties aside, challenges remain unchanged
on the market front, namely the diversifying and rapidly changing
consumption patterns and behavior, especially those of the younger
generation, further exerting pressure on retail business. Nevertheless, the
Group has prepared itself for such challenges by positioning its
department stores to targeting at the middle-class customer group, which
should help enable the Group to stay competitive. Meanwhile, the Group
will utilise the information system for retail management and customer
relationship management in order to providing better product assortment
and customer services as well as deepening customer engagement.

To further enhance its market presence in Shanghai, the Group has been
building its retail and commercial complex in Daning, Jing’an District. With a
gross floor area of approximately 348,300 square metres, the project will
house the Group's second Jiuguang store in the city and other retailing
facilities. The construction work and inspection of the complex will be further
delayed due to the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020 as the recruitment of
tenants and leasing works will be affected. Nevertheless, the Group remains
confident about the project in the medium and long term, and believes that
it will generate considerable returns to the Group in the long run.

The Group will also continue to seek for investment opportunities that can
generate better returns to shareholders and sustain its growth.

On behalf of the board of directors, | would like to express my gratitude to
our management team and our staff for their great efforts and
contributions to the Group's development, especially for their dedication
to their duties despite the additional pressure caused by the epidemic.
Finally, on behalf of the Group, | would also like to thank our customers,
business partners and shareholders for their unswerving support.

Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

23 March 2020
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DISCUSSION AND #3214 1
ANALYSIS

Market Overview

In 2019, China posted the slowest gross domestic product growth since
1991 of 6.1% amid its trade war with the United States. This has dampened
China’s consumer sentiment and resulted in deceleration of the country’s
retail sales growth to 8.0% in 2019 from the 9.0% in 2018. In response to
the economic slowdown, the Chinese government has rolled out a series
of measures and policies which included reducing taxes and fees with an
aim to relieving cost pressure of corporates and stimulating domestic
consumption.

A breakdown of growth in retail sales showed that retail sales for the
department store sector rose by only 1.4% in 2019, down from the 3.2%
growth in 2018. Meanwhile, retail sales growth for the supermarket sector
in 2019 remained resilient and recorded 6.5%, as comparing to 6.8%
growth in 2018.

Competition in the department store and supermarket sectors has been
intensifying as opening of new shopping malls have been continuing. In
addition, the growing popularity of electronic commerce, which is
particularly popular among the younger generation consumers, also posed
a big challenge to operators of conventional brick-and-mortar retailing.
Retailers running physical stores however are fast adapting to this ever-
evolving retail landscape by adopting technologies such as online
shopping platforms, mobile internet-enabled applications and
computerized retail management systems.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 8 5 i & 247 (&) ’ ﬁ i /

Financial Review

The Group managed to deliver stable performance for the year ended 31
December 2019 despite a slowing economy amid the Sino-United States
trade dispute, thanks in part to the government’s measures in reducing
taxes to boosting domestic consumption. With enhanced promotional and
marketing efforts, the Group's two department stores, Shanghai Jiuguang
and Suzhou Jiuguang, both delivered a resilient set of financial results in
2019.

Revenue and Sales Proceeds

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group saw its revenue increase
by 1.7% to RMB1,204.1 million, comparing with RMB1,183.8 million in 2018.
In spite of the lingering China-US trade dispute and a slowing Chinese
economy, the Group remained on a firm footing, underpinned by strong
brand equity and sound business strategies. The Group's two department
stores, Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang, further consolidated
their market positions as one of the most popular mid to high-end
department stores in their respective region during the year. Both stores
managed to record sales growth, thanks to their effective marketing
initiatives and attractive product offerings. With strong sales performance,
cosmetics products remained the main sales growth driver for both stores.
Total sales proceeds of the Group rose 3.2% to RMB3,332.1 million this
year from RMB3,228.7 million in 2018.

Gross Profit and Concessionaire Rate

The Group's gross profit amounted to RMB791.4 million in 2019 and the
gross profit margin as a percentage of total sales proceeds was
approximately 23.8%, comparing with 25.0% in 2018. Meanwhile, gross
profit margin as a percentage of revenue decreased to 65.7%, from 68.3%
in 2018 and average concessionaire rate decreased to approximately
21.6%, from 22.1% recorded in 2018, as a result of intensifying market
competition.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B/ & 24 (&)

Net (Loss)/Profit Attributable to Shareholders

The Group recorded a loss of approximately RMB83.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 as compared to a profit of RMB338.1 million for
2018. The unexpected loss was mainly attributable to the share of loss
from Beiren Group (after non-controlling interests) of RMB294.7 million this
year, whereas it was a share of profit of RMB204.0 million in 2018. The
share of loss from Beiren Group was a result of a share of net expected
credit loss in respect of a trade receivable held by the Beiren Group at the
end of the reporting period, as more fully explained on page 62 to 63
under section “Basis for Qualified Opinion” in the independent auditor’s
report. Excluding the share of results of Beiren Group, the Group would
have reported a profit after tax and non-controlling interest of RMB211.2
million, comparing to RMB134.1 million in 2018. The significant profit
increase was mainly attributable to costs reduction and the receipt of a
refund of withholding tax of RMB40.2 million relating to dividends
distributed in 2017 and 2018 by the subsidiaries.

Selling and Distribution Costs

Aggregate selling and distribution costs of the Group decreased 12.4% to
RMB427.2 million from RMB487.8 million in 2018, which was mainly
attributable to (i) certain lease related expenses being accounted for as
finance costs following adoption of the new accounting standard in
relation to leases; (ii) lower frontline staff expenses, partly a result of
cessation of the Japanese restaurant operation since second half of 2018;
and (iii) lower repair and maintenance and property related expenses. The
Group's aggregate selling and distribution expenses as a percentage of
total sales proceeds decreased to approximately 12.8% in 2019 from 15.1%
in 2018.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s general administrative expenses decreased 7.5% to
approximately RMB145.2 million from RMB157.1 million recorded in 2018.
The decrease was mainly attributable to lower staff costs.

Staff Costs

Staff costs (excluding those of the directors) of the Group decreased 6.1%
to approximately RMB158.4 million during the year under review. The year-
on-year decrease in staff costs was a result of a reduction in the overall
headcounts, as well as reduced staff bonus expenses. The total number of
full-time staff of the Group at the end of 2019 was 1,162 as compared with
1,216 at the end of 2018.

Other Income, Gains and Losses

Other income, gains and losses comprise mainly management fee, credit
card charges and other miscellaneous income received from the counters/
tenants, other sundry income and exchange gain/loss. The increase was
mainly attributable to increase in credit card recharge and other
miscellaneous income from counters/tenants as sales grew, as well as an
increase in exchange gain on the Group's bank balances denominated in
United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar which strengthened against the
RMB during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) &2 B 57 i & 247 (&)

Interest and Investment Income

The interest and investment income from the Group's remained stable at
RMB69.0 million (2018: RMB69.2 million) for the year, which was mainly
arising from the Group’s bank deposits and structured deposits.

Finance Costs

The Group's finance cost consisted mainly of interests incurred on bank
borrowings. The aggregate amount of finance cost and interests incurred,
before capitalization, was approximately RMB136.8 million (2018: RMB77.8
million) for the year under review. The increase when comparing to last
year was mainly due to increase in the total bank borrowings for funding
the Daning project. The finance costs charged to the profit or loss account
amounted to RMB32.6 million (2018: nil), representing the finance charge
arising from the lease liability following adoption of the new accounting
standard in respect of the Group's operating leases.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's adjusted EBITDA for the year increased 12.6% to RMB436.6
million (2018: RMB387.8 million), mainly due to reduction in costs as well as
increase in sales revenue. As at 31 December 2019, the Group's net debt
(defined as cash and cash equivalents less total bank borrowings, amount
due to a non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries and amount due to a
joint venture) amounted to approximately RMB917.3 million, while it was
RMB630.5 million in 2018. The increase in net debt was mainly attributable
to increased bank borrowings for funding the Daning project
development.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
RMB1,585.7 million (31 December 2018: RMB1,536.4 million) as at 31
December 2019, of which RMB19.6 million, denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, was kept in Hong Kong, with the balance being kept in mainland
China of which approximately 6.2% was denominated in United States
dollars and the remaining 93.8% in Renminbi. The increase in cash at banks
as compared to end of 2018 was a result of the Group's net proceed from
disposal of structured deposits amounting to approximately RMB59.9
million.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's secured bank loans amounted to
approximately RMB2,430 million (31 December 2018: RMB2,109 million),
bearing interest calculated with reference to benchmark lending rates of
the People’s Bank of China. As at 31 December 2019, the Group's banking
facilities was fully utilized (31 December 2018: unutilised facilities of
approximately RMB341 million). The Group's debt to equity ratio (defined
as bank borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
Company) was 27.1% as at the end of the year (31 December 2018: 23.3%).
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Foreign Exchange Management

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries operating in
the PRC is Renminbi, in which majority of the Group's transactions are
denominated. As described under the “Liquidity and Financial Resources”
section above, certain portion of the Group’s monetary assets are
denominated in foreign currencies, namely Hong Kong dollar and United
States dollar. Given the fact that majority of the Group's revenue and
expenses as well as borrowings and capital expenditures are denominated
in Renminbi, and the Hong Kong dollar cash balance kept in Hong Kong is
for settling operating expenses outside of mainland China, the Group
currently does not need a comprehensive foreign currency hedging policy.
Management will however monitor the Group's foreign currency exposure
and will consider taking appropriate measures to mitigate any potential
significant foreign currency risks should the need arises.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group's (i) property, plant and
equipment in the PRC at RMB3,045 million (31 December 2018: RMB2,337
million) and (ii) right-of-use in the PRC at RMB1,724 million (31 December
2018: prepaid lease payment in the PRC at RMB1,772 million); and
property under development in the PRC at RMB1,228 million (31
December 2018: RMB1,044 million) were pledged to secure bank loan
facilities of approximately RMB2,430 million (31 December 2018: RMB2,109
million) for the Daning project development.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2019.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
There were no material acquisitions and disposals during the year.
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Review of Operations

To cope with the intensifying competition, the Group leveraged its brand
equity and reinforced the positioning of Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou
Jiuguang towards catering to the middle-to upper-class with mid-range to
high-end products. Product assortment was enriched with more high-end
international brand and quality products. In addition, to adapt to the
changes in consumption patterns and behaviour induced by electronic
commerce, the Group also implemented mobile internet-enabled
applications on handsets and computerized retail management system to
enhance customer engagement. These collective efforts helped achieving
steady business performance for 2019 amid the challenging operating
environment.

Shanghai Jiuguang

Shanghai Jiuguang's sales proceeds recorded an increase of 4.5% in 2019
as the Group geared its product assortment further to cater to the mid-
range and high-end markets. Cosmetic products and accessories, in
particular, achieved remarkable sales performance with sales surged by
13.1%, the highest among all product categories. The store’s average
ticket size increased by 2.5% to RMB448, with the stay-and-buy ratio
remained largely stable at around 37.7%. Nevertheless, keen competition
from neighbouring area has caused the store’s average daily footfall fallen
by 2.0% to around 49,000 visitors. To deepen the engagement with
customers, the store enriched during the year promotional activities and
marketing campaigns for its club members. The average concessionaire
rate collected by the store remained stable at approximately 23.2%,
comparing with 23.4% in 2018.

Suzhou Jiuguang

To provide better services to its customers, which are mainly from the
middle-class group, Suzhou Jiuguang has during the year enriched its
product assortment by adding more higher-end international brands. The
store’s sales proceeds rose by 5.4% this year and the growth was mainly
driven by the sales of cosmetic products and accessories, which jumped
13.9% from last year. On the other hand, other product categories that also
contributed to the store’s sales growth included high-end international
branded fashion and accessories, household and babies’ goods. During
the year, a portion of the supermarket area has been converted for the
operation of food stalls in order to increase the overall sales efficiency. The
store's stay-and-buy ratio saw an increase of 3.1 percentage points to
45.5%, and the average ticket size remained stable at around RMB414.
However, the average daily footfall fell by 2.6% to about 20,000 visitors due
to the competition from a newly opened shopping mall in the
neighbourhood. The average concessionaire rate collected by the store
decreased to 18.1% from 18.8% in 2018.

Dalian and Shenyang Property

Both the property in Dalian and Shenyang remained vacant throughout the
year and continued incurring negative cash flows for up-keeping and the
maintenance of the properties.
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Standalone Freshmart Operation

Business of Freshmart, which sells high-quality food and confectionery
products as a standalone operation of the Group at a rented premise in
Changning, Shanghai, continued to struggle amidst fierce competition and
low traffic footfall. During the year, its product assortment was adjusted to
cater to the needs of office workers in the same building where the
Freshmart is located. Meanwhile, the Group continued to reducing the
portion of direct sales and increasing the portion of concessionaire sales
with an aim to boosting its sales efficiency. The operation suffered from a
negative cash flow in 2019 as the amount of operating expenses
outweighed the sales revenue.

Investments in Associates

Beiren Group, a well-established Shijiazhuang-based retailer in which the
Group maintains a strategic equity interest, recorded 8.1% drop in
aggregate sales during the year (2018: increase of 2.6%), before counting
the 80.6% sales drop of the auto trading business which ceased operation
during the year. A share of net loss of RMB491.1 million or RMB294.7
million (after non-controlling interests) in Beiren Group (2018: share of net
profit of RMB339.8 million or RMB204.0 million (after non-controlling
interests)) was recorded for the year and the reverse from a share of profit
to loss this year was mainly due to the Group's share of net expected
credit loss of RMB812.4 million in respect of certain trade receivables held
by the Beiren Group, as more fully explained on page 62 to 63 under
section “Basis for Qualified Opinion” in the independent auditor’s report.
If the said share of net expected credit loss of the trade receivable
balances was excluded, the Group would have recorded a share of profit
of RMB321.3 million from the Beiren Group, a mild drop of 5.5% when
compared to last year.

Business Expansion

Construction works of the Group’s retail and commercial complex in
Daning, Jingan District, Shanghai is at the final stage of completion. The
project comprises a large retail complex, which will house the Group’s
second Jiuguang store in Shanghai, and two office blocks. The retail
complex is expected to commence business in 2021, when it should start
contributing cash flows to the Group and enhancing the Group's business
footprint and brand equity in Shanghai.

Outlook and Plan

As trade tensions between China and the United States has somewhat
abated following signing of phase one of the trade agreement in mid-
January, which was expected to help lifting up again the world’s economy.
Unfortunately, the COVID-19 outbreak, which was first reported in early
2020 and recently announced as a pandemic, has caused significant health
concerns and impact to China’s economic activities. To prevent the spread
of the virus, a series of preventive and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented in China that people are discouraged from
going out.

As a result, both Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang had to close
certain sections of the store and shorten their operating hours. This,
coupled with the lower footfall caused by the pandemic has adversely and
significantly affected the business of the two department stores since the
beginning of February 2020.
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Although the COVID-19 outbreak seems to slowly getting under control in
China recently, the situations in other countries round the globe are at
their initial stage and may take a period of time to combat. While it is
expected that the retail sector may pin its hope on the future release of
pent-up demand after the pandemic dies out, it is difficult to estimate how
much disruption it may cause to the economy and how long it will last. A
possible rise in unemployment will further weaken the fragile consumer
sentiment. As such, the management takes a pessimistic view about the
economic growth and retail consumption outlook in 2020.

Other headwinds that the Group has to face, including competition from
shopping malls in the localities of its department stores, intensifying
competition from the e-commerce and the rapidly changing consumption
patterns of the younger generation will remain.

To stay competitive, the Group's department stores will reinforce their
positioning as the ones that cater to the daily needs of the middle to
upper-class customer group. We will introduce more mid-range and
higher-end products of internationally renowned brands to enrich the
brand and product assortment. We will also continue to rationalize the
operations by making adjustments to cater different types of retail
operations.

To adapt itself to the new era of retailing and the consumption patterns of
the young consumers, the Group has been conducting omni-channel
marketing with the help of its mobile internet-enabled applications for the
use of its members at Shanghai Jiuguang since September 2019 and the
same systems will be made available for customers at Suzhou Jiuguang in
the near future to create greater convenience for customers to shop and to
enjoy sharing of reward points at both locations, which shall help to drive
sales.

The mobile internet-enabled application enables a number of functions,
including conversion of reward points earned from making purchases at
the Group's department stores to redeem coupons for consumption at
other businesses such as cafes or cinemas which form alliances with the
Group, advertisement of products and services, and themed marketing
and promotional activities. Such applications will operate seamlessly with
the Group's retail management system that will enable collection of data
about customers’ consumption patterns and preferences so that the
Group will be able to swiftly adjust its product assortment and conduct
precision marketing and promotional activities accordingly. These
measures will enable the Group to better serve its VIP club members, thus
enhancing their shopping experience and ultimately customer loyalty.

The Group will continue to roll out measures with the aim to boosting its
sales revenue and generating better returns to shareholders. It will also
continue to seek investment opportunities that can bring sustainable and
profitable growth to the Group.
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Report Scope

The Board of Lifestyle China Group Limited (the “Group”) believes that the
business of the Group is closely linked to the environment and society in
various ways, and we are committed disclose and report matters that we
believe are relevant and important to the Group's mission.

Business philosophy

As a premier department store operator, we regard integrity as our core
value and we believe that the Group's presence and prosperity is
interdependent and interconnected with the society and we adhere to the
following philosophy in conducting our business:

Customers: our mission is to operate one-stop department
stores, so that our customers can enjoy a pleasant shopping
experience.

Employees: our employees are our most precious asset and we
treat them with fairness and respect and maintain a working
environment to unleash their full potentials.

Business partners: we do business with our partners with
integrity and fairness and in a responsible manner. At the same
time, we encourage our business partners to embrace high
standards of corporate responsibility similar to those of ours.

4. Community: we are dedicated to serve and contribute to
the communities in which our business is operated.

5. Shareholders: we endeavor to create sustainable
returns to our shareholders.
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Governance Structure

The Board is the highest governing body of the Group. It is responsible for
formulating the management objectives, strategies, priorities and goals of
the Group in relation to Environment, Social and Governance ("ESG")
aspects and is also in charge of supervising their implementation.

ESG Committee comprises the Chief Executive Officer of the Group and
senior management members from various relevant operating
departments, and is responsible for the formulation, implementation and
daily governance of the overall ESG strategies of the Group.

According to the overall ESG strategies of the Group, members of the ESG
Committee are responsible for the specific formulation and
implementation of the relevant ESG objectives in relation to various
operating departments as well as the collecting and reporting of the
relevant information. It is also the responsibility of the members to submit
the relevant performance and annual reports in relation to the ESG aspects
to the Board on a regular basis. They also endeavour to continuously
improve the reporting mechanism in relation to the ESG aspects, which will
allow the Board to be fully aware of the initiatives in relation to the ESG
aspects of various operating departments of the Group and their
subsequent implementation and follow-up progress, as well as the relevant
governance system and measures in relation to the potential risks of the
ESG aspects of the Group.

To implement strategies in relation to the ESG aspects more effectively
and monitor the relevant possible ESG-related risk, the ESG Committee
will, on case by case basis, hold meetings to assess, formulate and fine-
tune the relevant strategies. Regular meeting will also be held with sub-
units under the ESG Committee to follow-up on the implementation of the
relevant ESG policies and standards of various operating departments of
the Group. Meanwhile, the ESG Committee will also collaborate with the
relevant departments such as legal and audit on timely basis to assess the
risks of the Group potentially involved in the relevant aspects and
formulate corresponding responsive and control measures.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &% « & & &% RE (&)

The ESG Committee continuously acquaint themselves with the trends and
changes of development in relation to the ESG aspects, as well as striving
to promote an effective incorporation of the strategies in relation to the
ESG aspects of the Group into the corporate’s daily decision making and
operating departments. It is the belief of the Group that under the fully
collaboration of various operating departments, the effort made by the
Group will strenuously ensure a high level of corporate responsibility
standard in relation to the ESG aspects attained by the Group.

Environment

Emissions

While creating social and economic value with an aim to minimise the
impact of our business to the environment, the Group dedicate our effort
to establishing sustainable development and act as a responsible
corporation in discharging our social responsibilities. To achieve these
objectives, we strive to take appropriate measures to ensure that correct
decisions and executions are made at all levels of our operation.
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To contribute environmentally sustainable development, the Group are committed to:
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eliminating resources wasting misconduct

minimizing uses of scarce resources and energy

adopting the most effective environmental friendly

operating solutions

promoting environmental protection and conservation

awareness

setting sustainable and measurable environmental

protection targets
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The primary sources of greenhouse gas emissions of the Group include
electricity, water and natural gas consumption. Hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes mainly come from sewage, kitchen waste,
construction and household wastes. The Group focuses on measuring and
reporting carbon reduction results and promoting waste reduction at
source. In this connection, the Group strictly comply with relevant
legislative requirements on sewage and waste disposal, and appoint
government approved professional firms to carry out recycling treatment,
so as to implement effective environmental management system
standards. Regular inspections on the Group's operations are conducted
by relevant government environmental protection authorities. Annual
government inspection on all relevant sewage and waste disposal for the
financial year 2019 was passed, which complied with government
standards.

KPI A1.1: There are 7 types of emissions including air pollutant, kitchen
waste, slop oil, household waste, domestic wastewater, construction waste,
sewage well and grease trap wastes. The total emission and corresponding
intensity in the financial year 2019 was 422,713.06 tonnes and 1.38 tonnes/
sg.m. respectively.

KPI A1.2: The total greenhouse gas emission of carbon dioxide and
corresponding intensity for the financial year 2019 was 49,975.04 tonnes
and 0.16 tonnes/sqg.m. respectively.

KPI A1.3: The total hazardous waste produced and corresponding intensity
in the financial year 2019 was 181.55 tonnes and 0.59 kg/sg.m. respectively.

KPI A1.4: The total non-hazardous waste produced and corresponding
intensity in the financial year 2019 was 422,531.51 tonnes and 1.38 tonnes/
sq.m. respectively.

KPI A1.5: The measures taken to mitigate emissions and their results for
the financial year 2019 are as follows.

—  we strived to minimise carbon emission to the surrounding area by
adopting environmental friendly construction processes.

—  we strived to use environmental friendly products and services for our
decoration and renovation projects in order to minimise the creation
of harmful substance. For instance, we would request our
contractors to use environmental friendly and energy saving
products which are approved by relevant government authorities,
especially materials such as adhesives, paints, coatings, etc., which

must be low VOC (Volatile Organic Compounds) compliant.
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KPI A1.6: Handling of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, its
measurement and results of waste reduction of the Group for the financial
year 2019 are as follows:

—  Set up a sewage treatment system for handling sewage in
compliance with the Government’s “Pollutant discharge standard
for urban sewage treatment plant”.

—  Waste prevention and management play an indispensable role in the
Group's overall environmental policy. Accordingly, the Group has
established an effective waste management approach to ensure that
collection and treatment of waste were carried out in compliance
with relevant government regulations and would cause the least
impact on the surrounding environment. The Group will strictly
follow the relevant government requirements and engage
government approved professional firms with relevant expertise to
carry out separation, recycling and removal of waste.

—  Kitchen wastages mainly came from our catering tenants and staff
canteen. The Group provides guidance to our catering tenants and
employees to promote reducing unnecessary food waste on
production and consumption. At the same time, the Group has
procedures in place on collection and treatment of kitchen waste
which are strictly in accordance with the principles and requirements
as set by the government. As opposed to dumpling, land filling or
selling kitchen waste in an illegal manner, we will engage the
municipal city government departments or approved professional
firms to carry out collection and removal of kitchen waste.
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Use of Resources

The Group is committed to minimizing the overall energy consumption in
our daily operations. Through scientific management and implementing
appropriate controls in every part of our operations, we strive to maximise
the energy efficiency and minimise the wastage of electricity, gas fuel and
water resources.

KPI A2.1: The Group's direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
for the financial year 2019 was 58,375,883 kWh of electricity; 82,294 cubic
meters of natural gas consumption, and 9,706 tonnes of steam energy
consumption. Accordingly, the energy consumption intensity was
191.26kWh/sq.m., 0.27 cubic meter/sq.m. and 0.03 tonnes/sqg.m.
respectively.

KPI A2.2: The total water consumption and corresponding intensity for the
financial year 2019 was 518,555 tonnes and 1.70 tonnes/sg.m. respectively.

KPI A2.3: Electricity is mainly consumed by air conditioning systems,
vertical transportation systems, general lighting, refrigeration systems,
plumbing and drainage systems, ELV system and I.T facilities within the
Group's department stores/buildings. The Group's initiatives on improving
the efficiency of energy use and the results achieved for the financial year
2019 are as follows:

—  Consideration of energy saving and environmental friendliness of
equipment are the important evaluation criteria in outsourcing and
procuring new equipment for the Group. Priority has been given to
those energy saving and environmental friendly products in our
general procurement of lighting and power equipment. Meanwhile,
energy saving and environmental friendly related requirements are
also applied to the entire tendering process.

In 2019, our Shanghai store completed the enhancement of nine
cooling towers and ten air conditioning units as planned to improve
its energy saving performance. Also, enhancement work was also
made to VRV air-conditioned system in mezzanine block in which the
energy saving products of Grade 1 Energy Consumption Label was
used, to improve cold/heat generation efficiency of the air-
conditioning system. In 2019, the air conditioning units at our
Suzhou store were replaced with five set of equipment of energy
saving inverter split type air conditioner to reduce energy

consumption more effectively.
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To substantially reduce the power energy consumption, the Group is
gradually adopting long-life and lower power consumption LED
lightings in shops and office area to reduce power consumption.

In 2019, our Shanghai store continued to facilitate the adoption of
LED lightings for the new tenants and tenants undergoing further
renovation as lighting sources, and completed the alteration work of
the LED lighting in parts of department stores areas in seven floors.
In 2019, our Suzhou store followed the requirements of energy
saving management in order to monitor the tenants’ electricity
current control, electricity level pre-warning and reducing of
electricity dissipation in real time.

To improve the energy consumption efficiency of the piping and
drainage systems, the Group carried out transformation and
improvement works on the sewage pump system of the water
collection wells.

In 2019, a thorough dredging and cleaning was conducted for all
sewage pipes and sewage treatment equipment of at our Shanghai
store to improve the efficiency of the drainage system, and the
renovation and maintenance work for sewage and drainage of the
toilets in some floors was completed. In the meantime, in 2019, the
two main valves which showed signs of leakages in the sewage pipe
were replaced at our Suzhou store in order to eliminate the relevant
safety hazard and maintain the normal operation of on-site facilities
and equipment, and to ensure the smooth drainage of water
sources.

As the Group strives to implement low carbon and environment
friendly practice, excellent performance has been achieved in
energy saving and emission reduction. In 2018, our Shanghai store
completed the carbon emission task assigned by the Shanghai
Municipal Government and was accredited as “2018 Excellent Unit
for Energy-saving Assessment in Key Energy Consumption Units of
Jing'an District in Shanghai”, and in 2019, we built on the energy
saving performance achieved in 2018. For the whole year of 2019,
when compared to 2018, the annual energy saving was 121,382 kWh
(saved approximately 14.92 tonnes of standard coal). Meanwhile, our
Suzhou store also successfully passed the government’s carbon
emission verification of building for that year and actively

participated in energy saving works related to the Power Purchase
Agreement of Electricity and Electricity Bill on the guidance of the
Economic Development Commission of the Suzhou Industrial Park.
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KPI A2.4: Water consumption mainly comes from sanitary facilities for our
customers and staff as well as the water-cooled air conditioning systems.
Water efficiency enhancement initiatives adopted by the Group in the
financial year 2019 and their results are as follows:

— In 2019, our Shanghai store completed the renovation for 9 water-
saving cooling towers to reduce the drift rate and avoid wasting of
water resources, and completed the replacement work of valves of
cold water supply in six air conditioning units on various floors. This
can avoid wasting in relation to water resources and enhance the
water consumption efficiency. As the improvement was
implemented in 2019, the efficiency generated in that year was not
significant and higher water consumption was recorded during the
improvement process. However, it will generate significant efficiency
in next year. In 2019, our Suzhou store further enhanced the
inspection and maintenance work of for the water valve, water
saving device, tap and water drainage pipe of the toilets of the
building, which can reduce or control water leaking and avoid
wasting in relation to water resources and enhance the water

consumption efficiency.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued) &% « & & &% RE (&)

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group supports environmental protection and implementing the
greening of our operating environment. The Group also constantly assess
the effectiveness of the measures taken to minimise the impact of our
business operation to the surrounding environment so that appropriate
improvement actions could be taken promptly. These measures include
the use of energy-efficient lightings and environmentally friendly paper,
paper usage reduction, turning off idle lightings, computers and electrical
appliances and other facilities and equipment to save energy. The Group is
also committed to promoting the use of recycle paper and shopping bags
made of recycle paper in our stores.

KPI' A3.1: Appropriate actions are taken to manage and minimise the
impacts of the Group's operations to the environment and natural
resources. We actively promote environmental protection and emphasise
green operation and green office. Policies and measures on optimising
operation and office environment are implemented to enhance energy
conservation and emission reduction management. Relevant policies and
measures taken in 2019 are as follows:

—  Implementing the Office Automation System. In 2019, the Group
further upgraded electronic office automation systems to optimize
office procedures and streamline processes to reduce the use of
office paper and facilitate the Group's paperless office operation.

—  Implementing double-sided printing and reusing and recycling toner
cartridges, paper, envelope and paper files. In 2019, the Group
continued to facilitate the reduction of paper consumption at our
stores when necessary. At the same time, printing facilities are being
adjusted to reduce the consumption of consumables. Centralised
collection and disposal of used consumables is adopted to minimise
environmental pollution resulting from improper waste disposal.

—  Purchasing and using recycled paper bags instead of traditional
packaging bags. To advocate environmentally responsible
shopping, the Group provides customers with recycled paper bags
produced with recycled paper and printed with the environmental-
friendly recycling label, reminding the customers that paper bag can
be recycled. We take appropriate measures to comply with
“General Technical Requirements of the environmental protection,
safety and labelling for plastic shopping bags” and “Notice on

restrictions of manufacturing and the sale of plastic bags” issued by
the government. Reduction on plastic bag consumption was
achieved by charging customers for plastic bags, and only provide
plastic bags when necessary after strict review on usage requirement
to ensure reasonable usage.

BRERKRER
AEE-EXRHRRLFERITAICEEREN
B EARRHEEBSERAETARENEE
IRERENIEN - (EM AR EHE - BRAER
BIEEMERE IR RIRRARER - R B4R - BERA
BERA  ERNRERSRIERME A E R -
AREBEBTRBAREBRRERAOER  XEXH
EFEERUNRRAREENEDE -

FREBIEIE A3 AREDREITENE IR
EHEHBRRERRAERNEAZE  EEBERE
BREES  FIEZHELLERBARENK
RERFEHE - MR REEIE - RFGCES
FEHD o R2019MEEFE - AEEBR RIEEEH
AT -

—  EROAMRBEEERMR - 2019F AL EHE
—HIRITOATRFM R FA - MBI
X BERIE - ORI A REER -
EREE BN AER -

— ERBSAAEEIEDEBRNE  BEE -
EEH AXRFORBENE  R2019F
AEEHNEBREKBERTR  #E
WEAEEEHAS AR RN SEH
YNGR HE - DA D A 18R - MR A B
ERMEhokEEs - fPhE 5
—RIE M PRERRRERRR SR

— REBREMABELANTHREREARKE
RBEER - ARERERREY REE
PR ft e ] YR RERIEN RSB YR
I ENELA] BIYCRRIF S - SRR AR A
FEE B ITRIR B M CERBEY
REORR - ZE2MRHBRARMER) R
(ARRHEEHEERZRBYRNE
) EBETEBBYRAERRAGE
WA ARNEMEXERER
ERUERIRHPBBR -

Lifestyle[China Group]Limited’ Annual'Report;2019
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—  Encouraging the use of environmental friendly materials and energy
efficient equipment in our construction projects. In respect of the
design of our office and stores, the Group actively adds in
environmental-friendly philosophy, to adopt open atrium design to
maximise the use of natural light and share lightings in common
areas, and utilise existing furniture and resources where possible
during renovations to reasonably make use of the existing
resources.

In 2019, new project of the Group located in Daning, Jing'an District
continued to focus on the importance of green, environmental protection
and energy saving in the whole project development, design and
construction, this project also was awarded with a Gold LEED. The project
meets the requirements of “green building” in many aspects such as
energy-saving and outdoor environment, energy saving and energy
utilisation, water-saving and water resource utilisation, resource saving
materials and materials utilisation, indoor environmental quality and
operation management. The Group aims to achieve a compatible
development of people, buildings and the natural environment. While
utilising natural resources and handmade means to create a good and
healthy living and entertainment environment, we aim to controlling and
minimising the use and destruction of the natural environment.

Social

Employment and Labour Practices
Employment

As of 31 December 2019, we had 1,162 employees.

As an employer of equal opportunities, the Group’s employment policy
aims to provide a working environment where there is no discrimination on
the basis of race, gender, religion, age, etc., and establishing a sound and
quality work environment to attract talents. All applicants enjoy equal
opportunities and fairness.

In order to attract and retain outstanding talents, the Group has a
comprehensive performance appraisal management system and regularly
communicates with employees to ensure its transparency and fairness.
Through the assessment of employees’ job performance, employ and
promote these with common values and professional ethics, and recognise
employees who are self-motivated, responsible and honest in order to
ensure the continued improvement of the Group's business.

Employees’ remuneration package is reviewed regularly by the Group. The
evaluation makes reference to local labour market and the level of salaries
and benefits in the same industry and takes into account of employees’
performance and experience to ensure that competitive remuneration

package are being offered so as to motivate continuous improvement and
contribution to the Group. In terms of employee dismissal policy, the
Group follows the local labour laws and regulations as stipulated by the
government.
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The policy on working hours, rest days, other benefits and welfare of the
Group are in line with the requirements of the local government and
industry practices. In addition to paid annual leave, we also offer
employees other types of holidays, including sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave and care leave.

Furthermore, the Group takes steps and initiatives to maintain a
harmonious labour relationship. We also work with labour unions to
organise a wide range of leisure and cultural activities to express our care
to our employees and promote healthy lifestyle and strengthen their sense
of belonging and togetherness to the Group.

In the financial year 2019, there were no serious breaches of applicable
legislations and/or regulations.

KPI B1.1: The Group's workforce can be divided into five age groups for
disclosure purpose: 18-20 years old, 21-30 years old, 31-40 years old,
41- 50 years old and above 50 years old.

Employees’ distribution by gender, type of employment and age in the
financial year 2019 are shown in the following charts:
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Health and Safety

The Group always strives to provide and maintain a safe and healthy
environment in its building portfolio for all customers, employees, and
business partners. Therefore, the Group provides comprehensive
insurance coverage for work injury and employer liability and annual health
check to its employees. We conduct regular inspection of premises,
provide training and education to our employees on disaster prevention,
fire drills, occupational safety, as well as first aid training to enhance
employees’ knowledge and skills to prevent accidents.

—  Maintaining proper lightings and ventilation systems and a tidy
environment in office and on sales floors, and providing sufficient
working space in the offices.

—  Smoking is prohibited in office and department store areas.

—  Following government guidelines relating to severe weather
warnings such as typhoons and rainstorms.

At the same time, the Group requires its employees to share the
responsibility in the setting, execution and monitoring of procedures and
arrangements in respect of safety and health. Their responsibilities include:

—  discovering, reporting and avoiding hazards at workplace in relation
to health and safety and having the responsibility to report such

hazards immediately to superiors or the security department.

— investigating any accidents or hazards to prevent them from
happening or re-occurrence.

—  working together in adopting work safety methods and procedures.

KPI B2.1: There was no work related fatality incidents reported in the
financial year 2019.

KPI B2.2: The number of loss of working days due to work injuries
accounted for 0.001% of normal workdays in 2019.
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Staff Training and Development

The Group regards employees as valuable assets and their development
helps driving the growth of the Group. In pursuing our business objectives
and providing protection to the rights and interests of our employees, the
Group aims to put in place a suitable training platform that supports our
employees’ personal development as well as the development of the
Group through performance evaluation, two-way communications and
questionnaires on training needs. The employee development and training
policies adopted by the Group include:

—  providing new comers with comprehensive orientation program to
assist new comers familiar with the Group.

—  providing employees with regular and ad-hoc internal job-related
training and development workshops.

—  actively seeking suitable external training programs. In 2019, we
worked with professional training institutions to provide various
kinds of training activities including outward development
workshops for employees from supervisor level. These workshops
and programs covered aspects such as management and team
building skills which were provided by professional trainers.

—  Post training evaluations were conducted to assess the effectiveness
of these training programs.
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Labour Standards

The Group is committed to strictly complying with the relevant local labour
and employment laws and regulations, and ensure that the employment
contracts with employees are on a legal, fair, equal, voluntary, mutually
agreed and good faith basis. The Group adopts employment policy and
procedures which prohibit forced labour and child labour. The same
requirements also apply to the Group's concessionaires and tenants.

KPI B4.1: We strive to perform continuous review and improvement in the
recruitment practices to prevent child labour and forced labour.

The relevant policies adopted by the Group are:

—  Strictly prohibiting any departments to request and/or employ any
persons who is below 16 years old. The Human Resources
Department is responsible for the review of the age of the
applicants during recruitment to ensure that no minors under the
age of 16 are employed.

—  All employment must be on a voluntary basis and we do not allow
forced labour, or using any form of deception to allure employee to
join the Group.

KPI B4.2: We were not aware of any child or forced labour incidents in the
financial year 2019. The Group believes that it is not exposed to any risk of
having child or forced labour in our business operation. We are committed
to taking immediate measures to eliminate any non-compliance in respect
of child and forced labour.

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

In accordance with our operating practices and the formation of different
segment along our supply chain management model, our department
stores sells direct purchased merchandises and sales of branded
merchandises through concessionaire and leasing arrangements. Through
seamless cooperation with suppliers and business partners, and highly
efficient information technology networks, the Group is able to work
smoothly along the supply chain which optimises the resources allocation
to deliver high-quality products and services to our customers. The Group
strives to share our commitments and beliefs on environmental and social
aspects with our business partner. This also encourages our business
partners to pay attention to and control environmental and social risks that
may be related to supply chain management and embrace high standards

of corporate responsibilities which are similar to those of ours.
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The supply chain management policy and procedures adopted within the
Group include:

—  to cooperate in a fair, honest and responsible manner with suppliers
who share our business philosophy.

—  suppliers are contractually prohibited to hire child labour.

—  suppliers are contractually obliged to ensure that the products they
offer are non-toxic and meet relevant government and industry
requirements and standards.

KPI B5.2: Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers:

—  suppliers are required to meet the Group’s product requirements,
such as price, quantity and delivery time.

—  selection process of suppliers is based on a set of standards,
including quality control and compliance with relevant standards
applicable in China and/or globally.

—  renewal of supplier contracts is subject to satisfactory results upon
review of their performance during the contract period based on the
practice and performance.

Product Responsibility

The Group believes that our sustainability and reputation are built on
delivering high quality products and services to our customers. Our
operation team is committed to providing safe and high quality products
and services to our customers, and addressing customer complaints with
utmost attention.

Moreover, the Group believes that product safety is the key to our success.
We strictly follow the industry standards and government regulations
relevant to our products and services. We provide trainings to employees
to enhance their consciousness of product safety in order to prevent any
counterfeits and sub-standard merchandises being sold at our stores and

to protect the rights and interests of our consumers.
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The product safety policies adopted by the Group are as follow:

—  For non-food products, the Group enhanced the quality checks on
products provided by our suppliers and business partners to ensure
that these products meet the relevant safety standards and
requirements. Special attention is placed on the compliance with
those regulations and requirements related to baby and children
products, toys and customer safety to ensure that our products sold
fully complies with the relevant compulsory regulations and
requirements of the PRC.

—  Forfood products, the Group assumes the primary responsibility for
food safety in accordance with the relevant provisions of the “Food
Safety Law of the PRC". We also follow policies and procedures such
as "Purchase inspection and recording policy”, "Food selling
procedure management”, “Procedures regarding removal of
substandard food items from shelves”, and “policy and procedures
relating to reporting and handling of emergency food safety

incident” etc. to ensure all food items provided are safe.

KPI B6.2: In the financial year 2019, our customer services extended to
before, during and after the sales. All complaints are handled by
professional personnel of the Group’s customer service department.
Details of the complaints, progress status, handling time and settlement
are properly recorded. In the financial year 2019, customer complaints
received by the Group were consistent with industry norm.

KPI B6.3: Practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

The Group recognises that brand equity is critical to our success. We
actively allocate resources to maintain and protect the intellectual property
rights of our brands.

—  We value intellectual property and determine intellectual property is
an indispensable element of successful business.

—  We manage and protect our intellectual property rights through
registration and maintenance and enforcement measures.

—  We respect intellectual property rights of others and do not infringe
their intellectual property rights.
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Anti-corruption

The Group strives to achieve transparency, integrity and accountability in
our operations and require our employees to maintain high standard on
ethics, personal and professional conducts in order to maintain and
promote the Group's reputation. In addition to these codes of conduct for
employees, the Group has in place a conflict of interest declaration and
whistleblowing mechanism, which we share with our business partners to
minimise and mitigate any situations that may lead to the occurrence of
conflict of interests or corruptions. At the same time, the Group considers
integrity as our core value and encourages our employees to report any
misconduct or fraudulent behaviour. The anti-corruption policy of the
Group is set out in the Employees’ Handbook and the letters of
undertakings signed by our suppliers.

KPI B7.1: In the financial year 2019, there were not any members of the
Group or any of the employees during the employment term was
prosecuted for corruption.

Community Investment

The Group adheres to the concept of “Giving back to society” and
proactively participate in community and social services to promote
corporate social responsibilities and make contributions to the society. In
this regard, we actively invest to support the community, especially to
those less privileged groups as well as the young generation in terms of
education, growth and development. Through engaging and interacting
with the community, the Group aims to:

—  support less privileged groups and bring them love and hopes;
—  encourage employees to be compassionate and caring;

—  strengthen our employees’ sense of belonging to the society; and

—  provide education to help them achieving better future.
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KPI B8.1: The Group contributes its time and resources to the community
in the following areas:

—  supporting and interacting with the community (such as the less
privileged groups and people with disabilities); and

—  education
The related actions in each area include:

—  For education support, activities organised by the Group in the
financial year 2019 were as follows,

Our Suzhou store continued with the charity sponsorship it made in
2018 to the project of caring of the psychological health of home
alone children organised by Ying Chun Hua Love Federation (¥ &
TEE LA E) of the Suzhou Industrial Park, providing assistance to
schools from the less privileged region. We extended our support to
Gupo School in Gangu County in Gansu (H &R H A & &3 24%) by
donating 10 computers with a value of approximately RMB30,000.
Such charity and public welfare project is aimed at leveraging the
psychological counselling platform of the Second Hospital of
Suzhou University (& K [f —Fz) by arranging professional
psychological counsellors to relieve and alleviate the negative
mentality of home alone children in order to address their bad
habits.

Our Suzhou store continued with charity sponsorship it made in
2018 to the charitable education support activities held by Suzhou
Industrial Park Charity Foundation (& /| T¥ R R ZZE £ 9),
providing assistance to students from less privileged families of the
Suzhou Industrial Park, thus students from less privileged families
would not give up the opportunities to learn and acquire knowledge

as a result of poverty of their families. Our Suzhou store also
donated RMB200,000 in this activity.
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Our Shanghai store sponsored Baisuo Town Zhongba Central
School (¥ Ffr#8 F # & 2 #%) in Changshun County in Guizhou
Province by donating 239 sets of books which valued approximately
RMB6,000.

—  For community care, activities that the Group participated in the
financial year 2019 were as follows,

Shanghai store continued to participate in the “Love under Blue Sky
— Charity Sale by Thousands of Shop” event hosted by the
Shanghai Charity Foundation, and donated part of a day’s sales
revenue in the amount of RMB10,000 to support women for
gynecological examination and the elderly with financial difficulties.

In March 2019, our Shanghai store sponsored Shanghai Charity
Foundation by carrying out “Public Welfare Activity for Showing
Cares to Teenagers on Internet” (BB E T —RA%EE)) which
amounted to RMB50,000.

In August 2019, our Shanghai store sponsored Shanghai Charity
Foundation by carrying out “The Charity and Public Welfare Activity
for Expressing care on Popular Science” (B} & X & & & QN a)E &)
which amounted to RMB60,000.

In June 2019, our Shanghai store conveyed greetings to elderlies
over 80-year-old in Community 505 in Daning Road in Jing'an
District during Dragon Boat Festival, and gave them gifts amounted
to approximately RMB18,000.

KPI B8.2: The Group continued to work actively with various charitable
organisations to interact with local communities in a variety of ways during
the year. In the financial year 2019, the Group donated approximately
RMB370,000 to less privileged groups and teenagers. The charitable
organisation we worked with included Shanghai Charity Foundation,
Shanghai Jing’an District Civil Affairs Bureau, Shanghai Charitable
Education and Training Centre, Suzhou Industrial Park Charity Foundation
and Suzhou Industrial Park Ying Chun Hua Love Federation.
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Outlook RERE

The Group will continue to uphold our principle in a responsible manner ~ AEE{N#E — BT HRSHEET - EE - BE
and strive to strike a balance among the interests of our customers, R ETEHEEETMEERRE] Tt EHET
employees, shareholders and the society, to support for coordination and & * ¥ EIRFELA R EEFIZSEE S H N HH
development between the enterprise and the society, the enterprise and /& @ B e M EEHER

the environment and the enterprise and the stakeholders, and make

contributions to the society.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide of The Stock EEMARZAARDFNERE - B NEAR

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited Rkl

General Disclosure e Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
—BKE that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
BERBERMREREBHN  MARTHEHES AEREEEENNEESH (@
R b)) BTHETABEAZENHBEERAGINER -
A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. (17)

BB R AR R EUE -

A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity. (17)
BERBEFRERTE
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. (17)
MELEERRNBEREE -
KPI

= o e 4T A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. (17)
L 2o FEEEERENEEREE -

A15 Description pf measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. (17)
R R ENEERMERR

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction (18)
initiatives and results achieved.

HWAREAEREZEENOE  AEELENEERAERR -

General Disclosure e Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
—REE materials. )
BRERER (BREER  KREAMRME) MECE -

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type and intensity.
REAEASNERZR SHREREEEREE -
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity.
BRKEREE °
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
KPL H 3 BRI R A A e A B R PRAS AR R
BRIERURIR A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, ~ (21)
water efficiency initiatives and results achieved. ) i
AR EUE R KOR LAl A E MR - A RRA BBt B RAERE
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products. Considered to be
R mAABEMHNEE - not relevant
YNl

General Disclosure e Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural
—RKE resources. \ )
HEBTAHRERAARERERNERT BOIR -

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
B i 4 i resources and the actions taken to manage them.
PENR 7~

HAEBRHHRRERARBERNEAYERERMEB AL ENTH -
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General Disclosure

—RRE

KPI
BRERIER

General Disclosure

—RBE

KPI
R RIER

General Disclosure

—MRIKEE

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI
BRERIER

e Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

EREH R RE BEREA  TERFH - RE - FTERE Sl RESURA
B RABFIE : () BUR « R(b) BFHBITABERZENRBEE RO ER
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region.

BRI BREER  FRERNKREDHES B -

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
BFRREZ2TERERREREREBEMELEEMN : (o) IR : Rb) BFHETA
BEATENRBEENRPINER

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

RAIEREEMmME T AR X -

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
AIGEATERE -

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.
Description of training activities.

AR EEETIERENAEREENEER - HaARIED -

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced
labour.

AR LEETHRBIETH : (o) K - Rb) ETHETABER
RO ERS -

=4
oa

HARREAE R

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.
H R R FR BB (1 045 B A SR B T RSB AIL T

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

WA ERERBENEER ARSI L8 -

%
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General Disclosure ¢ Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

—RIREE EEMEENERE T EEBEUR -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of (28)
BREBIEE suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are

implemented and monitored.
G I MR AED - mERTEREMNHEREE  URkE
R HIMNIT REERTTE ©

General Disclosure e Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
—RHE regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
BRPMRHERTRBNREEZS  BE  RRIMEBEEARBRITES
@ BUR : Kb) BFHETABERZENEERSIROIBE R -
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how (29)
R ERIET they are dealt with.
BERMNE R M RIGIRFEE AR EE X -
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.
it B R AR (B AN B EERE R A ROIE I -

General Disclosure ¢ Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and

— R regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRI LEHE - $R - MEFRERER © () BE - Rb) EFTHETABEKR
FENERERERBEOINER

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought

B AE R T against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the

outcomes of the cases.

RERAATETALEESREIEEBENESHARTOEE RF

FAEER o
General Disclosure e Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
—MRIRER communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into

consideration the communities’ interests.

BRNMMEZ2ERTREENELRBENEREAXBEDEZEBLRE

HIBUR o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,
BB IR IE labour needs, health, culture, sport).
EIERERE (HE  BESE - SIER @F- k- 8BA) -
B8.2 Resource contributed to the focus areas. (32)

HETHBHEREA -
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERBE

Corporate Governance Principles

The board of directors ("Board”) and management of the Company are
committed to maintaining good corporate governance practices
appropriate to the businesses of the Group. The Company has adopted
the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) as its guidelines and focus on a quality Board, sound internal
controls, and transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

Corporate Governance Code Compliance
The Company has complied with the code provisions of the CG Code for
the year ended 31 December 2019, except the following deviation:

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are not segregated
but such arrangement facilitates the development and execution of the
Group's business strategies and enhances efficiency and effectiveness of
its operations.

The Board

(1) Board Composition
As at the date of this report, the Board consists of a total of five
directors, including one executive director, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive directors. More than
one-third of the Board is represented by independent non-
executive directors with one of whom being a certified public
accountant. The Board believes that the number of executive and
non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to provide
sufficient checks and balances that would safeguard the interests of
the shareholders and the Company. The directors possess
professional qualification and knowledge and industry experience
and expertise, which enable them to make valuable and diversified
advice and guidance to the Group's business activities and
development.

Details of the composition of the Board are set out in the
“Corporate Information” in this annual report. During the year and
up to the date of this report, there was no change in composition of
the Board. The directors’ biographical details and the relationships
among them are set out in the "Profile of Directors” in this annual
report.

The independence of the independent non-executive directors is
assessed according to the relevant rules and requirements under the
Listing Rules. The Company has received written confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors and the Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive directors meet the independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent.
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(2)

(3)

(4)
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance with
the requirements set out in the code provisions of the CG Code.
The Company recognizes the benefits of having a diverse Board,
and sees diversity at the Board level is essential in achieving a
sustainable and balanced development. In designing the Board's
composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge,
industry experience and expertise. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy and considered against a variety of criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, being
the same person, is responsible for setting overall strategic plan and
development of the Group as well as for implementing the Board's
decisions, monitoring and supervising the Group's overall
performance, ensuring adequate capital and managerial resources
are available to implement the business strategies being adopted
from time to time, setting out and monitoring targets, plans and
direction for management, reporting to the Board on the Group's
performance and proposing business plans and strategies for further
evaluation and assessment by the Board.

Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. The Board steers and oversees the management of the
Company including, establishing the strategic direction and setting
long-term objectives for the Company, monitoring the performance
of management, protecting and maximizing the interests of the
Company and its shareholders, and reviewing, considering and
approving and the subsequent reviewing and monitoring of the
annual budget against actual performances and results. The Board
has delegated management, under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer, with authorities and responsibilities for the day-
to-day operations and administration of the Group.

Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of
the Company. The directors are aware of their collective and
individual responsibilities to the Company and the shareholders in
respect of the manner in which the affairs of the Company are being
controlled and managed.
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Directors are requested to make declaration of their direct or
indirect interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions to be
considered by the Board. If a director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if
appropriate, an independent board committee will be set up to deal
with the matter.

All directors have full access to and are provided with adequate,
reliable and timely information about the operations and latest
development of the Group to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities and make timely decision. Updates have also been
provided to all members of the Board on a regular basis to enable
them to discharge their duties. Operational and financial
information and analysis of the Group can be accessed directly
through briefing and reporting by the Chief Executive Officer and
management during Board meetings. Through the company
secretary, independent professional advice, on the account of the
Company, could be sought should such advice be considered
necessary by any director for carrying out his/her duties properly.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

After recommendation from the nomination committee,
appointment of new director(s), if any, is vested with the Board.
Under the Company’s articles of association, the Board may from
time to time appoint a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. Any such new director shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a
casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company (in the case of an addition to the Board) after his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at the same
general meeting.

All non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) are appointed for a specific term of three years and all
directors (including non-executive directors) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and are
subject to re-election in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.
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Meetings 6) E=
The Board held four meetings during the year to review and EEERFAYSERAMAGEH  UEMK
approve, among other matters, the Group's interim and final results HE (AR aiE) REENPHRRRAZES
announcements and financial statements, the continuing connected NERMBRE  HEBERS  REH
transaction, and to review quarterly operating performance of the REBNZFELERS -
Group.
Board members attended the Company’s Board meetings either in RIEANRAMERBUNERE  EF
person or through telephone conferencing means in accordance EREFARIINEFERARBELRR
with the provisions of the Company’s articles of association. The 7§$Q’;\3§ BEEENFALFESZS
attendance record of each director at the Board meetings held FE BT
during the year is set out below:
Number of meetings attended/held
HERBTEBERE
Board Annual General
Meetings Meeting
Directors B Exgem BREBFRE
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas 28BS & 4/4 11
Non-executive Director #iﬁl'_
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy BREEIS /N ﬁﬂ 3/4 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFH{TES
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SR E MR /NA 4/4 0/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIRS S 4/4 0/1
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai AR E 4/4 11
Practices and Conduct of Board and Board Committee (7) ESSRHETZESSRECERARE
Meetings EJJ
The company secretary is responsible for ensuring the proper NEWEEERREG AN BRAREBITE
convening and conducting of the Board and Board committee EEREETZESgE  URNBTE
meetings, with the relevant notices, agenda and Board and Board FAERREENEETNABETE SR
committee papers being provided to the directors and relevant BREEFABN  2eZEBERESER

Board committee members in a timely manner before the meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board and Board committee meetings. Board and Board committee
minutes are available for inspection by the directors and Board
committee members.
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(8) Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional (8) EERERIBESXERRE
Development
Induction package covering the Group's businesses and the BENEEZESE (R SEGEERR
statutory and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed REEEBR EMARESEEERES
company will be provided to each newly appointed director, if any. BT LEANREER - ARFHFEM
The Company continuously updates the directors on the Group's EERMHBMAANEBEERLR - AR
businesses and the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules REMBRAEERENRNER -

and other applicable regulatory requirements.
During the year, the directors participated the following training: FR - EBFDLEUTEI

Types of Training

Directors B o Eckic)

Executive Director HITES

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Gyt A, C

Non-executive Director EHITES

Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy BRI/ NME A, C

Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES

Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRS/ NME A C

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond SRIR & A C

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai MIET A& A B, C

A — reading materials provided by the Company relating to A — BEAAQRRMEBARATE
the Company’s businesses and regular updates on the BUARBEERREREEN
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory MRBI R EAMEREERENTE
requirements relevant to director’'s duties and HE AR

responsibilities

B — attending briefings/seminars/conferences/forums B — HEAUEEBBREENER
relevant to director’s duties and responsibilities e/ /Mmie /a3 wiEg

C — reading newspapers and journals relating to corporate C — BHEBBEGEEALRFE BER
governance matters, environment and social issues or HERENBEERE L EETR
director’s duties and responsibilities = R ET

ARTEREERAT —T-A5EH 41
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
("Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors. After specific enquiries by the Company, all
directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements

The directors acknowledged their responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019. The directors have ensured that the financial
statements of the Group are prepared so as to give a true and fair view of
the Group's state of affairs, the results and cash flow for the year, and on a
going concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting and financial reporting standards.

The directors also ensure timely publication of the Group’s financial
statements and aim to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's performance and position through all its
publications and communications to the public. They are also aware of the
requirements under the applicable rules and regulations about timely
disclosure of inside information.

The report from the auditor of the Company regarding their
responsibilities and opinion on the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” in this annual report. The Board has taken steps to ensure the
continued objectivity and independence of the external auditor. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, the remunerations paid/payable to the
external auditor of the Company were approximately RMB3.1 million and
approximately RMBO0.4 million in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Group respectively. Details of significant non-audit
services and the fees incurred are as follows:
Review of interim financial information RMBO0.4 million
for the six months ended 30 June 2019
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Board Committees
As at the date of this report, the audit committee, the remuneration

committee and nomination committee are in operation and they have

been established with specific terms of references to assist the Board in

discharging its responsibilities.

M

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. Lam
Kwong Wai, Ms. Cheung Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man,
Raymond, all are independent non-executive directors. The audit
committee is chaired by Mr. Lam Kwong Wai, who is a certified
public accountant. The audit committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the audit committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company's website.

The principal duties of the audit committee are as follows:

(i) to review the services and appointment of the Company's
external auditor, the nature and scope of auditing, and the
related audit fees;

(i) to review the Company’s financial statements and reports, the
changes in accounting policies and practices, and the
compliance with applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and legal requirements;

(i) to oversee the Group's financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems; and

(iv)  to review and monitor the corporate governance functions as
set out in the CG Code.

The audit committee held three meetings during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

EE2BETHNERS
BEAREEN BREEE FHEAGRE
AEAGIEEF - BRSNS A 0BRTEY
HEFEEIEABE -

M

EREES
ERZBEem=-RNEMAR  BIMEE
S REMPMARKRIREL - 2K
BYURBYFNTES BEREZES
MAREERETRE  KARESER
ERLZERRRRAMERABITERE

BAETANTRRATECEREZES®
BEREFIZEG2RIRBACEH
RAR B

ft

BERE

]
i3

ZEBBEWT

\

EHARRSNEZERED 2 BRTS R H
REARZBILE EEE KA X
HEM:

=

(i) BHARAIZHBHRERRE &
FIRREEN 2 #E) REGHEST
AR EmAR R RADIAR
E

(i) EBERAKBEZMBHEEHNE - AR
BERAMEENEITERE &

(v BIREZCEFRHIZ R
SRR -

FR EZZBRERT-RNEE-BF

BeRBHEERZCHHINWT

Number of meetings attended/held

Audit committee members EREEGHE HE/BITEERE
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (Chairman) MICEF A (EFE) 3/3
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SRE/ A 3/3
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond SRR 3/3
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In the meetings, the audit committee (i) reviewed with external
auditor the Group's interim and annual financial statements and
reports before they were submitted to the Board for consideration
and approval; (i) reviewed with the external auditor the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group; (iii) reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems;
(iv) reviewed the corporate governance functions of the Group; and
(v) made recommendation to the Board on the appointment of new
external auditor.

Remuneration Committee

Members of the remuneration committee comprise three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kwong Wai,
who is the chairman of the remuneration committee, Ms. Cheung
Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond and one executive
director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. The remuneration
committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee setting out
the committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the remuneration committee are to provide
advices and recommendations to the Board on (i) the remuneration
packages of the directors and senior management; (ii) any specific
remuneration packages with reference to market conditions,
performance of the Group and the individuals with reference to the
goals and targets as set by the Board from time to time; and (iii) if
necessary, any compensation arrangement for termination of office
of directors or senior management.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

(2)

ERZEERE LO)EIIBRBMERA
SEPHRFERBHRRIBERBER
EESAHEERILE ¢ ()EIMNEZEED
EHAREMERAZ S RAIREBER:
(i) 2 B L B B 32 N TR BB B 4 %HFZEAZ
1 (EHAREZ EXEIAREE
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B NMARSRIR ST AR —BRITEEFS
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RABITEBE

ROBETANTNEXIEZHFHNEZES
BiEREFNZEe s RNRBECER
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Number of meetings attended/held

Remuneration committee members FMZEEERE HiE BITEBRE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas BBt 11
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai (Chairman) MBI (FFE) 11
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SREIR/NE 1/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond RIB X ST 1/1

In the meeting, the remuneration committee reviewed and
recommended for the Board's approval (i) the discretionary bonus
for the chief executive officer for the year 2018; and (ii) the
remuneration packages of the directors for the year 2019.
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Nomination Committee

Members of the nomination committee comprise three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Lam Kwong Wai, Ms. Cheung
Mei Han and Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond and one executive
director, namely, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas who is the chairman of
the nomination committee. The nomination committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee setting out the
committee’s authorities and duties, which follow closely the
guidelines of the code provisions of the CG Code, are available on
the Company'’s website.

The principal duties of the nomination committee are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;
and

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The above principal duties are regarded as the key nomination
criteria and principles for the nomination of directors of the
Company, which also form part of the nomination policy of the
Company. In selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship to the Board, the nomination committee would
consider various aspects such as candidate’s qualification, time
commitment to Company and contributions that will bring to the
Board as well as factors concerning board diversity as set out in the
Company's Board diversity policy, before making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment of directors.

The nomination committee is also responsible for assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors.
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The nomination committee held one meeting during the year. The
attendance record of each committee member is set out below:

FR - REZBEERT - REH-BX
BegRBEHFERICEHIIMT

Number of meetings attended/held

Nomination committee members REZEEEHE HiE BITEBRE
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman) sk (ER) 11
Ms. Cheung Mei Han SREIR/NE 1/1
Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond SRIR S S A 1/1
Mr. Lam Kwong Wai MAET A& 11

In the meeting, the nomination committee (i) reviewed the existing
structure, size and composition of the Board; (ii) reviewed the
independence of independent non-executive directors; and
(iii) made recommendations to the Board on the proposed re-
election of the retiring directors at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and maintaining sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems. As such, the Board not only sets and
communicates the Group's strategies and objectives but also oversees the
Group's risk management and internal controls systems on an ongoing
basis, and to ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal controls systems has been conducted at least
annually.

The audit committee plays a vital role in overseeing the risk management
and internal controls systems on behalf of the Board. The audit committee
reviews, on at least an annual basis, the Group's risk management and
internal controls systems to ensure that management has fulfilled its duties
in establishing and maintaining an effective risk management and internal
controls systems. It also assesses the extent and frequency of the
communication of the monitoring results to the Board, as well as
considering the results of any investigation into the Group's risk
management practices and internal controls and management’s responses
to the findings of such investigations. The audit committee performs
annual review for the adequacy of budget and resources, staff qualification
and experience, and the quality of training program of the Group's internal
audit, accounting and financial reporting functions.
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The Group’s system of internal controls which includes a defined
management structure with limit of authority is designed to help the
achievement of business objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
external publication, and ensure compliance with relevant legislation and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in the operational systems for the
achievement of the Group's objectives.

The Group also regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information and procedures are in place for the handling of confidential
commercial information to ensure that inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is approved, and its
dissemination effectively made.

The main features of the Group's risk management and internal controls
systems are illustrated below:
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The Group has established an organizational structure with defined levels
of responsibility and reporting procedures. Monthly management
accounts are available for review of the senior management and the Board
(in a concise format of a Monthly Report) for monitoring the Group's
financial and operating results. The management, supported by the
operation units and the internal audit team, are responsible for
formulating, implementing and monitoring sound risk management and
internal control systems, and reporting to the Board and the audit
committee on the result of risk assessment, as well as the assessment on
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.
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The internal audit provides an independent appraisal on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The yearly internal audit plan is derived based on the assessed
risk of the Group's major operations and business and, taking into account
also result of internal audit activities conducted in the preceding period,
are reported to the audit committee for approval. In addition to its
scheduled internal audit works, the internal audit team may be requested
to conduct other review or investigative work. The results of internal audit
reviews and agreed management action plans in response to
recommendations of the internal audit are reported to the executive
director and audit committee periodically. The internal audit also follows
up with management regarding the implementation of the agreed action
plans to ensure that operation procedures and internal controls are
continuously enhanced.

In addition to the assessment and review of risk management and internal
controls undertaken internally, the half-yearly review and annual audit
conducted by our external auditors, aim to provide assurance that the
Group's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, the Group’s accounting policies and
applicable laws, rules and regulations, will also provide to certain extent
independent checks on the Group's internal controls system.

For the year ended 31 December, 2019, management has conducted
regular reviews during the year on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems covering all material aspects
related to financial, operational and compliance controls, various functions
for risk management and security of physical assets and information
systems. The audit committee had been reported during the audit
committee meetings of key findings identified by internal auditors and
external auditors and discussed findings and actions or measures taken in
addressing those findings relating to the Group's risk management and
internal controls. No material issues on the risk management and internal
controls system have been identified during the year ended 31 December
2019 and no significant areas of concern which might require rectification
works or affect our stakeholders, including our shareholders. The Board
and its audit committee considered the risk management and internal
control system to be effective and adequate, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training and budget of its
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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Commitment to Transparency

The Board emphasizes in creating and maintaining a high level of
transparency through timely disclosure of relevant information on the
Group's business and activities to the shareholders, investors, media and
investing public, through regular press releases, analysis’s briefings, press
conferences, as well as timely updating of the Company’s website. Our
executive director and management, who look after the business
operation, are committed to respond to enquiries from regulators,
shareholders and business partners.

Investors’ Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationships with its shareholders. The Company
always seeks to provide relevant information to existing and potential
investors, not only to comply with the different regulatory requirements
but also to enhance transparency and communications with the
shareholders and the investing public. This is part of a continuous
communication program that encompasses meetings and relevant
announcements to the market in addition to periodic written reports in the
form of preliminary results announcement and the publication of interim
and annual reports. The forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company also provides an opportunity for communication between the
Board and the shareholders.

In addition, the Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information about the Group is made available on a timely
basis. Regular meetings are also held with institutional investors and
research analysts to provide them with timely updates on the Group's
latest business developments which are not inside information (as defined
under the Listing Rules) in nature. These activities will keep the public
informed of the Group's activities and foster effective communications.

The Group also participated in investment conferences and forums during
the year in order to enhance the awareness of the investing public of the
Group's business operations and development strategies.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully complied with
disclosure obligations stipulated in the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have
an equal opportunity to receive and obtain externally available information
released by the Group.
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Dividend Policy

The Company currently does not have a pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. Any declaration, payment and amount of dividend in the future are
subject to the Board's discretion having regard to the Group's future
financial performance and earnings, capital requirement and surplus,
general financial conditions and other factors as the Board may consider
relevant.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company, any
one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting the shareholder(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the shareholder(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the shareholder(s) by the Company.

The above written requisition shall be addressed to the Company’s head
office at 20th Floor, East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong.

The procedures regarding proposing a person for election as a director are
set out under the "Corporate Information” on the homepage of the
Company's website.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing
through the company secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Company Secretary

Lifestyle China Group Limited

20th Floor, East Point Centre

555 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2838 2030

Email: info@lifestylechina.com.hk

Constitutional Documents

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and articles of association.
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Profile of Directors

EEEN

Executive Director

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lau, aged 66, joined the Company in January 2016. He is the
Chairman, chief executive officer, and is also director of certain
subsidiaries and associated companies of the Company. Mr. Lau is also the
chairman and a non-executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau is a member of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Shanghai
Committee and a member of the board of directors of the Shanghai Jiao
Tong University, the PRC.

Non-executive Director

Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy

Ms. Chan, aged 58, joined the Company in March 2016. She has over 20
years of experience in corporate management. Ms. Chan holds a degree of
Master of Business Administration from University of Leicester, the United
Kingdom and a degree of Bachelor of Laws from University of
Wolverhampton, the United Kingdom.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Cheung Mei Han

Ms. Cheung, aged 54, joined the Company in June 2016. Ms. Cheung is a
practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. She holds a degree of Bachelor of Laws
of the University of London and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws of The
University of Hong Kong. She is also an associate member of the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Cheung has more than 30 years of
experience in the company secretarial sector. She has pursued the legal
career since 2006 and is currently a partner of S.Y. Wong & Co, a law firm in
Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond

Mr. Cheung, aged 65, joined the Company in June 2016. Mr. Cheung is an
entrepreneur and has over 10 years of experience in the department store
industry. He also has over 20 years of experience in the textile and
garment manufacturing industries and served as a director of the 15th
Board of Directors of the Federation of Hong Kong Garment
Manufacturers in the year of 1992.

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai

Mr. Lam, aged 64, joined the Company in June 2016. Mr. Lam serves as an
executive director, the group financial controller and the company
secretary of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange. He has over 40 years of experience in auditing, finance
and accounting industries. Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountants
(Practising) and holds a degree of Master of Business Administration from
the University of Warwick, United Kingdom.
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Directors’ Report

EEEWRE

The board of directors ("Board”) of the Company present their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the operation of department stores and
supermarket business in the PRC.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 68.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019, comprising the discussion of the future business development and
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, are set out in the
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 4 to 5 and pages 6 to 13 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the “Five-Year Group Financial
Summary” on page 159. Particulars of important event affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year under review are
provided in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance,
relationships with key stakeholders, and compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations are contained in the "Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 14 to 36 of this annual report.
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Shares
Details of movements during the year in the shares of the Company are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Debentures
The Group has not issued any debentures during the year.

Distributable Reserves
Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The Group is principally involved in retail business which consists of direct
sales and sales under concessionaire arrangement. During the year, less
than 30% of the Group's revenue were attributed by the Group's five
largest customers and approximately 56% of the Group's purchase were
attributed by the Group's five largest suppliers in respect of our direct
sales and approximately 21% of the Group's purchases were attributed by
the largest supplier.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their close
associates or any shareholder who owned more than 5% of the number of
issued shares had interest in any of the five largest suppliers of the Group.

Donations
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately RMB320,000 (2018: RMB402,000).

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Director
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Cheung Mei Han

Mr. Cheung Yuet Man, Raymond

Mr. Lam Kwong Wai

In accordance with Article 84 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas and Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy will retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, all being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Change in Information of Directors
Below is the change in director’s information required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas

—  voluntarily offered to take 30% salary reduction for a period of
4 months with effect from 1 March 2020
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2019, the directors’ and the chief executive’s interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers ("Model Code") as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

EERESTRAERKG - HERS
KfEREEz RS
R-B-NF+-A=+—R  SEERSST
B BRARD A S AE T 2 ABREAR (RGBS R
S D[ 5% R 1 |) SEXVERFA R %)
Z R  1ERAARID R P 1 A AR IR 5
BRI 352(6 R RSN AR 2 B M AL
REEEHAIBMARDT (B EH £
AARAN ([ TR i8R+ A2 (BT A
EFETESRINEEFANEEFED A
MG ARR RBRA 2 B ARBIIMT -

Long position in shares of the Company RAEXARGZHR
Number of Percentage of
Name of director Nature of interest shares held issued shares
BERAG HERITRG
EEnR fERME E 4= ZEBat
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Beneficial owner 252,051,460 17.21%
B EmEAA
Interest of controlled corporations (Note) 844,988,832 57.70%
SEHEE R ()
Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy Beneficial owner 297,000 0.02%

R/ NE EmEAA

Note: The 844,988,832 shares comprise:

(a) 540,000,000 shares held by United Goal Resources Limited (“United Goal”).
United Goal is ultimately owned as to 80% by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
through his controlled corporations and as to 20% by certain family
members of Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Joseph, the elder brother of Mr. Lau Luen
Hung, Thomas. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares in which United Goal

is interested.

(b) 304,988,832 shares held by Dynamic Castle Limited (“Dynamic Castle”),
which is wholly owned by Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas. By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is deemed to be interested in the same

parcel of shares held by Dynamic Castle.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. Nor any of the directors and chief
executive had any interest in, or had been granted any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or had exercised any such right during
the year under review.

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK

M5k © 5%844,988,832/% Bk (5 BL4%

(a) 540,000,0000% A% 17 B3 United Goal Resources
Limited ([United Goal |) A& ° United Goal
HESS A RBES N ZERRESR
80% Mk 17 1t 2 I /R BB e A (R BIEB e 4
Z M) BT RIEK B R HEH20% 5 1
o RIBEE S RETERD] - BIZB T AR
7% United Goal FTiF A 8IMERIR D 1R ©

(b) 304,988,832 IRAR A R BIBIB L E 2 BHER
2 Dynamic Castle Limited ([ Dynamic
Castle D¥5A - RIFEF R B E MM
2128 55 A 418 /3 %8 Dynamic Castle FT#F
BERBRM R o

B EXFEEESN  RCE-NF+ZRA=+—H"
ARREZENERRITHRABRESAREE S MY
BIRPIEINERECHENBEF < ELMATAR
BRETRAMEARA R LR 2 AR EISHEE
AHEEEEE (1238 5 M RO EXVEFTUEE) 2
Ei - RO REEFOEIREIORE -
REBER  SEZNERITHRABMERGHE
BREMAIRBEARA MEABEE (RESLYE
{ERGIBXVERFT SR EH) B 2 R - INETTR S
AFHER -

55




Directors’ Report (continued) &= 1§ &4 (&)

Interests of Shareholders Discloseable under the SFO

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (other than a director or
the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the
Company:

REFZRHUERIATHEZRR
e

R-B-AF+-A=+—8 THAL(TE
BADREFARBTRAR) RERFZREH
R ARBBRR 153 5 A 1R 138 2 R B B 1617 58 336 {6
RELHNABFZEEMARDERD R 2E
HEAABBIMT -

Long position in shares of the Company REAQABDRGBZHER
Number of Percentage of
Name Nature of interest Shares held issued shares
ek HEBITRA
8 ERME £ 4= ZEBEDL
United Goal Beneficial owner (Note 3) 540,000,000 36.87%
BEmEE A (MFE3)
Asia Prime Assets Limited Interest of controlled corporation 540,000,000 36.87%
(“Asia Prime"”) (Notes 1 and 3)
ZPEgEEE R (i FE1 &3)
Sand Cove Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporations 540,000,000 36.87%
("Sand Cove") (Notes 2 and 3)
ZyEgEEE R (2 %3)
Dynamic Castle Beneficial owner (Note 3) 304,988,832 20.83%
BEmEE A (MFE3)
Notes: R

1. Asia Prime, a company indirectly controlled by Mr. Lau Luen Hung,Thomas, holds
80% of the entire issued share capital of United Goal. By virtue of the SFO, Asia
Prime is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares comprising
540,000,000 shares in which United Goal is interested as beneficial owner.

2. Sand Cove, which is wholly owned and directly controlled by Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas, is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 100% voting power at
general meetings of Asia Prime. By virtue of the SFO, Sand Cove is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares in which Asia Prime is deemed to be

interested as set out in Note 1 above.

3. Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas is a director of United Goal and Sand Cove, and the

sole director of Asia Prime and Dynamic Castle.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified by any
person (other than a director or the chief executive of the Company) who
had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2019 which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or notified to the
Company.
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Equity-linked Agreements
The Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the
year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Businesses

There was no competing business of which a director of the Company had
an interest which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
and Contracts

Save as disclosed under the section “Continuing Connected Transactions”
below, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company or any entities connected with the director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company'’s articles of association, every director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.
There is appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the directors and officers of the Group.
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Continuing Connected Transactions
The following transactions constituted non-exempt continuing connected

transactions of the Company (“Continuing Connected Transactions”)

under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2019.

1.
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Tenancy Agreement 1. HEHS

Transaction Party Name of Date of Nature of Annual caps Transaction

within the Group Counter Party agreement Terms transaction (Note 2) ~ amount (RMB'000) (Note 2) ~ amount (RMB'000)

FELR

rEBRAH REHHER iE gk 8 RHHE (i2) B (ARMT ) (512) R5LE(ARET )

Shanghai Ongoing FANEHTES 26 November 2004 1 October 2004 to Lease of entire (@) Lease/ (@) Lease/

Department Store Limited BRAR “ZEME 30 September 2024 building of Rental Expense: 187,000 Rental Expense: 159,662

("Shanghai Ongoing"), (Shanghai Joinbuy +—AZ+7A —EEME Shanghai Joinbuy ne/ neE/

a company owned City Plaza Co. Ltd*) TA-RZ City Plaza BeEX HeHx

of 65% by the Group (Shanghai Joinbuy”), EopE REBELEAR (b) Management (b) Management

FEAKBEEERAT a company owned of AA=1HE HmESAE Fee: 43,000 Fee: 36,254

((EBAk)) - 758 50% by the Group EEE EEE

BEOSBRENDT (Note 1)

FENERATESERAR)
(LBNE]) - K5E
HAS0%HEN LA
(Fstn)

*  For identification purpose only * BB

Entrusted Loan Agreement 2. ZRERWm=R

Transaction Party Name of Date of Nature of Annual caps Transaction

within the Group Counter Party agreement Terms transaction (Note 3)  amount (RMB'000) (Note 3)  amount (RMB'000)

FELR

REBRAH REUTER iz 3 RHHE (H53) SE(ARBT ) (M:3) REEE(ARETR)

Shanghai Ongoing Shanghai Joinbuy 12 June 2018 12 June 2018 to Provision of 100,000 90,000

AKX (Note 1) —I-N\F 11 June 2021 entrusted loan(s)

FEhE ~ATZH —I-N\F REZTER
(Hf3ED) AAt-AE

&

~At-A

Notes: Bt EE -

1. Shanghai Ongoing is owed as to 5% by /81 A (%) AR AR (“Joinbuy 1. PEAkm EEAT (EB)BRAR(ThE
Group”) and 30% by /8 L E &5 AR 2 A (“Joinbuy Investment”). FEDREEEBABROBERAFT(TLAER
Joinbuy Group and Joinbuy Investment (whose controlling shareholder is B o R EA%KRI0%KIE - LEEE R
Joinbuy Group), being substantial shareholders of Shanghai Ongoing, are NERE (HERBRRANEEE) HRLE
connected persons of the Company. As Shanghai Joinbuy is owned as to AKRFERR - RARFNBEEALT - R
12% by Joinbuy Group and 38% by Joinbuy Investment. Shanghai Joinbuy FENEBENAEERNEREDES
is an associate of Joinbuy Investment and a connected person of the 12% K 38% 51 - LB NA RNARE &5
Company under the Listing Rules. ERAAR ETARAETARARNEEAL

2. Further details of the transaction and the annual caps were set out in the 2. RHREE FRIE—SHBERNARFTHH
announcement “Renewal of Annual Cap” of the Company dated RZE-N\FTZATNBIEEFE LR
18 December 2018. OPN-=

3. Further details of the transaction and the annual caps were set out in the 3. R REE FREE—TFHIBTRNARABBH

announcement of the Company dated 12 June 2018.
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All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been reviewed by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company who have
confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Continuing
Connected Transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) "Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Notice 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

To the extent the transactions disclosed above which are also related party
transactions as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements, these related party transactions constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and the Company has complied with the relevant
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year.
Certain related party transactions in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements constituted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt
from shareholders’ approval and disclosure and other requirements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of the employees’
merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the directors of
the Company are reviewed by the remuneration committee, with
consideration to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

Employees

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of 1,162 employees,
with 1,157 stationed in mainland China and 5 in Hong Kong. Staff costs
(excluding directors’ emoluments), amounted to RMB158.4 million (2018:
RMB168.7 million) for the year. The Group ensures that the pay levels of its
employees are competitive and in line with the market trend and its
employees are rewarded on a performance related basis within the
general framework of the Group's salary and bonus system.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company's shares has been
held by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditor

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) has resigned as the auditor
of the Company with effect from 4 November 2019 and Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers ("PwC") has been appointed as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 11 November 2019 to fill the vacancy
following the resignation of Deloitte.

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by

PwC. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to reappoint PwC as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Luen Hung, Thomas
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

23 March 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ABERE

_i
pwec

To the Shareholders of Lifestyle China Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Lifestyle China Group Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to
158, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019;
o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a

summary of significant accounting policies.

Our qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

As further detailed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group holds certain equity interests in certain associated companies
herein referred to as “Beiren Group” 1t A5, which are held via Wingold
Limited and Ample Sun Group Limited, 60% owned subsidiaries of the
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has recognised
a share of losses of associates of RMB491.3 million and carried RMB2,747 .4
million investments in associates on the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, of which RMB491.1 million of
the share of losses of associates for the year and RMB2,743.4 million of the
carrying value of investments in associates were attributable to the Beiren
Group. Included in the Beiren Group's net loss for the year was a loss
allowance on expected credit loss of RMB1,658.0 million, net of deferred
tax credit, against certain overdue trade receivable balances of the Beiren
Group. The impact of this net expected credit loss on the Group's share of
losses of associates, loss attributable to owners and loss attributable to
non-controlling interests for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted
to RMB812.4 million, RMB487.4 million and RMB325.0 million respectively,
while its impact on the Group's carrying value of the investments in
associates, equity attributable to owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interests as at that date amounted to RMB812.4 million,
RMB487.4 million and RMB325.0 million respectively.

The principal activities of the Beiren Group are operating of department
stores and supermarkets. It is also engaged in auto trading business and
sales were made to three PRC companies in China (“the Debtors”). The
ultimate beneficial owner of the Debtors has provided personal
guarantees over the Debtors’ outstanding amounts to the Beiren Group
(the “Guarantor”). The Debtors have defaulted on settlement of trade
balances due to the Beiren Group since April 2019. In addition, the Group
became aware from public sources that the Guarantor has been detained
by the relevant local authority in Hebei province in relation to alleged
illegal activities in one of his businesses which was engaged in peer-to-
peer lending. Based on public notices issued from the local authority in
Hebei, management noted that all companies (including the Debtors) and
assets which are located in Hebei Province and are directly or indirectly
owned by the Guarantor have been seized by the local authority pending
further investigations.

After obtaining an understanding from management of the Beiren Group
in respect of the actions to be taken to recover the trade receivables from
the Debtors and taking into consideration the advice from the Group's
external legal advisers, the Group has concluded the likelihood of
recovering any amount from the Debtors or the Guarantor as remote and
has made a loss allowance on expected credit loss, net of deferred tax
credit, against the whole overdue trade receivable balances due from the
Debtors for the purpose of recognising the share of results of the Beiren
Group.
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However, the Group’s management was not able to provide us with
adequate evidence with respect to the current financial conditions of the
Debtors and the Guarantor, including the 2019 latest financial information
of the Debtors, details of other assets (including nature, amounts, and
claims or pledges against such assets, if any) of the Guarantor that could
be pursued to settle the outstanding trade receivables due to the Beiren
Group. We were therefore unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence we considered necessary to assess the appropriateness of
management'’s impairment assessment, net of deferred tax credit in the
Beiren Group. Given these scope limitations, there were no other
satisfactory procedures that we could perform to determine whether any
adjustments were necessary in respect of the Group's assessment of the
impairment against the trade receivable balances due from the Debtors in
the Beiren Group and its related deferred tax credit, which has
consequential impacts on (i) the Group's share of losses of associates for
the year ended 31 December 2019 and its carrying value of the
investments in associates as at that date; (ii) the Group's loss attributable
to owners and loss attributable to non-controlling interests in the Group's
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2019; and (iii) the Group's equity
attributable to owners of the Company and the non-controlling interests
on the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matter described
below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to share of results of
associates and investments in associates in respect of the Beiren Group
(except for the share of loss allowance on expected credit loss, net of
deferred tax credit as mentioned under “Basis for Qualified Opinion”).
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Key Audit Matter
B ET R

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESFNMHEARESTSRETER

Share of results of associates and investments in associates in
respect of Beiren Group (except for the share of loss
allowance on expected credit loss, net of deferred tax credit
as mentioned under "Basis for Qualified Opinion”)

BRI AEENEEBERREERNBERFNKRE ([R
R ReVER | st 78 S5 S B I8FHR B 1G B 1B 5 B (ks
BEIETRIAE ) B0 BRI

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
DEGZEVBHREMET -

The Group has equity interests in a group of companies
herein referred to as “Beiren Group” (3t A& &) which were
accounted for as associates under the equity method. The
Beiren Group's principal activities include operation of
department stores and supermarkets. The results of the
Beiren Group is highly dependent on the revenues derived
from its retail operations which typically comprise of high
volume of low-value transactions.
EEERATHAIEASE ] Z —ERr TR RE  RIE
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The significance of the share of results and investments in the
Beiren Group to the Group's results warrants significant audit
effort in this area.
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Our audit procedures to address this key audit matter, amongst
other procedures, include but not limited to:
BPEEEEREFFENRNZF (BEEMER) 2FET
R

o Discussing with Group management and the Beiren
Group management to understand the performance and
significant events of the Beiren Group during the year in
order to identify risks that are significant to the Group.

o EEEEEERIASEEEREETN® ATH
FRILAEBENXRARERES  KMENYE E£E
i = B R H) ELfE o

° In relation to revenue recognition,

FARERUA L

o obtaining an understanding of the processes and
controls over revenue recognition;

TRIEARERNBREREE

° testing the key controls of IT systems and controls
over revenue recognition; and

BAERARMBR ARG RMA R LN ETEE R X

o testing revenue transactions by different revenue
streams, on a sample basis, to relevant supporting
documents such as contractual agreements,
invoices and cash settlement records.
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o Assessing whether the financial information of the Beiren
Group was prepared in accordance with the Group's
accounting policies and reviewing adjustments to
conform to the Group's accounting policies.
FHEIEASBEPBEREZERE ESESHBERRER
WEMHEEHE  UAFae SEXENSHEBR-

Based on the procedures performed, we found that, in the
context of our audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s share of results of associates and
investments in associates in respect of the Beiren Group
(except for the share of loss allowance on expected credit loss,
net of deferred tax credit as mentioned under “Basis for
Qualified Opinion”) were supported by the available evidence.
ERBITHRER  BMRE  SHME BE£EGSVHR
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Other Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence for the share of
losses of associates for the year ended 31 December 2019 and carrying
value of the investments in associates for the Beiren Group as at 31
December 2019. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not
the other information is materially misstated with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK

H b & $
EARERHAMENAR
REJANFAERN  BTEE
e -

o R E R BRI TIH
RAEMBRERNR

BMESEAMBREANERL NRELMER -
BRI E b ERBER AT ANRE SR

BARRMIEERA M BBRRNET - HANEER
BIEEMER  ELERT  ZREMEHNES
B AR BRRARMERTBETRERNTE
AEEEREELE AT FEEAERRANE
T e

ERBRMERTHOITIE  MREMIRBULEME
HEEERERRL  RUFTERSZEE - A
ZXDJ:X%‘”:‘EE’\J%%%@%L B EEFL A

TE-NAFFT A=+ -BIEFEHIAER
BiEBERABERER_-_ZF-NLF+=A
=+ A ARBEERERARNREREEE
MG R MEENEFE - Bt - BHAEER
Hitp BRI EH LR FESAERRAIEL
.

4w o

BEERAERE
NEFE

MRS M BRRARE

ERAEEARERBERAESTMAGHEMDN
(BAMBHREEL) RBB(RRAGIDNRER
KRBUAEMP NG M BRE - JI;T/\M
7‘%1@* AU BHRROBRIFEHRR a?&i R
BRWERFERR A ﬁﬁ%mﬁ’]ﬁﬂ*%% HEE -

Eﬁﬁ%,m/\ﬁﬁ&#&%’iﬂﬁ E=pEHE BEXE
SELLENEE N YEERBER THREESERL
Aﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ%lﬁ URERFERE RS ER
BRIFBEFEAER BEREFERIUFLLE - 5
BEMERNBERTER

65




Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) %5 37 # 2 £} & (&)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

.A R N

concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued) 38 37 # 2 £ R & (4&)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Woon Yin Michael.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEERkEMAEZEKRER

for the year ended 31 December 019 B ZE - T — N F+ - A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—ZE-hE —ZT-N\F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt 5 AR® T AREF T
Revenue LN 4 1,204,057 1,183,752
Cost of sales S R AR (412,677) (375,190)
Gross profit EF 791,380 808,562
Other income, gains and losses HEaUg A - Wz K BB 6 108,947 100,866
Selling and distribution costs HE Mo HEK AR (427,239) (487,752)
Administrative expenses THRRAX (145,226) (157,076)
Interest and investment income B KA E WA 7 69,002 69,234
Share of profit of a joint venture EiE—EEERE R 18 28,821 34,390
Share of (losses)/profits of associates FE( B R A)
(&18), &+ 17 (491,284) 339,760
Finance costs R KA 8 (32,649) —
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrALAT (E58), 5 A (98,248) 707,984
Taxation FRIE 9 (83,370) (140,102)
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (F18),/ %7 10 (181,618) 567,882
Other comprehensive income Hfth 2 E =
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to BEiRRIREEFT DR
profit or loss: Bm2HEA
Exchange differences arising on translation of BMEBINEBREEZ
foreign operations ME X Z 945
Other comprehensive income for the year REFEHM2E K 5 945
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year ~ ANFE2®E (%), Mz
4azE (181,613) 568,827
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: REFEENL(BR),
A
Owners of the Company VIN/NCIEZ V=N (83,516) 338,074
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR = (98,102) 229,808
(181,618) 567,882
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FEiEEmE (X)) s
attributable to: 4aEE -
Owners of the Company VIN/NCIEZ P =N (83,511) 339,019
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR = (98,102) 229,808
(181,613) 568,827
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/profit attributable K72 &1#H A (L
to owners of the Company (E18), % F 2z
k(&) &BF
Basic and diluted AR E#E RMB(0.057) RMBO0.222
13 | AK%(0.057)T AR#0.2227T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

at 31 December 2019 A —ZE— N F+=-_A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hE —N\F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
i AR¥F ARBETF T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB R&RE 14 4,816,760 4,211,465
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 2,754,640 —
Prepaid lease payments TENHEERIEA 16 — 2,224,965
Investments in associates REBENTMIEE 17 2,747,368 3,337,937
Investment in a joint venture R—EEETLEMNKLE 18 378,532 386,297
Properties under development ERPYE 19 1,228,242 1,044,417
Deferred tax assets BREFIBEE 20 10,913 —
Other receivables Hoth & Y IR 21 4,615 139,958
11,941,070 11,345,039
Current assets mENE E
Inventories 78 22 61,685 49 574
Prepaid lease payments AR ERRIE 16 — 65,775
Trade and other receivables JrE ST B 5 e L A B L
FIB 21 355,189 176,586
Amount due from a joint venture Bl —fRlaEdE
IR 23 2 30,584
Financial assets at fair value through profit BRATFER ABEZ
or loss SRVEE 24 480,980 540,860
Cash and cash equivalents B NREEEY 25 1,585,685 1,536,381
2,483,541 2,399,760
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade and other payables JRE A1 R 3RR e L At JE A
IR 26 1,035,755 931,992
Amount due to a joint venture B —Ra&EdE
IR 23 46,833 13,602
Amount due to a non-controlling ERWEAR—%
shareholder of subsidiaries JEVERE IR 2 5B 30 26,142 —
Tax payable FESTIE 33,169 56,201
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITIEE —
—FRNEH 27 30,000 10,000
Lease liabilities HEal 28 98,479 —
Contract liabilities amas 29 8,830 7,378
1,279,208 1,019,173

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued) %4 81 # ik i & ()
at31 December2019 A —ZE—NF+_-_A=+—8H

2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5 ARET T AREF T
Non-current liabilities ERBalE
Bank borrowings — RITIEE —
due after one year —F 12 R H 27 2,400,000 2,099,000
Lease liabilities HEaE 28 474,844 —
Deferred tax liabilities BEFRIBAE 20 20,650 32,382
Amount due to a non-controlling NNl
shareholder of subsidiaries JE4E B A% R 2 BN IE 30 —_ 44,296
2,895,494 2,175,678
10,249,909 10,549,948
Capital and reserves BEARRFEE
Share capital f& A 31 6,291 6,291
Reserves i@ 8,972,467 9,055,978
Equity attributable to owners of the VN/NCIE ¥ SN
Company = 8,978,758 9,062,269
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR 42(b) 1,271,151 1,487,679
10,249,909 10,549,948

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 158 were approved ~ S68E 158 E4r G B MEEEFTEN T =%
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2020 and = A=+ = B#/fEREERZE - WHTINES

are signed on its behalf by: REREZE:
Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas Ms. Chan Chor Ling, Amy
BB EE RER/E
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
HITE=S FRITES

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEREER

for the year ended 31 December 019 HZE _E— N E+ A=+ —HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAAREAEERS
Statutory
surplus Capital Capital Non-
Share Share reserve  redemption reserve  Translation Retained controlling
capital premium (note 32) reserve (note 32) reserve profits Total interests Total
EERS
LHE EX@E ERffE

:%3 BEE (Wit32) #E (Wit32) BHRE REEF @i FRRER @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETE ARETL ARETL ARETR AR%TT ARETR ARETRT AR¥TT ARETL
At 1 January 2018 RZZ2-\F-A-8B 6,884 6,940,01 100,914 - 35,568 (115,837) 2,110,664 9,078,284 1,362,016 10,440,300
Profit for the year RERER - - - - - - 338,074 338,074 229,808 567,882
Other comprehensive income for the year REREMZENE - - - - 945 - 945 - 945
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERERGER — — — — 945 338,074 339,019 229,808 567,827
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders B ZERBEREIRARE. - — - - - — — — (104,145) (104,145)
Transfer of reserves ERGE — — 13,705 — — (13,705) — — —
Repurchase of shares (note 31) Bl ERA EAGEX)) (593) (396,959) — 593 — — (593) (397,552) — (397,552)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 33) HENBAR (HE33) — — — 43151 (633) — 42518 — 42518

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE-\E+ZA=+-HR
—Z-N\5-A-8 6291 6543132 114,619 593 78719 (115,525 2434440 9,062,269 1,487,679 10,549,948
Loss for the year AEEER — — — — — — (83,516) (83,516) (98,102) (181,618)
Other comprehensive income for the year TEREMZENE - - - - 5 - 5 - 5

Total comprehensive (expense)/income KEE2E R/ MELE

for the year — — - - - 5 (83,516) (83511) (98,102) (181,613)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders B RFERRRERARE. — — - - - - - (118,426) (118,426)
Transfer of reserves BEGR - - 11,624 - - — (11,624) — - -
At 31 December 2019 WZZ-hF+-A=+-A 629 6,543,132 126,243 593 78719 (115,520) 2,339,300 8978758 1,211,151 10,249,909

FRPERERRAT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

for the year ended 31 December 019 B ZE - T — N F+ - A=+—HILFE

2019 2018
s —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBEFT
Operating activities e
(Loss)/profit before taxation B AT (E518), % A (98,248) 707,984
Adjustments for: EEHIAT AR
Interest income on bank deposits RITFER T EBMA (42,166) (21,146)
Interest income from a joint venture —HAEEREZFERA (958) (1,070)
Interest and investment income from financial BRATEFABRZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss TRIEENMIR
HEWRA (20,323) (39,283)
Interest income from loan receivables FEUE FREF B UA (5,555) (5,749)
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value BRATEFABRZ
through profit or loss TREENRERA - (250)
Net change in fair value of financial assets at fair BRATEFABRZ
value through profit or loss CREEATEE
FEE - (1,736)
Interest expense on lease liabilities REMER ST H 32,649 —
Unrealised exchange gain REIRE H s (1,949) (461)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERREITE 104,728 111,080
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 122,854 —
Release of prepaid lease payments AR ERIEE N - 17,193
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write off of property, plant HE MEDE  BER
and equipment REZ BB/ () 338 (22)
Share of profit of a joint venture Bl —FaBRERM (28,821) (34,390)
Share of (losses)/profits of associates FEREE 2N R) (E18),/
il 491,284 (339,760)
(Reversal of loss allowance)/loss allowance on AR z BEIEEEE
expected credit losses for trade receivables (BERERR), FE
BB (613) 1,681
Operating cash flows before movements in working }éz AeEPRKERE
capital mE 553,220 394,071
Increase in inventories FEEM (12,111) (7,519)
Increase in properties under development FRAYEEM (159,221) (121,397)
Increase in trade and other receivables JFE LS BR R 2 Lt B B
1210 (36,064) (10,717)
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to a joint venture B —FAELEFE
#=m/ (84 33,229 (30,759)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables JFE 1<F BR R 2 L At R £ 5008
#=m/ (84 134,157 (5.749)
Increase in contract liabilities BRBEEM 1,452 3,640
Cash generated from operations REXBHEES 514,662 221,570
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BB BNEN — (530)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB ERER (129,047) (137,958)
Net cash from operating activities REEBEH 2 FR 385,615 83,082
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) %5 R &R B X (F)
for the year ended 31 December 019 B ZE — T — N F+_A=+—BILFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBF T
Investing activities REEE
Interest received on bank deposits BURRITERZHE 43,459 17,484
Dividend received from an associate H—EHBEARZEWKRE 99,285 92,683
Dividend received from a joint venture R—BRECEZEWKRE 36,586 39,340
Interest received from a joint venture R-—EEELEZEURFE 1,542 486
Dividend received from financial assets at fair value REERTEF AERZ
through profit or loss SRMEEZEWRE — 250
Interest income and investment income received from  #EAFEFAEEZ
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss SMEE 2 EWABKA
REBEKBA 18,002 40,698
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BEKERE (582,996) (481,507)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value ~ HEEAFEFAEBTEZ
through profit or loss SREEMBRA 3,666,270 7,417,561
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit ~ BE&ZRAFEFAEZEZ
or loss TREE (3,606,390) (7,101,920)
Repayment of loan from a joint venture —HEECEZERER 120,000 30,000
Loan advance to a joint venture m—EABLENBNER (90,000) (30,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HENE  BEREE
equipment {3 RE 713 183
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities REEY(FIA)/F5HSE
R (293,529) 25,258
Financing activities BMEEY
New bank borrowings raised HERTEE 331,000 738,798
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (10,000) (5,000)
Proceed from disposal of a subsidiary HE R RFEHE - 34,275
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders BEZ2T TS (18,154) (45,499)
Repayments of principal elements of leases liabilities BEHEERGBIREHH (92,999) —
Interest on leases liabilities paid HEABEZEINAE (32,649) —
Other interest paid BX T EAMFS (103,507) (77,001)
Repurchase of shares B8R T 2 13K — (397,552)
Dividend paid to non-controlling shareholders BRI 44 IR IR AR R AR B (118,426) (104,145)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities mEEH A/ ERe
ik (44,735) 143,876
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BE& MRS EEYIEINFE 47,351 252,216
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FNHRERASEEY 1,536,381 1,280,755
Effect of foreign exchange rate difference EREE s FB 1,953 3,410
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FREGRASEEYD 1,585,685 1,536,381

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TR R R M R

for the year ended 31 December 019 B ZE - T — N F+ - A=+—HILFE

74

General

Lifestyle China Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law in the Cayman Islands on 4 January 2016 and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are set out in section headed
"Corporate Information” to the annual report. The Company acts as
an investment holding company and the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are the operation of "Jiuguang” department stores and
related retailing business in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC").

The Company’s ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lau Luen Hung,
Thomas (“Mr. Lau”), who is also the Chairman and executive director
of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of those
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presently unless
otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance ("HKCO") (Cap. 622).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
historical cost basis, except for the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), which are measured at fair
value. The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
to the current year's presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 019 B ZE — T — N F+_A=+—BIFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

(i)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation issued by
the HKICPA for the first time in the current year:

HKAS 19 Plan amendment, curtailment or
(Amendment) settlement

HKAS 28 Long-term investments in
(Amendment) associates and joint ventures

HKFRS ¢ Prepayment features with
(Amendment) negative compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK (IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over income tax

treatments

Annual Annual improvement 2015-2017
improvement cycle
project

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs and the interpretation in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and position for the
current and prior year and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases” — Impact of adoption

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019,
resulting in changes in accounting policies and
adjustments to the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. In accordance with
the transition provisions in HKFRS 16, the Group has
adopted the simplified approach for transition to the
new lease standard. The reclassification and the
adjustments arising from the new rules are therefore
not reflected in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, but are recognised in
the opening consolidated statement of financial
position on 1 January 2019.

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)

for the year ended 31 December 2019 # & —

T-NF+-A=T-ALEE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” — Impact of adoption (Continued)

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously
been classified as “operating leases”
principles of HKAS 17 “Leases”.
measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The weighted
average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to
the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was 4.9%.

under the
These liabilities were

2

TESTERBE (&)

(a)

mREE ()
(i)  REFEBHLERZHETRAZ
15T BRI B HEER (F)

BB A ERIE 1695 [
B — IRy 2 ()
T%Té%%:%ﬁﬁi‘%¥ﬁ%$E'J%1é%ﬁ
% AEEFBTIEEESE
ERE17TRIAE ] 2 R A5
HAMKEHEINHEERER
HEAE- EZ%EE&@%T%‘E
ENRAIREEITETE - WF
BAERBAAR_ZE—NF—A—
BEIEEEEMEELAR -
R-ZE—hF—A—HHEs
B AR AR AMEF Y S
ERFEELI% -

RMB’000
ARBT
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at RZZE-—NF+ZA=1+T—H#%KE
31 December 2018 B AS & TE B AR 861,700
Lease liabilities discounted using the lessee’s RARZRER R R AR AL E
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial ERNEFRR2HEAE
application 667,330
Less: short-term leases not recognised as a liability J&l : THER ABEMNEHHAE (275)
Less: low value leases not recognised as a liability &l : THERABENEEEHE (733)
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 RZT-NF—A—RERZ
HEAE 666,322
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The associated right-of-use assets were measured at
the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018.
There were no onerous lease contracts that would have
required an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

’
s | ;X',

A

HEERREENREEAE
WEESEE  WIRER -
- N\F+-_A=1t—B8RKE
EMBAREANERNEESR
B R TR SRR E 5K
TRETAE - RYIRERB
- WEARBIGEOHEES
Fl - FREAEEEFL S

#® o

B-_F-h&—A—R8 #HE
ERAEREEE  YRHEE
BEAIHAKEERZ AR
HERE - BEHESNHTID
REEREMBERA - BEK
$EATEE§W§%§£T%?D[‘$ PAEt
Fh A ESHRNEER
M - (EREEETIREE
ERFRAEEFH (AR
RERE)NBELENE -

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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for the year ended 31 December 2019 # =

CE-NF+ A=+ -HIEFE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

(i)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” — Impact of adoption (Continued)

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by
the standard:

J the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

o reliance on previous assessments on whether
leases are onerous; and

J the exclusion of initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application.

The adjustments on the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2019 are summarised
below:

2 FESTHEEBE (&)

(a)

31 December

fmELEE ()
(i)  REFEEHLERZHETRAZ
1B BRI B EER ()

BB EERE 1655 1
B —R®mZ & (F)
E/\éxx\}gﬁﬁﬁ/’éﬁﬁ%# EE
E165  AEECEAENT
AFFOATERAIITIE -

. HEASERUSER
Tﬂ SHACRAE B

. RIBAERHEHEGEE
B ARG - &

. TR 2 B MR
EFREEENTNRE
B ©

N\—_E-NE-A-RZKEA
BIRRR 2 BB T

2018 Effect of 1 January
Consolidated Statement of (as originally adoption of 2019
Financial Position (extract) presented) HKFRS 16 (restated)
FREMBMRRE () —ZE-N\F
+=A RRE B —E-NF
=+—H8 MEHREEL —H—H
(MEERZF) FH16HE2TE (E3)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT AREFTT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Right-of-use assets FREERE — 2,926,075 2,926,075
Prepaid lease payments BERAENR 2,224,965 (2,224,965) —
Current assets REEE
Prepaid lease payments EREERK 65,775 (65,775) —
Non-current liabilities EREBARE
Lease liabilities HEBE — (573,322) (573,322)
Current liabilities REBERE
Lease liabilities HEBE — (93,000) (93,000)
Trade and other payables FETBRT &Eﬁﬂ
e A (931,992) 30,987 (901,005)
1,358,748 — 1,358,748
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

78

(ii)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

New standards and amendments

32 B AE ET

2

TESTERBE (&)

(a) MHmEEEE)

(i) BB RENZ TR
1T E B BIREER
AEEHAKRIREFEAUTES
MR 1B B AR AR 2 T E] REEEET
BRI MELE R HZRE

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RTS AR AR ZEH
B

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(amendments)

BB ERE 1R BB ER
ERTACCHIEN)

BANWEZ

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9
(amendments)

BB QT ERFEI9%  BBUBHRE
HRIET R R BB B RELERE
95% (5T )

LRy

HKFRS 3 (amendment)

EREPBERSEREIR(EFTER) EBHNER

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

“E - N\FHBRENDIER

HKFRS 17

BBV BRELENE1T5 REREXD

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(amendments)

Hedge accounting

Insurance contracts

Definition of material

Definition of a business

Revised conceptual framework
for financial reporting

SR B & BRI R —E-ETF—-H—H

Sale or contribution of assets

1 January 2020

1 January 2020
—F-FF-A—H

1 January 2020

1 January 2021
—F-—%—-A—H

To be announced

between an investor and its

associate or joint venture

EEVBREENFI0RLB LG REERABER
ZHENEBEELERTE

R FE 285k (IBRTAN)

Management is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new standards and amendments
in the period of initial application. These new standards
and amendments are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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2

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group's and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS
39 or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

Investments in associates and a joint venture

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and a joint
venture are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and a joint venture used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group's share of losses of an associate or
joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)
Investments in associates and a joint venture (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are not
related to the Group.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Consolidation (continued)

Separate financial statements (continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position where the
Group currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but
still allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain
circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK

2 FESTHEEBE (&)

(b)

(c)

=RE (&

BB ()

fid 9 Bf /B8 2 =) W ER B BB R 1 A% Y
BRARREIREEMENLGRA KRS
A ARARENB LM B RE
) BR (B (B AR A M IS AR R A
TRERETNFEE (BEBEE)W
FREEE - BIZARWERZ R SR
KRB AR MR EREETRER

Al e

HELHT A
EAREEREATAIRITRIA
HKECERESE  WHEEEIRFHE
EEZEERREREENEER
ER - IS B EME E R B AR
WHEMBEARERREL FEE - A&
BN AR A EEN T ER
TESBHIER DA SRS
PNt E kAR IE & 4T -

REFEFEHHKA

REBBEWBEREERE155H - A
SENERELE T (Fpti) #
RUWA - IR ERNEEHED
BmH RGN I EETERP

B o

BHEERRTEL— I ABHA

1= O

R E & MR (3 —HFEmk
AR%) -
IR RE B P - M ERCAT

Hep—fE &M AIRA 2 RERE
MBEETRIZE - BER R

. REBBAE - &P R YE
FOBFEA S B B iR LA R

. REBELABERIEFNA
SEBAORMEFPEHNE
X

. AEBEAOL EAEH ANEE
SEREMEE  RAKEYH
BEZBACBEONNSREER
HIERTT RO BRI

83




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl ZE —E — W F+_A=+—HILFE

2

84

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

For direct sales of goods, revenue is recognised when control
of the goods has transferred, being at the point the customer
purchases the goods at the department stores.

For income from concessionaire sales, the Group recognises
commission income over time which it is entitled and is based
on certain percentage of sales made by the concessionaires in
accordance with the terms of contracts. When they fail to
meet the minimum guarantee income in accordance with the
terms of certain contracts, the minimum guarantee amount is
recognised as income as it is the amount that the Group has
the right to receive.

For service income, it represents income from concessionaires
for displaying their products and billboards in department
stores. The revenue is recognised over time by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation when the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations including obligation to provide goods or services
to customers on complementary basis and customer’s options
to acquire additional goods or services for free or at a
discount in future granted under loyalty reward program, the
Group allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation on a relative standalone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a
customer.

Accounting for unredeemed gift certificates and reward
points under customer loyalty program

The unredeemed gift certificates and reward points under
customer loyalty program is recorded as contract liabilities,
and reflect the value that is expected to be redeemed, i.e.
anticipated breakage.

Breakage will need to be estimated considering the guidance
on constraining estimates of variable consideration as well as
the Group's historical experience with gift certificates and
loyalty points under loyalty reward program. Revenue is
recognised in regard to breakage in the proportion of gift
certificates and loyalty points redeemed in that period and
likely to result in the acceleration of revenue when the
possibility of redemption becomes remote.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(c)

86

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
recognises the amount of consideration to which it is entitled
using the most likely amount, which better predicts the
amount of consideration to which the Group is entitled.

The amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable
that such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

The Group updates the estimated transaction price based on
issued statements to consignors and concessionaires
(including assessment of whether the variable consideration is
constrained) to represent fairly the circumstances present at
the end of the reporting period.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the
other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified goods or
services before these good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified goods or services by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
these goods or services is transferred to the customers. When
the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

The Group acts as an agent for concessionaire as the Group

does not control the specific goods provided by the
concessionaires before goods transferred to a customers.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy.

Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
(other than construction in progress) less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

ltems of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated after taking into
account their estimated residual value, using straight-line
method over the following useful lives:

Buildings Over the shorter of lease terms or
40 years

Leasehold Over the shorter of lease terms or
improvements 10 years

Plant and machinery ~ 5to 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the depreciation of
right-of-use assets provided during the construction period is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The cost comprises right-of-use
assets, development and construction expenditure, borrowing
costs capitalised and other direct costs attributable to the
development. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price at which the property can be realised less related
expenses.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Such determination is made on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement, regardless of whether
the arrangements take the legal form of a lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as right-of-use
assets and the corresponding lease liabilities at the dates at
which the leased assets are available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
Leases (continued)

()

(i)

Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
and

J payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if

the lease term reflects the Group, as a lessee,
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined,
or the Group's incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate that the Group would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a
similar economic environment with similar term and
condition.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the Group as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, which does not have
recent third party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until
effective. When adjustments to lease payments based
on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
Leases (continued)

(f)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Lease liabilities (continued)

Lease payments are allocated between the principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the followings:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentive
received;

. any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

The right-of-use assets are amortised over the shorter
of the assets’ useful lives and the lease terms on a
straight-line basis.

Right-of-use assets linked to owner occupied buildings
are measured applying the cost model relevant to that
specific class of property, plant and equipment.

Low value and short-term lease

Payments associated with all leases of low-value assets,
mainly office equipment, and short-term leases are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
Leases (continued)

()

(iv)

The Group as lessor

Rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2018

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land under operating leases, are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as
a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
(f) Leases (continued)

(iv)

The Group as lessor (continued)

Leasehold land and buildings

When the Group makes payment for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to
the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire property is
accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
property is generally classified as if the leasehold land is
under finance lease.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive expense and
accumulated in equity and will be reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(h)

@i

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based
on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
before taxation because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

0]

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
investments in associates and a joint venture, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The Group considers the lease as a single transaction in which
the asset and liability are integrally linked, so there is no net
temporary difference at inception. Subsequently, as
differences arise on settlement of the liability and the
amortisation of the leased asset, there will be a net temporary
difference on which deferred tax is recognised.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

0]

Impairment losses on non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its non-financial assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of non-financial assets are estimated
individually, or when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVOCI")
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit impaired.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI or designated as
FVOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss is included in the "interest and investment
income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
loss ("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9 (including trade and
other receivables and bank balances). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL
associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised cost
and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and lease receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see note 37 for further details.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment
grade’ as per globally understood definitions.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when the instrument is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over one year past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(k)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade and other
payables, amount due to a joint venture and amount due to a
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

U]

(m)

(n)

(o)

104

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(p)

(q)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised for benefits
accruing to employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM"). The CODM, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the chief
executive of the Company that makes strategic decisions.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Trade
and other receivables are generally due for settlement within
30 days and therefore are all classified as current.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes
cash on hand and deposits held at call with financial
instruments and short-term bank deposits with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on
the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case,
the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.

To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial
position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance
costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liabilities
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.
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3  Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Significant estimates and assumptions concerning the future may be
required in selecting and applying accounting methods and policies
in these financial statements. The Group bases its estimates and
assumptions on historical experience and various other assumptions
that it believes are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual
results may differ from these estimates or assumptions.

The following is a review of the more significant estimates and
assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements.

(a) Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward
tax losses
As at 31 December 2019, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses of approximately RMB645.1
million (2018: RMB680.1 million), respectively. The recognition
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future assessable profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the
estimated future assessable profits or taxable temporary
difference are more than previously estimated, a material
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which the revised
estimate takes place.

(b) Provision of ECL of trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on internal
credit ratings/past due status as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based
on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
are considered. In addition, trade receivables with significant
balances and credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The

information about the Group's trade receivables and the ECL
are disclosed in notes 21 and 37 respectively.
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Revenue

Revenue represents the amount received and receivable for goods
sold by the Group to external customers, net of discounts and sales
related taxes, income from concessionaire sales, service income and
rental income during the year, and is analysed as follows:

L ON
WARRAEEFARAIABTHEE M
B B UK e R LR TR AT 0 B 5 B AR R AR
B REFFEEHEZBA - REKA
ARAERA - AT

2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBEF T

Recognised at a point in time: EEERBDRERD
Sales of goods — direct sales ERHE —BEHEE 465,752 453,950

Recognised over time: BEE R ER

Income from concessionaire sales REBHFEBEHEE ZWA 616,263 608,908
Service income ARG U A 38,007 39,053
Revenue from contracts with customers KEBFPAHZWA 1,120,022 1,101,911
Rental income HEWA 84,035 81,841
Total revenue FEN N 1,204,057 1,183,752

The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources
which arise from contracts with customers:

o For sales of goods, revenue is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred to customers, being at the point the
customer purchases goods at department stores. Payment of
transaction price is due immediately at the point the customer
purchases the goods.

o Income from concessionaire sales is generated from sales of
goods by the relevant concessionaires based on certain
percentage of sales in accordance with the terms of contracts.
When the concessionaires fail to meet the minimum
guarantee income in accordance with the terms of contracts,
the minimum guarantee amount is recognised as income. The
Group recognised revenue in the net amount of consideration
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for the
service, which is the commission it is entitled upon the sale of
goods by the concessionaire. The concessionaire
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the
Group's performance in processing each sales transaction as
and when each transaction is processed.

o Service income is generated from the Group's promotion,
product display and billboards services at its department
stores. Such services are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time.
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Segment information

The Group's operating activities are attributable to a single
operating segment under HKFRS 8 “"Operating Segments” focusing
on operation of department stores, retailing and related business.
This operating segment has been identified on the basis of internal
management reports prepared in accordance with accounting
policies conform to HKFRSs as disclosed in Note 2, that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (“"CODM") (i.e. the
chief executive of the Company). The CODM regularly reviews
revenue analysis and the profit for the year of the Group as a whole
to make decisions about resource allocation. Accordingly no
separate segment information other than entity-wide information is
presented.

The Group has no customers that contributed over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group for the year (2018: Same).

Geographical information
Analysis of the Group's revenue and non-current assets by
geographical locations are detailed below:

REBEBEBVEREER B [LEDE -
AEENKEEBRRE K208 &
AREAEE TERBBEBET I
REDEINME2FRE - RIBNAEE
BB EENN ST HRREABEER
EHE YHEELERARA((EFRLE
READAVRRBNERENTE) EHNE
Bl - BEEREARAEHEHEEXENT
RAEBBERBFENEM  AEHERDE
RE - R E 25 B R-ERASNY A5
D HEPE R -

RAFEE  AEETEZSEMBAANE
BB A10% (=T —\E : BR) °

& E R
RETEMEE D 2 AREBRARIERSE
ESWIT

2019 2018
—E-NF T\
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBETF T
Revenue KA

Hong Kong BE — 33,951
The PRC # 1,204,057 1,149,801
Total @E 1,204,057 1,183,752

Non-current asset (note) FEREBEE (HEF)
The PRC i 8,804,257 7,616,170

Note: Non-current assets excluded investments in associates, investment in a joint

venture and deferred tax assets.
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6  Other income, gains and losses H A ~ R EE
2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBFT
Management fee income BEIEEWA 47,971 48,747
Credit card recharges ERRERARE 23,907 20,853
Project income HE WA 1,374 1,853
Government subsidies (note) B 8 B (B aE) 9,040 9,866
Net exchange gain VI H U A 1,949 461
Income from suppliers and lessees KB E R MR TE AR UL A 7,611 8,590
Others HAith 17,095 10,496
108,947 100,866
Note: B 5E -
The amount represents government subsidies received from the PRC local ZemeTEMmTERETOBRNHEE  EREE
authorities for subsidising its operational activities and promotional activities EETEEBEHRSERREETHNME) - AR
conducted by the Group. All of them had no specific condition attached. B I 48 A fo] 455 5 B A0 AR
7 Interest and investment income 7 FEREKREWA
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREEF T
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZFBUWA 42,166 21,341
Interest income from a joint venture KE—HEABCEZFNEWRA 958 1,070
Change in fair value of financial assets at RATEFAEGZ EREE
FVTPL 2R EEE — 1,736
Dividend income from financial assets at BAFEFABRZEREE
FVTPL ZIRBUW A — 250
Interest and investment income from BAFEFABRZEREE
financial assets at FVTPL Z B REERA 20,323 39,283
Interest income from loan receivables EUE REFE WA 5,555 5,554
69,002 69,234
110 Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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8 Finance costs 8 mERALX
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETTT
Interests on: B
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 104,101 77,832
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 32,649 —
136,750 77,832
Less: Amounts capitalised in construction in & : IWEE T2 N ERA Y
progress and properties under ERoHE
development (104,101) (77,832)
32,649 —

The capitalised borrowing costs represent the borrowing costs

incurred on borrowings whose funds were specifically invested in the

construction in progress and properties under development during

the year. The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of

borrowing costs to be capitalised is the interest rate applicable to

the Group's specific borrowings during the year, i.e. 4.41%-4.46%

(2018: 4.41%—4.46%).

BEREERARIEARFEFANRERER
FREIBNEEFMENEBEESHES
WEERAR - ARETEHTERENER
RASENENMCE R BARAIEBFR
BEERZAE BN440%4.46% (- =

— )\ : 4.41%4.46%) ©

9 Taxation 9 HIE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBETF T
The tax charge comprises: BIAXHBETFIEE
Current tax: RNERFRIA -
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBMISH - 1,369
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ZERTIS TR 120,977 114,631
Withholding tax FEMF 3,412 23,150
124,389 139,150
Under/(over) provision in prior years: BREFETRES
(BZEE)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EPTIET 11 -
Withholding tax SCEI (18,385) —
(18,374) —
Deferred tax (credit)/charge (note 20) RERTE (WA, T H
(P 7£20) (22,645) 952
83,370 140,102
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12

Taxation (continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following
day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% for the current year (2018: Same).

No provision for taxation in other jurisdictions has been made as the
Group has no assessable taxable profits arising from operations
outside Hong Kong and PRC.

Tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

BiE (&)

RZTE—-NE=A=-+—B FELES
BBT _T—EFRBUERD(ETR) K
PIER([EFIER])  ZIEHIERSIAT
MARAFISHAEGE - ZERR T
—N\FZAZ+NBEEXBEE TR
RBATEERTE o B IE MRS F 5 6
B AEREBEERNE2EEBTHBE
1%8.25% % - MIBB2E B8 T 7 8l
BIZ16.5%EH o TRE MR HIF SR E
FIEREEE B EER165%H E TR
KR -

RIBFBEDERETOE ((REMBBED
M ERABPRBREN - RAFEF
MEARKRER25%(ZF—/\F :
@) -

AEBIWEBEERPREAINL M BEEEE
BHEBELERTGHN - WL B EAE
H R -

AEERBAXHEFEER MEM2EK
AR PIRER T A A 2 S BRI T

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBEF T
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRAAT (E518), & (98,248) 707,984
Tax at applicable income tax rate of 25% IRAE TR 25%1E 2 Fi1E (24,562) 176,996
Tax effect of share of profit of a joint BH—EAELERN ZTIE
venture 2 (7,205) (8,598)
Tax effect of share of profits of associates ~ FEL & A &la F 2 FIB 52 122,821 (84,940)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BAERMIRA 2 AR &
purpose (4,165) (9,054)
Tax effect of expense not deductible fortax AT TS 2 FHIBEFE
purpose 5,736 11,924
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERHEEE2HEFE 25,186 31,939
Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses PAFAARRTREBEZH
previously not recognised B - (1,734)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ TEH fth 5;A & EERE (@ 452 2 [t
operating in other jurisdictions BRARTRME 2 RIEZE — (539)
Over provision in prior years BEFEBZEE (18,374) —
Withholding tax TER (8,320) 24,108
Tax effect of previously unrecognised ERIREROEREEZE 2
temporary differences k3% - (7,747) —
Tax charge for the year REFHIAX M 83,370 140,102

s |
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10 (Loss)/profit for the year 10 ZAEE(F1E) 53

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥F T ARETTT
(Loss)/profit for the year has been arrived at  ANF [& (E518),5& F 2 0k~
after charging/(crediting): (FEA) THIEE -
Directors’ remuneration (note 11): FEM (F:E11) -
Fees ik 702 673
Salary and allowances e KoRAk 6,335 6,070
Bonus 4T — 8,868
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R K4& FJ 5+ & £ 5% 4 15
7,041 15,626
Other staff costs, excluding retirement BRIR KRR AT B AN 2 E At
benefits scheme contributions BIKA 151,635 161,928
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, R K& B FORL W E T
net of forfeited contributions for staff R 6,772 6,752
158,407 168,680
Total staff costs BB TRRA 165,448 184,306
Auditor’s remuneration % BN & 3,505 3,271
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERREZFTE
equipment 104,728 111,080
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZIFE 122,854 —
(Reversal of loss allowance)/loss allowance & BR FX 2 TB HA{= F /&5 18 (38
on expected credit losses for Bl 1R EE) EEEE
trade receivables (613) 1,681
Expenses related to variable lease RN TF-HEEREAE
payments to a joint venture HER KB EHFRZ 43,527 —
Rental expenses under operating lease in BN THE T RIETF
respect of leasehold land and MATATZHERAY
buildings to:
—a joint venture — —aErE — 160,574
— other parties — Hfh AL — 16,996
Loss/(gain) on disposal/write off of HE/MRWE - BE KR
property, plant and equipment EiE (W) 338 (22)
Expenses relating to low-value leases REEBEEEZHEBEMRX 16 —
Expenses relating to short-term leases REHEZEERX 1,088 —
Cost of inventories recognised as expense TR AN H 2 FEKA 376,819 333,888
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11 Directors’, chief executive’s and employees’ 11 EX - HFRYUTEREEME
remuneration
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed R A A E AR A R BB R REDI 8 R
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies WAFEEERERNITEMNEOT :
Ordinance, is as follows:
2019 —E-hF
Non-
Executive Executive
Director Director Independent Non-Executive Directors
BTEE FHTES BIFHTES
Lau Luen Lam Cheung
Hung, Chan Chor Kwong  Yuet Man, Cheung
Thomas*  Ling, Amy Wai Raymond Mei Han Total
EIE el RER PRRE RIRSC RER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTT ARWBTRT AR®TRT AR®TR AR¥TR AR®TR
Fees e 174 132 132 132 132 702
Other emoluments Hb &
Salaries and allowances Fre RER 6,335 - - - — 6,335
Contributions to retirement RRRE ARG B
benefits schemes 4 — — — — 4
Total emoluments [t 6,513 132 132 132 132 7,041
2018 —E-N\F
Non-
Executive Executive
Director Director Independent Non-Executive Directors
WTEE FHTEE BUFMTESR
Lau Luen Lam Cheung
Hung,  Chan Chor Kwong Yuet Man, Cheung
Thomas* Ling, Amy Wai Raymond Mei Han Total
Elodey RER AR IR SRS 1 BEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARBTT AREFT AR®TIT AREFTT AREFT
Fees we 169 126 126 126 126 673
Other emoluments Hin# <
Salaries and allowances e M2 6,070 — — — — 6,070
Bonus* T4 8,868 — — — — 8,868
Contributions to retirement RRE R B R
benefits schemes 15 — — — — 15
Total emoluments iy 15,122 126 126 126 126 15,626
* The bonus is determined having regard to the Group's and the executive * AN SR ERBARERATESESS
director’s performance for each of the reporting period. BmEBnRAMmMEE -
# Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, is also the chief executive of the Company. ‘ BISBEEMERRFNERNITE ©
114 Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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11

Directors’, chief executive’s and employees’ 1
remuneration (continued)

The executive director's emoluments shown above were for his
services as the chief executive in connection with the management

of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

During the current year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2018: Same). None of the
directors has waived any remuneration during the year (2018: Same).
Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019, one of them (2018: one) was a director of the
Company whose remuneration is disclosed above and the remaining
four (2018: four) are employees of the Group, details of whose
remuneration were as follows:

EX -ERUTEREEMS

(&)

NERERERATERAARARAEE
BETHEHRE ZATESME

A ERBRARBUEREEEE BN
TEERBIFNTEEME -

RAFE  AEBYEARARBEEZM
e - ARSI REMAREBHAERMA
AEE B LBERAHE(ZT—/\F :
) RAFE REEENRITAME

(ZZ2—-N\F:HR) - &=

—E-NF+Z

A=Zt—HLEE AEERERSFHA
T —R(ZE-N\F: —R)RERQF
BEx RMER EXERBERAINES (=
T)\F:OR)MK/AEERRS  KELZ

e IEEImT

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®BT ARBETF T
Employees: ’E :

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R R HMEF 3,586 4,120

Retirement benefits scheme RREFIFT B
contributions 148 144
Performance related incentive payments B RIFEMY IS 3,072 2,799
6,806 7,063

The number of the five highest paid individuals of the Group whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FEBLEESHFALTZHFMNTFLATE

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000
HK$17,000,001 to HK$17,500,000

1,000,0017% 7T % 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,0017% 7T % 2,000,000/ 7T
2,500,0017% 7T 2 3,000,000/% 7T
3,000,001 7T, 2 3,500,0007% 7T
7,000,0017% 7T £ 7,500,000/% 7T
17,000,001 7% 7T & 17,500,000/ 7T

:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

A AEL
2 1

1 2

1 J—

— 1

1 J—

— 1

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no remuneration was
paid by the Group to the four highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2018: Same).

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK

BE-_T-NAF+-_A=+—HLFE"
AEBEYEANERHEEXSHE -
AR 5| REMAAR KRB RERMAREE
ZESABMBHE (ST N\F : ERA) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl ZE —E — W F+_A=+—HILFE

12 Dividends 12

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: nil).

13 (Loss)/earnings per share 13
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

(Loss)/earnings figures are calculated as follows:

@S

BE-—E-—NE+-_A=+—BILFE-
AR FAR A 1% 1 AR AR U 4 3 5 R AR

B(CZE-N\F: 8-

R (E8) BT

ARABHEAEARESRESNEE (B
18),/BRIREBEATHEMAE

(E18), / BMNBEFAEMT :

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARBTT
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to A ETRERREE
owners of the Company for the purpose (B518),/ BHim s 2 A28
of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings WA AEHANEE (F8R),/
per share ikl (83,516) 338,074
Number of shares R EE
2019 2018
—E-h#EF —ZT-N\F
‘000 ‘000
TR Fix
Weighted average number of ordinary M EERER L EE
shares for the purpose of basic and (B518), BH Z mik
diluted (loss)/earnings per share 15 E A BB 1,464,449 1,520,780

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2019 equals to the basic (loss)/earnings per share as
there are no potential dilutive ordinary shares to issue during the
year (2018: Same).

116

‘A N

BE_ZT-NF+-_A=+t—BLFEN
BarEik (BR), BRSHRERER (&
18),/8F - TYRRFERRA EEEE AT #
BETER(ZZE—\F  ER) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 019 B ZE — T — N F+_A=+—BIFE

14 Property, plant and equipment 14 Y- -BERRE

Leasehold Furniture,
improve- Plantand fixtures and Motor  Construction
Buildings ments machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
HE B EE
BF NERE HEREE RERRAE AE ERIE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AREFR ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARETR
Cost BE
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\§-A—H 2,174,943 727479 156,931 62,126 7,009 1,813,058 4,941,546
Exchange adjustment EHRE - 354 17 103 - — 574
Additions NE — 16 110 2,366 440 524,071 527,103
Disposals/write-off HE /s — - (127) (398) (926) — (1,451)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FMEAR — (10999) (3,654) (4,612) - — (19,265)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+ZA=+-H 2,174,943 716,950 153,377 59,585 6,523 2,337,129 5,448,507
Additions RE — — 2149 2,864 14 707,947 711,074
Disposals/urite-off HE /s - (635) (409) 2372 (1,209) — 4,625)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+=A=t-8H 2,174,943 716,315 153,217 60,077 5,328 3,045,076 6,154,956
Depreciation il
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-A—-H 429,433 577,617 83,824 49,539 4,594 — 1,145,007
Exchange adjustment EREE — 348 111 202 — — 661
Provided for the year FRNE 62330 37,484 7,933 2,842 491 — 111,080
Disposals/write-off HE /M8 — — (114) (323) (853) — (1,290)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBLA — (10,809) (3,452) (4,155) — — (18,416)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+ZA=+—H 491,763 604,640 88,302 48,105 4,232 — 1,237,042
Provided for the year ERFE 70,059 24,831 7458 1,934 446 — 104,728
Disposals/write-off k=% — — (354) (2,131) (1,089) — (3,574)
At 31 December 2019 RZF-AF+ZA=1-H 561,822 629471 95,406 47908 3589 — 1,338,196
Net book values FRHFE
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AF+-A=+—H 1613121 86,844 57,811 12,169 1739 3,045,076 4,816,760
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+ZA=+-H 1,683,180 112,310 65,075 11,480 2,291 2,337,129 4,211,465

Included in construction in progress are borrowing costs capitalised
during the year, amounting to RMB79,497,000 (2018: RMB59,460,000).

Depreciation expense for the year includes RMB104,728,000
provided for property, plant and equipment and RMB122,854,000
provided for right-of-use assets. Depreciation expense of
RMB27,297,000 (2018: RMB4,657,000) has been expensed in cost of
sales, RMB190,717,000 (2018: RMB95,617,000) in selling and
distribution costs and RMB9,568,000 (2018: RMB10,806,000) in
administrative expenses respectively.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK

ERIEREFREERNMEZEERAA
R #79,497,000L (ZZE—NF: ARK
59,460,0007T) ©

REEZWERIBEADE  BE MK
BIEH 2 B E &5 AR 104,728,0007T
IR AFEREEEFELZBESEARE
122,854,0007T ° & 58 & A R #27,297,000
TT(=ZZ—\F : AR¥4,657,0007T) Z 9T
ERSERBEERETFIZH  ARK
190,717,000 (Z T —\F : AR
95,617,0007T) B R $H & J2 5 S5 A AR R 32
- T AREE9,568,0007T (ZZE— \4F : A
R #10,806,0007T) BRI TE RS P 48 ©

BE-Z-NF—-—A—HE BHHEEEA

HAEEERZ AL HEERHERE
BE - RNEREEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl ZE —E — W F+_A=+—HILFE

15

18

Right-of-use assets

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position

15 EREEE
REAHBRARCEINSHE

2019
—E-NEF
Land Buildings Total
T i BF et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®T R AR¥T T

Cost BN

— adoption of HKFRS 16 — MBI SR

(refer note 2) FE165% (2 M5E2) 2,290,740 635,335 2,926,075

Accumulated depreciation R E — — —
Net book value at 1st January R—A—HZEEFE 2,290,740 635,335 2,926,075
Depreciation charge neEs (17,190) (105,664) (122,854)
Amount capitalised in construction in  FEEZ TR E KL &8

progress (48,581) —_ (48,581)
Net book value at 31 December R+ A=+—BZ&KMA

A 2,224,969 529,671 2,754,640

Cost [DEN 2,290,740 635,335 2,926,075
Accumulated depreciation BETITE (17,190) (105,664) (122,854)
Amount capitalised in construction in  FEE TR E KL &8

progress (48,581) —_ (48,581)

2,224,969 529,671 2,754,640

X .

’
—I;X', "

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2019




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 019 B ZE — T — N F+_A=+—BIFE

16 Prepaid lease payments
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise land use right in the

16 ENHEERE
AEEENEEREREMRREN T

PRC: i A
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFT
At 1 January (as previously reported) R—A—HB (s aE®E) 2,290,740 2,356,515
Transfer to right-of-use assets upon BRNE BV S mEER
adoption of HKFRS 16 (note 2) FIFEREFRHEEE
(PM3E2) (2,290,740) —
At 1 January (as restated) BN—A—B(&E5]) —_ 2,356,515
Amortisation #iH - (65,775)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H — 2,290,740
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEBREHINA
Current portion HIEEE ) — 65,775
Non-current portion JERNEF B — 2,224,965
— 2,290,740

Details of pledge of assets are set out in note 39.

17 Investments in associates

EEMAE Y AR ELMME39 -
17 REEQXTNERE

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT R ARBFT

Unlisted, at cost LT BRA 1,228,800 1,228,800
Discount arising on acquisition of PR FE U — A2 Q7

additional interest in an associate in prior  FAIMEZSEL 2 TR

years 98,416 98,416
Gain arising on deemed disposal of interest 13 [&] 1 & — R B & A Bl i s M

in an associate EAz W 11,297 11,297
Share of post-acquisition profits and other ~ FE{EUEER Z 8 FI R E M 2™

comprehensive income, net of dividends Iz + FBR A% B 1,408,855 1,999,424

2,747,368 3,337,937

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl ZE —E — W F+_A=+—HILFE

17 Investments in associates (continued) 17 E’\‘Hﬁ-‘ ERAINKRE (&)
At 31 December 2019, the Group had interests in the following ZE-NFTZA=+—80 KxEER
associates (2018: Same): T Bt E AR A ER(ZE—\F : 18
F) :
Place/country of Proportion of nominal value
Form of business establishment/ Principal place of of issued capital/ Proportion of voting
Name of entity structure incorporation operation registered capital power held Principal activities
AL R BRTRE/
EEERE £BERES 8/ AR TELE Y SMBRAEELF R ERELA TREH
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-hE —B-N\¥ ZE-hE —F-N\F
Beiren Group (note a) Incorporation PRC PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Investment holding of a
L AEE (KHizEa) FEM AL FE FE group of companies

engaging in the
operation of

department stores,
supermarkets
REAEERETEBZ
SERAZRERR
Beiguo (note b) Incorporation PRC PRC 15.05% 15.05% 15.05% 15.05%  Investment holding of a
B (Wit 5Eb) Rz AV RE ol group of companies

engaging in the
operation of

department stores,
supermarkets
REBEERBTEBZ
SEARZREER
AL LB ERTES Incorporation PRC PRC 49% 49% 49% 49%  Retailing business in the
BREFAR Rz AV RE HE PRC
(“Future Mall”) (note ) ERERETEER
LB ERTES
HREFAR
(TEXTES))
(MEc)
Dragon Sign Limited Incorporation Hong Kong PRC 50% 50% 50% 50%  Investment holding of a
BiEERAR Rl 0 B company engaging in
operation of
restaurants in the PRC
EHRENFRBEE IR
Al RERR
Notes: B 5
(a) The Group's 60% owned subsidiary, Wingold Limited, indirectly held equity (a) AEEBBO%ERZHMBARRESERA
interest of 49% (2018: 49%) in Beiren Group. AIMZEREILAEEON(ZE—N\F:
49%) R A HE R ©
(b) At 31 December 2019, JAl L BRI & AR A & ("fBIR"), a wholly owned (b) RZZE-NF+ZA=+—8 ELBRARQ
subsidiary of Wingold Limited, had a right to appoint at least one (2018: AINEENRBERRTILERIREFR DA
one) director of Beiguo and has appointed two (2018: two) directors of (R EEHEE (ZE—N\F  +tR)E
Beiguo, out of seven (2018: seven) directors in total. JBJ& held direct equity FEF AEZIRL B (ZZE—N\F:
interest of 15.05% (2018: 15.05%) in Beiguo and has significant influence —H)IEESE  WEZEMB(ZZE—N
over it. In addition, 69.31% (2018: 69.31%) equity interest of Beiguo was F WA IIREE - BREEFELL
being directly held by Beiren Group. 15.05% (ZZF—/\4F : 15.05% ) lx "4z » I
HHEBBEXEN - i JEE69.31% (=
T-NF:6931%) RAEZBILAREE
BRA -
(o) At 31 December 2019, the Group’s 60% (2018: 60%) owned subsidiary, () RZEBE—-NF+-A=Z+—8 *&EEEE
Ample Sun Group Limited, held equity interest of 49% (2018: 49%) in Future 60% (ZZ— \4F : 60%) iz 2 ME A Az
Mall. In addition, 51% (2018: 51%) equity interest of Future Mall was being REBEBSRARBELERTESLI%(ZF
directly held by Beiguo. — )\ : 49%) IRAHE RS © IhAN - ERTES
51% (ZF—N\F : 51%) RA @Bt EE
BERA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 019 B ZE — T — N F+_A=+—BIFE

17 Investments in associates (continued)
The financial information in respect of the Group's associates is set

17 REEQRNKRE (F)
BRAREMEARZMEEARMT

out below:
2019 2018
—E-h%F —FN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFT
Total assets AEMR 12,971,485 13,194,832
Total liabilities BEEE 8,176,848 7,250,418
Net assets BESE 4,794,637 5,944,414
Group's share of associates’ net assets REBEEEBEAREEFE 2,747,368 3,337,937
Revenue gy 7,547,639 6,987,875
(Loss)/profit and other comprehensive KEEZ (BE),S5H &%
(expense)/income for the year Hip2m (F), ez (998,526) 692,247
Group's share of (loss)/profit and other AEEERGBERNRANTE
comprehensive (expense)/income of (B18),wF RkEMEE
associates for the year () MWz% (491,284) 339,760
Summarised financial information of material associates BEABEQAT U BKEENBE

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material
associate is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the associate’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with uniform accounting policies
in conformity with that adopted by the Group.

Beiren Group is the only material associate to the Group and it is
accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated

financial statements.

Beiren Group

The Beiren Group is principally engaged in the retailing businesses
including operation of department stores and supermarkets. Since
2008, it has been in the auto trading business with a group of
companies (the "Debtors”) in Hebei Providence. The ultimate owner
of the Debtors has signed letters of guarantee for the Beiren Group
to provide personal guarantee over the Debtors’ outstanding trade
balance due to the Beiren Group (the “Guarantor”). The Debtors
have defaulted on settlement of their outstanding trade balances
due to the Beiren Group since April 2019 and the Beiren Group has
ceased trading with the Debtors and the entire auto trading
business since July 2019. Legal actions have been taken by the
Beiren Group to recover the outstanding trade balance.

The Group noted from public sources that the Guarantor is being
detained by the relevant local authority in Hebei province and that
all the companies and assets located in Hebei Province under the
direct and indirect control of the Guarantor have been seized by the
relevant local authority, pending further investigations. As at 31
December 2019, the outstanding trade receivable balance due by
the Debtors to the Beiren Group amounted to RMB2,359 million.
The Group has not been able to obtain any financial information of
the Debtors nor details of the assets owned by the Guarantor which
may be pursued for settlement of the outstanding trade receivable

balance of the Beiren Group.

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK

ERAKREEABERR M BERNGE

FHIWMT - UTHBEMBERR

AZHBHRERLI 228 BRRELRE

BB EBORRR -

EAEERAEERE -FRNBERF]
ERRAEDENEAMBREALR

I AEH

BAGEXIZXBREEEE  BWEE
EXBMMEREEN - A _FT/\FK
EAEE-—BETILEEEH —HRQF
(MBEBADRRAEESER - BHAZ
REEBACRILAEBZZBERE 3
BB AR AEEREE 2 RIRIAR K
BEAZRTERAD - BZZ—NFTA
B EHEARBEESILASERYERN
BERIEELELD EAEEE-_Z-AF
TARFILETRBEBANR S REEE
BHEE - LAKBCERERTEER

BRI o

AEEBAFRBABERAREE AL
I ERAHEENAILEREERE R
BEEHNARMEENCD K E BT E
REHRE  WMFE—FNAT - N=F
—NE+ZRA=+—H RILAFEEER
EBARBRREFTIERARK2359BE
T e REBEERSEBANERNTBEE
A BEERSERAFEEEENFA
Bl MELEEAEIERNBEERNI

A B 2 8 HIEROR -

121

RN
b/



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl ZE —E — W F+_A=+—HILFE

17

122

Investments in associates (continued)

Summarised financial information of material associates
(continued)

Beiren Group (continued)

After obtaining an understanding from management of the Beiren
Group in respect of the actions to be taken to recover the trade
receivable balances from the Debtors, the Group concluded the
likelihood of recovering any amount from the Debtors as remote.
Accordingly, a loss allowance of expected credit loss has been made
against the full amount of trade receivable balance of the Debtors
held by Beiren Group as at 31 December 2019 after a conservative
assessment. The Group considered the above expected credit loss
assessment represented the best estimate based on the information
currently available.

The Group recorded a share of loss in Beiren Group of RMB491.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 and carried
RMB2,743.4 million investment in Beiren Group at 31 December
2019. If the share of net loss allowance on expected credit loss were
excluded, the Group would have recorded a share of profit of
RMB321.3 million in Beiren Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 and carried investment in Beiren Group of RMB3,555.8 million
at 31 December 2019.

17 RBEQRANRE ()

EABERRAZMBEENHEE (&)

IAEE (F)
RTBIEASEEEZHREBAREE
WHRSR R REUNITENR - AEBRB R
BB AW E FRIBH) AT BEMETR /N  E UL - &8
AEBFRTHGE AR _F-NEF+=
A=+t—BIAKBEENHEBANE
MEKETEH2RBRREEBEBER
e AEERR  LMEHEEEBENG
KREFIFTERNZEINERTAFH
RIEME -

HE-_Z—-hF+-_A=+—B1LFE -
REESSEEILASEBAFERIES B
BAREINIBELERZZE—NF+=
A=+—BIAKENBREEREAAR
#2743 4B BT - HHIREGFRBEER
EEEE  ~XEESESEGIEAZEEE
E-ET-NF+-A=+—HLEEFEEH
BARENIBETER ZE—NF+=
A=+—BIAKENBREEREAAR
#53,555.8 A B T °

2019 2018

- —EN\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTIT

Current assets mENVEE 4,755,353 7,126,343
Non-current assets FEMBEE 8,202,522 6,054,561
Current liabilities B A E 8,044,998 7,173,941
Non-current liabilities FERBAG 126,142 70,800
Net assets EEFE 4,786,735 5,936,163
Non-controlling interests FEVERRE R 939,478 1,363,142

‘A N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 019 B ZE — T — N F+_A=+—BIFE

17

Investments in associates (continued) 17 REBZEQATNKRE (&)
Summarised financial information of material associates BEABEQAT 2 BKEERNBE (F)
(continued)
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR®EF T
Revenue N 7,490,554 6,927,678
(Loss)/profit and other comprehensive NEE (R, R EA
(expense)/income for the year 2E (X)W (998,178) 692,664
Group's share of (loss)/profit and other AEEERGIAEEARFE
comprehensive (expense)/income of (E1]),/ wMEEt42m
Beiren Group for the year (Fs2), Wz (491,110) 339,969
Dividend declared from Beiren Group to REARILAEBEAER 2
the Group during the year 2EIRRE 99,285 90,218
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the BRI AEERERE P IEHRE F ER g

carrying amount of the interest in the associate in respect Beiren

AEMERE 2 REER % E R E

Group which recognised in the consolidated financial statements: R -
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTTT
Net assets of Beiren Group attributable to  #EA AJEMEIL A SR 2 EE
owners FE 3,847,257 4,573,021
Proportion of the Group's direct ownership  ZN £ B A Ib A & BlIZ L I B 2
interest in Beiren Group A 49% 49%
1,885,155 2,240,780
Add: Further interest of Beiren Group's m:AEEREMMEATEE
certain subsidiaries directly held by A 2L AR EE T
the Group's other subsidiaries BARE— TR 858,262 1,093,032
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in ~ R&EE AL AR E#EZ=E 2 R
Beiren Group HE 2,743,417 3,333,812
Information of an associate that is not individually material ERIEERZHE A RER
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBFTT
The Group's share of loss and other REEELEBERAGBEE
comprehensive expense 553 (174) (209)
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in A BN eZ B & R Rl EZE 2
this associate BREE 3,951 4,125

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %= & B % 3R 3% fft & (4&)
for the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl ZE —E — W F+_A=+—HILFE

18 Investment in a joint venture 18 R—ERELENRE
RZEBE-NF+ZA=+—H x5EH
ETHEEREZER(ZE—NF 8

At 31 December 2019, the Group had interest in the following joint
venture (2018: Same):

F) :
Proportion of
Place of nominal value of
establishment/ issued capital held Proportion of
Name of entity Form of business structure operation by the Group voting power held Principal activities
rEERFERT
BREB EREBERN RIS BRAEELA s RE-LS TEXY
EENEHTESERAF  Sino-foreign equity joint venture  The PRC 50% 50% Property holding and leasing
(Shanghai Joinbuy City FOEERERE FE MERAEREE
Plaza Co., Ltd.)

LBAERTESERAF

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method of

BELEREEENEAR

accounting:
2019 2018
= —EN\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTFT
Cost of unlisted investment in a joint —HEEREFLTREZ
venture BN 372,082 372,082
Share of post-acquisition profits and other  FE(EUEE & 2 & F| & B 2
comprehensive income, net of dividends W5 o B E 6,450 14,215
378,532 386,297

The summarised financial information related to the Group's interest
in the joint venture is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s
financial statements prepared in accordance in conformity with that
adopted by the Group.

ERASKERGELCE 2 EEZMBER
BT - LTHBEMBBERNAED

EZUMBHRREINZEE
B —HH SRR RER

R IR AR

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE 964,067 988,740
Current assets MENEE 68,241 21,604
Current liabilities mENaE 275,243 237,750
Net assets BEFE 757,065 772,594
The above amounts of assets and liabilities FilEEMBESBEELT
include the followings: HH ¢
Cash and cash equivalents BeNREEEY 23,301 8,120
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade REI& @M EE (TR IEEM K
and other payables) TN B Ath FE S 5RIE) 254,879 187,257
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18

Investment in a joint venture (continued) 18 R—RBEELENRE (&)
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBFTT
Revenue WA 200,337 200,658
Profit for the year RE[E 5 F) 57,642 68,780
Dividend income recognised by the Group FAARNEE B #R 2% B WA
during the year 36,586 39,340
Group's share of profit and other REBELEEBERERM K
comprehensive income of the joint Hoqth 2 E W as
venture 28,821 34,390

The above profit and other comprehensive income for the year
includes the following:

N EARFEENEAMPERRBELT
IBH :

2019 2018

ZE-hF —ET-N\F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBETF T

Depreciation and amortisation € Ntk 6 36,872 35,153
Interest income FEHA 558 166
Interest expense e H 9,226 8,729
Income tax expense FREHi = 23,504 27,228

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the investment in a joint venture recognised in
the consolidated financial statements:

B S R RO AR A B S R IR P AR
R—HAELEMKRE ZREELR

2019 2018

—E-hF —T—N\F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥F T AREFTT

Net assets of the joint venture GEMEZBEFE 757,065 772,594

Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEEVEB LA

interest 50% 50%
Carrying amount of the Group's investment AEEBER —H&ERENERE

in a joint venture ZEEHEE 378,532 386,297

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK
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19 Properties under development 19 BRPYE
2019 2018
—%-nE S
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
At 1 January HW—A—8 1,044,417 924,368
Additions RE 183,825 120,049
At 31 December W+=A=+—AH 1,228,242 1,044,417

Properties under development comprise two office towers of the
Group's commercial complex development project in Shanghai, the
PRC. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had
additions of RMB183,825,000 (2018: RMB120,049,000) to properties
under development, which include eligible capitalised borrowing
costs of RMB24,604,000 (2018: RMB18,372,000). Details of pledge of
assets are set out in note 39.

BREFUELFBEASENTE FLRERE
¥RREOPTMEBEHRARE - HEZ
T-NF+_A=1+—BLFE £&£E
BRPYEFE S EE A AR 183,825,000
T (ZZE—)\F : AR¥120,049,0007T)
Hh A R#24,604,0007T (ZF — )\ :
AR%18,372,0007T) BAFERLNEE
BRA - BEEWEEZFIBELEMEI -

20 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 20 EEHREBEEZEE (AE)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for LT REBEEHIEESRBRVBEREBNZD
financial reporting purposes: #r
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBTTT
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE & 10,913 —
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIBRE (20,650) (32,382)
(9.737) (32,382)
126 Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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20 EEBREE (AE) (&)

20 Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (continued)

The followings are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the year:

UTREERZIBECHREEREE

UAEREBFANES :

Distributable
profits of PRC
subsidiaries,

associates Accelerated
and a joint tax
venture  depreciation Total
*IW%Q
Eﬁrﬂﬁ /‘\
}SZ F‘iéﬁu—.
E e de| g
B MEHBERE #E
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT ARETTT
At 1 January 2018 WZZE-N\F—H—H (31,424) 378 (31,046)
Exchange adjustment M R — 17 17
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss 783 (F1BR) FHA

(note 9) (WEE‘?) (23,719) 6 (23,713)
Released upon dividends declared E &% B &8 (Fi5E9)

(note 9) 22,761 — 22,761
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 33) & — M B2 7 (Hi7E33) — (401) (401)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+=A=+—8H (32,382 — (32,382)
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss  F{82 (F1BR),FT A

(note 9) (P EED) (13,218) 10,913 (2,305)
Released upon dividends declared TR B &8 H (K15E9)

(note 9) 24,950 — 24,950
At 31 December 2019 —NF+=ZA=+—H (20,650) 10,913 (9,737)

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax at the rate ranging from 5% to
10% is imposed on dividends in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation of RMB13,218,000 (2018:
RMB23,719,000) in respect of distributable profit of PRC entities
amounting of RMB445,112,000 (2018: RMB420,990,000) has been
provided during the year ended 31 December 2019. At the end of
the reporting period, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised was
RMB777,419,000 (2018: RMB659,738,000). No liability has been
recognised in respect of these differences because the Group is in a
position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK

RETFECEMAERE B -FTFTN\F—
A—HAESHBENERF  BERRR—

HaBECEMSEN 2B E D KBS T F

S%E10%TENF - RBEZZT—NF+=
A=Z+—BItFE BHPEEEN YRR
MAaANREEA45112,0007T (ZZE—N\F A

R ¥420,990,000T) BEEH AR ¥
13,218,000 (ZZEE—NF : AR
23,719,0007T) K IEIE R IR B4 o IO SR 25 HA
K BB A BIRD IR Z & FI E £/ E
MERWSERRAAELEHBEE - 8%
BARETT7,419,00000 (ZE—\F : AR
#5659,738,0007T) ° BLLA 2z B8 B MERT
MaE AAAEEEENIEHITREE
BERERBMNER  REEERRATETSE
A 78 5B R A ] o
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20 Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) (continued) 20 EEHRBERS (BE)(H)
At 31 December 2019, the Group had unused tax losses of RZZE—NAF+_A=+—H XxEEH
approximately RMB645.0 million (2018: RMB680.1 million) available ARPAREBFBEORARKMM0BEE T
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been (ZE—N\F: AR¥O6B01BET)  AIA
recognised in respect of tax losses for both years due to ERIEBREER - RSFREFHE - AR
unpredictability of future profit streams of relevant entities. The HEAEEBRREFN RS ATER - &
unrecognised tax losses arising from subsidiaries operated in the HZEBEEERRELEHRIBEAE - £F
PRC will expire as follows: B 4 & B PR /BB A A E A WO R FERR AR TR B 1R
&R T IR EH
Tax losses expiring in REBRIYPZFH

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-)N\F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBF T ARETT

2019 :ﬁ_ﬂﬂz — 135,816

2020 —E-F 156,363 156,363

2021 —E-—F 144,970 144,970

2022 —_F-— 115,236 115,150

2023 —E=F 127,754 127,754

2024 —EZNE 100,743 —

645,066 680,053
During the year ended 31 December 2019, approximately HE-_T-NF+_A=1T—HLFE "
RMB135.8million (2018: RMB50.2 million) tax losses expired. ,\U}\EMBSSE%TE (ZZ2E—NF: AR

¥502A 8T MREBED T -
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21

Trade and other receivables 21 FEWERIRHMEWRE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFT
Trade receivables FEURBE FX 61,022 60,801
Lease receivables TH & E W8 5,543 7,574
66,565 68,375
Less: Loss allowance on expected credit B BIEHEEEE 2 EE
losses B (1,068) (1,681)
65,497 66,694
Prepayments T RIE 204 250
Deposits paid [=ANE & 4,615 4,635
Value added tax ("VAT") receivable FEYCEER ([EBER]) 106,069 96,967
Loan and interest receivables (note) EUWER LA S (M) 140,875 135,323
Others Hi 64,797 34,928
316,560 272,103
Less: Provision of expected credit losses B B EEEEEE (22,253) (22,253)
294,307 249,850
359,804 316,544
Less: Non-current portion B EmENE D (4,615) (139,958)
355,189 176,586

Note: The amounts as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Same) represented the

outstanding balance of loans to certain employees of Beiguo for the

purpose of enabling them to acquire shares of Beiguo. The loans were

secured against the share interests in Beiguo held by the respective

employees. The loans are for a period of three years from the date of grant

in August 2017 and bear interests at a rate equivalent to the one-year RMB

benchmark interest rate as quoted by the People’s Bank of China.

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK

izt R NF+-A=+—RZ2®E(=ZF
—/\F AR BEAIEEE T EREERDN
REEHER - NEERARBICBIRND - %
ERAEREEF AN BEROERIERE
He-REFE_ET-tF\AERH=F"
BRFSRBEPEARRITRAMH—FAR

BEEAER KRG H -
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21

130

Trade and other receivables (continued) 21
The Group’s retail sales to customers are mainly made in cash,
through debit card or credit card payments. Its major trade
receivables arising from credit card sales are normally settled in one

to two business days and lease receivables are normally settled 30

days in arrears. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables

and lease receivables net of allowance for expected credit losses, if

any, presented based on the invoice date:

P Wi Bl =k I L ftb P W SRR (4R
AEEREREINTEREEREBR
& ERFREARFTANK  AEEE
EEUCRHORE — R — ERATIEA
1801 AR 35 E R — RN 30R Ak B 87
78 W 3T o DA TR B MR 3R R TR A M
OB (MR EREEHERE (0E)) RE
BRAHZEROWN

2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARETT
0-30 days OH=30H 64,331 64,235
31-60 days 3TEHZ60H 482 659
61-90 days 61HZE90H 205 169
over 90 days @90 H 479 1,631
65,497 66,694
Movement in the provision for expected credit loss on trade ERERBEHEESERESD
receivables
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBTTT
At 1 January Hn—HA—H 1,681 —
(Reversal of provision)/provision for EHRBHEEBE (BE
expected credit loss recognised B o), B (613) 1,681
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 1,068 1,681
The fair value of the trade and other receivables approximates to its JREE LT B 2R e L A JRE LA R IR N B B EL R T

carrying value.

‘A N
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22

23

24

Inventories 22 FE
2019 2018
—B-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETTT
Merchandise held for resale BAEEEERR 61,685 49,574
Amount due from/(to) a joint venture 23 W (BN —BEELERE
At 31 December 2019, the amount due from a joint venture was RZZE-NE+RA=+—8 EK—FH
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. SECEFIEREER  RERAREX
(&2 o
At 31 December 2018, the amount due from a joint venture included RZZE-—NE+_RA=+—8 EK—FH
an entrusted loan to a joint venture of RMB30,000,000, which was SECERERFEETAELENERE
unsecured and carried fixed rate of 4.35% per annum and interest AR 30,000,0007T - HAEKRRIZE
receivables of RMB584,000. TEFFIELIBE - URERFEARE
584,0007T °
At 31 December 2019, the amount due to a joint venture RZZE-NE+RA=+—8 EN—H
represented accrued rental and management fee payable to a joint SECEZFIEREREN—HEER
venture. The amounts were unsecured, non-interest bearing and ¥2HeRERE - LREREEKE %
repayable on demand (2018: Same). BRERERKEER (ZT—/\F 18F) -
Financial assets at fair value through profitorloss 24 RAFEFABZZEEEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAFEFABR SRMEE:
— structured investment products (note) — ERMREER (M) 480,980 540,860

Note:

The balance at 31 December 2019 represented structured investment products
placed with banks in the PRC, with an expected but not guaranteed return (2018:
Same) in the range from 2.10% to 3.80% per annum (2018: 2.20% to 4.70% per
annum), depending on the performance of its underlying investments, which are
mainly bonds and debentures. These financial assets were measured at FVTPL as
their contracted terms do not give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value of these financial assets
does not differ materially from their carrying amounts as at the reporting date

because of their short periods to maturity.

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK

M

R-E—NWF+_A=+—BZEHBEREFR
MBI RAEBUEREER  HBEHETRENTE
Wz (ZT—N\F : {F) BH2.10E£380E (=F
—N\F FERBSRAE220EEL70E) - BT HMA
BEERENKB (FERLELHREEE) - Ze/
BEARAFEFABL  BAEANKERILTR
EEARELEEAINASRAEERNSFIEZER
ERE -ANTEERA HRZZLREERNE
HREIE - EAFEEFEANREEETESEAE
B o
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25 Cash and cash equivalents 25 ReRREEEY
At 31 December 2019, cash and cash equivalents comprised mainly RZZE-—NEF+A=+—H8 H&ER
short-term deposits with original maturity within three months and S EEVFERFERRITMISN XL (F
carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.75% to 3.95% FENFOISERINSE)(ZE—NF: F
per annum (2018: 0.75% to 4.40% per annum). FENF0.75EZE440E) 9 RER =& A
WEIH 2 52 BATF K o
Included in cash and cash equivalents are the following amounts ReRBEEEMEETIAEEEEE
denominated in currency other than functional currencies of the B EE NGB ERNFIE
respective group entities:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBF T ARETT
US Dollars ("US$") ETT 97,332 169,987
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") BT 19,590 19,064
116,922 189,051
26 Trade and other payables 26 BENERRRHEMESE
2019 2018
—E-NF —ET-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTTT
Trade payables FETERRK 47,073 44,926
Construction payables FET Ti2RKIE 219,306 54,734
Concessionaire sales payables ST EREERIE 481,675 499,573
Refundable prepaid card deposits RERNRZE 123,830 114,798
Rental deposits received BlHEZS 78,319 72,318
Accrued expenses FEETE R 42,636 33,210
VAT payable FE IS BRI IE 11,749 28,609
Interest payables FETFLE 3,278 2,684
Others Hity 27,889 81,140
1,035,755 931,992
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based T RBEREIREREB RAYENERR
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: HIBRER D AT
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTT
0-30 days OHZ30H 40,238 33,919
31-60 days 31THZ60H 1,766 2,795
61-90 days 61HZ90H 479 2,300
over 90 days B0 H 4,590 5,912
47,073 44,926
132 Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2019
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VB 1 B 7K % HL fth PE A4 SR IR (4R)
FEA BR300 B A 45 57 S B 8 4 SOE 2 749
m%%ﬁm% AT 45 B LA - A
RAP SRR ERER - RIRFAEN
MEFEA%@WQH

26 Trade and other payables (continued) 26
The average credit period of trade payables and concessionaire
sales payables is within 45 days from invoice date. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

27 Bank borrowings 27 SRITEBE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥EF T ARETTT
Bank borrowings comprise bank loans and  $R{T{E EBMITEFRAEK - I
are analysed as: BAT O
Secured, variable rate and denominated BEM  FERAARK
in RMB iHE 2,430,000 2,109,000
Carrying amount repayable based on REHNHEEBR B
contractual repayment dates: FEEEBREE
Within one year —FR 30,000 10,000
More than one year, but not exceeding —FRETEBMRE
two years 60,000 30,000
More than two years, but not exceeding MEREBTBB=F
three years 100,000 60,000
More than three years, but not = FRENEBMNE
exceeding four years 1,120,000 100,000
More than four years, but not exceeding WERETERAF
five years 1,120,000 1,120,000
After five years i hE — 789,000
2,430,000 2,109,000
Less: Amount due within one year shown & : FIARBIBER —F K
under current liabilities Bz /A (30,000) (10,000)
Amount due after one year — 1R EI8 2 RIE 2,400,000 2,099,000

EREBRMNEEFFRLAN%-446%(=F
f/\i D 4.41%4.46%) ©

The effective interest rate of the borrowings was at 4.41%4.46%
(2018: 4.41%—4.46%) per annum.
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27 Bank borrowings (continued) 27 S$BTEE(E)
At 31 December 2019, the Group had no undrawn borrowing RZZE-—NEF+A=+—8 FEEL
facilities. EARERDURTTRLE o
At 31 December 2018, the Group had undrawn borrowing facilities RZZE-—NF+HA=+—8 FREEHEX
as follows: REGRITRENT
2018
—E-N\F
RMB'000
ARBTT
Floating rate: EE
Expiry within one year R —F A S H 341,000
28 Lease liabilities 28 HEAE
2019
—E-NF
RMB’000
ARBT R
At Tst January m—HA—H —
— adoption of HKFRS 16 (refer note 2) — RANE B TSR EERE 1658
(2EME2) 666,322
— as restated — &5 666,322
Less: Lease payments o BN (125,648)
Interest expense FEFMZ 32,649
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 573,323
2019
—E-NEF
RMB’000
ARBT
Current ik 98,479
Non-current ERE 474,844
573,323
Lease contracts are typically for fixed period of 10-15 years. HEAHN—RRBEETFH NTFI05E
15%F o
In 2019, the cash outflow related to principal elements of lease RZTE-hEF BEEEGEzAERBE
liabilities and finance costs were RMB92,999,000 and RMB32,649,000 KAERNREALDHBARE
respectively. 92,999,0007T K2 A & #5 32,649,000 7T ©
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29 Contract liabilities 29 EHEE

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT

Loyalty points under loyalty reward B AREN BT 80 R R R
programmes Bo 7,843 6,396
Unredeemed gift certificates R 2185 987 982
8,830 7,378
Loyalty points under loyalty reward

programmes
BHEBTEATHABRBES

2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBFTT

Revenue recognised from contract FRNEAHNEBERARZWA
liabilities during the year 29,321 24,306

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

(a) Loyalty points under loyalty reward programmes
Under the Group's customer loyalty reward programmes,
customers who participate in the loyalty programmes can earn
one reward point for every dollar of their spending. For every
5,000 points earned from cosmetic products and every 10,000
points earned from non-cosmetic products, customers can
redeem gift certificate with the face value of RMB250 and
RMB50 respectively, which can be redeemed for goods or
services offered at the department stores. Rewards points
earned has an expiry period of one year.

(b) Unredeemed gift certificates
The Group sells the gift certificates to the customers who
redeems the gift certificates for goods and services offered at
the department stores. The gift certificates are non-
refundable and valid for one year from the date of issue.

The Group applied the practical expedient and does not disclose

the information relating to the remaining performance obligations
that have original expected durations of one year or less.

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK

HIERANaBESBERFEN RN
FUEF T -

(a) BEEBFETHWEERES
RAEEZ RS T 28
BB CERIRT -T2
HBSBEHI— 2y - BERL
%GB 72 fn & BREX A 5,000 & IE{b A%
ShHE T S HRELEY 10,0005 © AJHRERE
E5 Bl A ARE2507T kA RES07T
Z2EF ATARKBBEEEREY
ERIERK - B2 ED R —F 5
&8 e

(b) RHEHBZEZH
AEBHERSTHEE MEEH
ERESERBEEERRZE R
ARTS o SRR - WK B H
B—FREH -

AEBECDERERATHNEEDE kY

BERBERARERBFHLS —FRIAT 2
TRHOWBEEEBZERM -
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30

31

32

136

Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2019, the amount was unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2018, the amount was unsecured and non-
interest bearing. The non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries
agreed not to demand for repayment within one year from the end
of the reporting period.

Share capital

30

31

%ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂ—%#%&ﬁi%

RZZB-NF+-A=+—RH ZFER
EIRM - 08 KA ERKEE]

EO
W=F—N\E+=B=+—8 BREA

BEEARRE - MBRRZIFERBRRR
ETERRAERSHR-—FREENE -

RS

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital are as follows: RATIRARZ SEFIBWOT
Number of
shares Amount
REE B
HK$'000
FHT
Authorised: EERA
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and 2019 RZZT—N\F—H—H ZZF—\F
(HK$0.005 each) E—ZE—-hhE+=-_A=+—8H
(Z & E{E0.0057 7T) 4,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIT R
At 1 January 2018 (HK$0.005 each) R-_ZE—N\F—A—H(SKEE
0.005/% 7T) 1,602,586,500 8,013
Repurchase and cancellation of shares (note) o] B8 R sE S8 AR 1D (M a) (138,138,000) (691)
At 31 December 2018 and 2019 (HK$0.005 each) RZZE—N\FER_ZE— NI F
+-B=+—8
(AR E0.005757T) 1,464,448,500 7,322
RMB’000
ARBEF T
Shown in the financial statements as RMB at RZZE-N\EFERZZE—NF
31 December 2018 and 2019 + A=+ —HREBE®RE
UAREZ75 6,291

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2018, pursuant to the general mandate

given to the directors of the Company, the Company repurchased
138,138,000 shares at prices ranging from HK$2.20 to HK$3.99 through the
Stock Exchange at a total consideration (including transaction costs) of
HK$484,658,000 (equivalent to RMB397,552,000) and all repurchased shares
were cancelled as at 31 December 2018. This cancellation resulted in the
decrease in issued share capital of HK$691,000 (equivalent to RMB593,000).

Statutory surplus reserve and capital reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
are required to transfer 10% of their respective after-tax profits as
reflected in the statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries
to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. The statutory surplus reserve fund can
be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in
conversion into capital by means of capitalisation, provided that
such reserve fund is maintained a minimum of 25% of the registered

capital.
’
. a

32

i REEZZ—-\F+ZA=+—HILFE"
BRERTFARAREST —REE  ARAR
Bk 22 7 [2] B8 138,138,000% B 17+ [BA& N F
2208 L B399 BRE(BEZXHK
) £484,658,0008 T (HHER AR
397,552,0007T) ' FTBEERBERHOHN =T
—N\E+ZB=+— A LEFHSDHE
1T BE AR 4 691,000 T (M S W AR
593,0007T) °

EEBRBRRAEERERFHE
RBPBEINERE D ENRBER AR
BE > AR A B A RZA S R B
& R BYATE B 75 4R AR o I R O B 1 04 )
ZI%EBREXERRNTECHEEMRBRE
EIFEMERMS0% < ETFERBATES A
RERMBTEFENER (WA) @ LAE
BERNMCBTERASERN  FIREIXER
BERIERFEEMERN25%IA L -
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32

33

Statutory surplus reserve and capital reserve 32 EEEBLAEERELRGEE (E)
(continued)
The capital reserve represented deemed contribution from Lifestyle BERFERRIEEEEEER A (H
International Holdings Limited (“Lifestyle International”), a former BER])ZFE -RBEFE  FERHE
holding company of Lifestyle China Group Limited (the “Company") RAEPREEERAR([ARAT]) ZA
in prior years, that certain loan interest payables were waived by ERAR - B TRANERFEE EFNEE
Lifestyle International and not recharged to the Company and its BEE  WARARRBR T —RF LWl
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) prior to the I SR T AR A R BB AT (A
listing of the Company in 2016. In addition, the gain on disposal of a LB o ki RZTE—-NFHE K
subsidiary in 2018 was accounted for as contribution from equity BRARMWRIIRAKRERE ATE -
owner.
Disposal of a subsidiary 33 HE—BHEAT
On 31 July 2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase RZZ2—NFLtA=1T—08 KREEHEF
agreement with Vision Pilot Group Limited, a wholly-owned 12 Bl R 2 2 & Bff & A & Vision Pilot Group
subsidiary of Lifestyle International, to sell 100% equity interest in Limitedd] VEE W=  WBESKE
the Group's subsidiary, Global Top Limited (“Global Top”), at the 52,000,00078 7 (49 A R #543,481,0007T)
consideration of HK$52,000,000 (approximately RMB43,841,000) in EXEENBRARERARAR ([ER])
cash. Such disposal of subsidiary had been accounted for as 100% A = &5 B AP 2 &) DA B o
transaction with equity owner and the gain on disposal, amounting BAZRGARAAER MHOBARE
to approximately RMB43,151,000 is recognised in capital reserve as a 43,151,000 ) E N AR RS A
contribution from equity owner, i.e. Mr. Lau Luen Hung, Thomas, the (BNAIFRBIRR fo AR B B e 4% 128 AR AR R 21182
ultimate controlling shareholder of both Lifestyle International and BRAE)ENTE - WREARBETRER -t
the Company. The net assets of Global Top at the date of disposal EREHERBRZEEFENT
were as follows:
RMB'000
ARBFTT
Consideration received: BWRME:
Cash consideration received BEHEeRE 43,841
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was % ERFIEZEERABZ D47 :
lost:
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) W BB KR (FEE14) 849
Deferred taxation (note 20) IEIEREIE (F15E20) 401
Inventories 5E 500
Trade and other receivables JFEE M2 B 3 e L A e MK R TR 533
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREFEY 9,404
Trade and other payables JRE A1 R RR e HL At JRE A5 R IE (9,076)
Taxation payable R RLIE (1,450)
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 1,161
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—RBMELR ZWE :
Consideration received and receivable B R R AE 43,841
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEZRE (1,161)
Expense in respect on disposal & B R (162)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the net assets 72k 18 A RIIE B RF gL B A
of the subsidiary reclassified from equity to profit or loss REEFEARRENIEEA
upon loss of control of the subsidiary mZ RtERER 633
Gain on disposal & e 43,151
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEBHZRERAFE
Cash consideration HeRE 43,841
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HEZREMRESEEY (9,404)
Expense in respect of disposal HEBE@ERX (162)
34,275

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK
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34 Leases

34

HE

The Group as lessee
From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use assets
for all leases except for short-term and low-value leases.

REBEEREBAA
B-Z-hF—HA—RB FXEECHERMN
BEHENERREEE  HERHIEEER

ERRN o

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARETT
Minimum lease payments paid for short- FARERREEERE
term and low value leases (2018: all) Bz &HIEBLFIAE
—Z-NF: 2E)
Other assets Hih&EE 466 1,102
Leasehold land and buildings HE i M gF 638 136,225
1,104 137,327

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group incurred
RMB43,527,000 (2018: RMB41,345,000) contingent rents which was
based on certain percentage of sales.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable short-term
and low value leases (2018: all) with fixed rent only which fall due as
follows:

HE—Z2—hWF+-_A=+—BHILFE "
REBIZHEETEOLIMNKARES A
AR#E43,527,000 (ZF—\F : AR
41,345,0007T) °

RB|ERR - AEER T HEREHRE
BEES(ZZF—N\F: 258) ZM&IER
BREBOFERREEEE) ER T
FHIZIE -

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTTT

Within one year —FR 676 138,305
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_ZELF(BREERME) 153 554,720
Over five years BB A F — 168,675
829 861,700

The above commitments represent commitments for leasing
commercial properties amounting to RMB284,000 (31 December
2018: RMB861,157,000) and other assets amounting of RMB545,000
(31 December 2018: RMB543,000).

Lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for short-
term and low value leases (2018: all) of commercial properties and
other assets which represented machineries. Rentals payable are
predetermined at fixed amounts except for certain lease of which
contingent rental are charged based on certain percentage of sales.
Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one year to
three years and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from one year to

‘A N

two years.

TR EAMAEMEREAEREIN
AR#284000 (R=ZZEE—\F+ A
=+—H: AR#861,157,0007T) Kt E A
& EX N ARBES5450007T (ZF — )\ £
+=ZA=+—8: AR¥543,00050) B

HEFBREAEEREHMEEERE (=
T-N\F: 2E)BRVEREMEE (A
HeR) BN S - MENZESRIEERE
BEW R RT —LiREHEERETA
DEMBEREARSEL - BO—RIZ
HEH-Z=FHr BEEERE =
EEETE °
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34 Leases (continued) 34 HE (&)
The Group as lessor AEEERHEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has contracted with RWEBRR  REERHBELETANRE
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: =ERBLHOREBEHLT :
2019 2018
—B-NEF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥EF T ARETTT
Within one year —FR 53,481 50,548
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZERAF (BIEHEMF) 56,604 48,577
Over five years A — 997
110,085 100,122
Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one year to BAO—MIZBERH - ZRFHME -
five years.
In 2019, the cash outflow related to principal elements of lease RIZE-NF HEESAEsAE LFHE
liabilities and finance costs were RMB92,999,000 and RMB32,649,000 MABBNRESRE DA AARE
respectively. 92,999,0007T F2 A K #5 32,649,000 7T, ©
35 Capital and other commitments 35 BEXRKHMELE
2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F ARBFTT
Capital and other expenditure in respect of B & 4IHE R R 4R A B 75 Rk B
acquisition of property, plant and w2 EREAME  BE K
equipment and property development BEARYEERBRE A
project contracted for but not provided AR H A2
in the consolidated financial statements 492,200 734,900
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36

37

140

Capital risk management 36 EXEBER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group REEEBHER  URRAEEZER
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the BREBFERE  AREABIER LR
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and REgeh  RENERHZEDR - 8 F—
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged FEML - REE 2 BRI EE
from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net REEZERRBEDRFRRITEE - KRR
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of S RREFEBMRAREHEE AENER
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and (BEEBEITRAE - FERREBER)
retained profits.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a RABESRTHBEREE - (ERZR
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company A= RRFEFEFERKAE
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class EREREBE AR - BBEARREEZ
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of the BEAEEBBEBIRMNKRE  BITH
Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure fi ~ B A Bl RS R BT 3T E s BRI 3R A E 1A
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy- PAF @ R B E R -
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.
Financial instruments 37 &®MIA
Categories of financial instruments ERMIAER
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Financial assets CREE
Financial assets at FVTPL (note 24) BAFEFABRZEMEE
(P E24) 480,980 540,860
Financial assets measured at amortised REHERATEZ SRERE
cost (including cash and cash (BRERERBEEEED)
equivalents) 1,839,218 1,781,657
Financial liabilities cRas
Financial liabilities measured at amortised RN AFTE 2 M A E
cost 4,057,668 2,928,386
Financial risk management objectives and policies HEERRBEZEEHRBEE

The Group'’s major financial instruments include cash and cash
equivalents, financial assets at FVTPL, trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables, amount due from/to a joint venture, bank
borrowings and amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiaries. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

.A R N

AEEZIZSMTARRASMNASS
By HAVEFABZEZEREE B
Uit R A e At 8 W R~ AN PR R R B
N FHIE - B (BN —HAaELER
B RITREEAREHERE — B I
RBCRHIE - ZE SR T AENES M
TR - M E SR T AMERE 2 Bk KRR
BEERRR I BREN T -ERESE
B R EEZ R - ARER B E A Rt
REUEE fH1E
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37 Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Currency risk

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
operating in the PRC is RMB in which most of its transactions are
denominated. The functional currency of the subsidiaries operating
in Hong Kong is HK$ in which most of the transactions are
denominated.

The Group has certain foreign currency denominated bank balances
at the end of each reporting period and details of which are
disclosed in respective notes.

The Group mainly exposed to currency risk of US$ and HKS$. The
carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency denominated

37 £@IA(HE)

T EER (F)
Brmpz

ARAENPEEENNB AR ZNEE
BRARYE  BERRIEDRXHUARKESE
H-NEBZLENMBRARZNEERR
BT BRARMARXHNETTEER -

BEEREHR  AEEEETINEE
RITET  BRAFBENSaMEHRE -

AEBEXZEHEXTRETHBEERA

C AEBAINEHER

monetary assets at the end of each reporting period are as follows: MEEREMBENT :
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EF T ARETTT

Assets BE

uss$ e 97,332 169,987
HK$ BT 19,590 19,064

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK

REEIREEA B|IMNE LK - AT - B
BESEEIMNERAR  YRFERHEZEY

RERIMNE R -
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Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change of 5% (2018: 5%) in exchange rate of US$ and HK$
against RMB, while all other variables are held constant. 5% (2018:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to the key management personnel and represents the
management'’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of each reporting period for a 5%
(2018: 5%) change in foreign currency rate. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit for the year where RMB weakens
against the relevant foreign currency. Where RMB strengthens
against the relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit for the year and the amounts below
would be negative.

37

£@TI A (&)

@I EER (F)

B ()
TRFANAEERELRBTHAREZ
FERATAE R IRS% (Z T — )\ : 5%) A E
BEMAMEEMEHERTER 2 HE
B o5%(ZZE—N\F:5%) BEEEEAE
NEBERINE R AT 2 BEE - WAE
BEHINEE R A LA BB 2 T E - &
BESMEBFERLBINEHNEEEIE
B UREHREHRIEZR (ZT—N\F
5%) INETE RSB ARME - MARER
BRAINETE AT RS 2 EBERRF
RiEFEm - MARBHBEEER L7
AleHFRENECHSEEARZVE -
BTERMAYEBTEAEH -

2019 2018

—E-NE —E-N\#F

RMB'000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETT

US$ against RMB ETHARE 3,650 6,374
HK$ against RMB BT A AR 735 715

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate bank deposits (2018: fixed rate balances with a joint
venture). The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
relating to the Group’s variable-rate bank borrowings (2018:
variable-rate bank borrowings). The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise.

‘A N

ERERR  ARFAR Z AR E KR
FARRR - BERE ST TRKRE S
PE B o

FIEm 2

7R 6% [ T 5 B B E R R ERTT IR R 2 R R
MERER(ZE-N\F: B-HaELEE
EMEGEER) - AEETEERSREN K
B - ERAKEIFBMERRITER (=
E-N\FFPHMRRBITER) - XEER
B 30 BRI M R SRR © AT - EIEE
SEENXRER  YRTERZEHHE
R Z R -
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37

Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates for bank
borrowings (excluding the specific bank borrowings for construction
purpose) at the end of the reporting period and the reasonably
possible change taking place at the beginning of each year and held
constant throughout the year. A 50 basis points (2018: 50 basis
points) increase or decrease is used for variable-rate balances when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The Group’s sensitivity to interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period while all other variables
were held constant after taking into account the impact of the tax
and finance costs capitalised in construction in progress and
properties under development are as follows:

37 £@IA(HE)

T EER (F)

FIEmE (&)

AEEHRERENTRE R 2 BEE - Ty
RERBEMRRITEE (TEEFERT
fEEEZERR) NEER  URREFF
VAEAREANES UYREFAERFD
HoEMIBREEABANERNEER
W SOMEERE (=T — /\F : S0fE &%) 1%
MR RRIF B URREEEY
MEAREABEEF NG - ERTAHLME
BEHIE  BEEVARRERTER
BRPMEEMMCBERALK  AEER
EmEHRENEZRBGRBENT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-HLEE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-)N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET R AREEFT

Increase/(decrease) in post-tax profit for 4 R BR%i % % R in, (& 2)

the year

— as a result of increase in interest rate — BRFELEH 479 479

— as a result of decrease in interest rate — BRFE T (479) (479)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity is unrepresentative of the
inherent interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2019 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK

ERERA - BN ELE 2 BRI R
ERrEB  HEBEATLTREES
AR @R -

=B m R B E TS
RZB-AF+ZA=+—H Xx&EEH
HBFTREBETHETMRES AR HER
EREERHZESEERR BEaH
BHRRRMAZEEEZREE -
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Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has formulated a
defined fixed credit policy and delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. The Group's retail sales are mainly on cash basis,
either in cash, debit card or credit card payments. The Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 on trade receivable balances individually or

based on provision matrix.

For the credit-impaired trade receivables, an reversal of impairment
loss of RMB613,000 was made during the year ended 31 December
2019. The following table shows the movement in loss allowance
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified

37

£RIEA (&)

SRMITAER (&)

EE B R EFE ()

JEY R

AREREEERR AEEDHTHE
METERREREI—MAS 55H
TRERE  HREEERETHMES
2R LR RESBANES 2B
ET AEETERETERBLE
#oUBS  BERKERARARET-
AN BB B TS M R B L -
REBBEEHEEHER  HREKERSS
B B 1T R ST+ s DA A AE e R
ST RE ST o

REERERKERME  EREBEZZ
—NE+_AZ+ - BLEEEEARE
613,0007C 2B B R IERE » TREVREE
LA ARERERER 2 EEREHE

approach. Bl

Life-time ECL
(credit impaired)
KABHEEEE
(BEERE)
RMB’000
ARETT

As at 1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 RZTE-N\F-A—RBREEE
BA TS s S R 95% —
— change in expected credit losses — B EEEEEE 1,681
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZF-N\F+-A=+—H 1,681
— change in expected credit losses — EHEEEEY (613)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—hNF+=-_A=+—H 1,068

‘A N
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37

Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other receivables

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9. The Group assessed the 12-month ECL for other
receivables individually as at 31 December 2018 and 2019 and
considered that impairment allowance on other receivables (not
credit impaired) to be insignificant and thus negligible to be
provided by the Group based on the low probability of default on
those counterparties based on historical credit loss experience. In
addition, credit risk associated with loan receivables of
RMB140,875,000 (2018: RMB135,323,000) is mitigated because the
loans are secured against the certain share interests in Beiguo as
held by the respective debtors (note 21). The management has also
assessed all available forward looking information, including but not
limited to the economic outlook of the PRC and subsequent
settlement of the debtors, and concluded that the credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding other receivables is
insignificant.

Time deposits and bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with credit ratings of B or above assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. For the year ended 31 December 2018 and
2019, the Group performed impairment assessment on bank
balances and concluded that the probability of defaults of the
counterparty banks are insignificant and accordingly, no allowance
for credit losses is provided.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in relation
to trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a number
of counterparties and customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in respect of amount due
from a joint venture. However, the directors considers the risks
associated with amount due from a joint venture is minimal.

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK
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@I A (&)

@I EER (F)

=B R R EE ()

H 1 JEW 50 H
EAAEEEERRERE Y —BH  &AE
EERERS BV IEHREEREIHRE - R
BEBEEEBENETRENE - A&
ESHR —_E—NFER_ZT—NLF+=A
—t+—BZHAMmERFE  BRFET=
BATEHEEEER  WRAHtEKRIE
(WEEERE) ZRERELTEKX 1t
DERELEEBBES  ZEHFHE
HWAREED K At AL EIREE 2 BRI
BEEBITEEKX - i ARBETFTERI
HEEEAEE 2L ERE AT (M
21) - HUER A R#140,875,0007C (ZZ— N\
& ARBE135,323,0007T) Z EWE KRB B
ZIEERBREFRE - EBBINC TG
EAIBZAEMER  BEETRRFE
ZEERIS  AREBAREBZEMN I
REAEEREE EtEKFEEEZ
EERBITEKX -

EBFHRR T4
HREFH Y REEREEFAEERT
BRHN ELEEFRZRT WABES
ZEERBER -BE_ZE-/\FR_ZE
—NE+TZA=+—HLEFE ~EEH
RITHEFETRENE  BRAHTF IR
TTRAOMATGEETK At EEHREE
B -

RE B e R AR K EL A R UK IR R B B
REFEERR  BRIBRRZHEFH
REP e

ERRK—HABELENER ~AEEEAE

THEERR - AW EERLBHENR
—HAEEEFTRZABRRE -
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Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no unutilised
borrowing facilities of approximately (available unutilised borrowing
facilities as at 31 December 2018: RMB341 million). Details of bank
borrowings are set out in note 27.

Based on the above, the management of the Company considers
the Group does not have any significant liquidity risk and it will be
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted gross cash
flows of financial liabilities based on earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows to the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from interest rate curve at the end of each reporting
period.

‘A N

37 €@ I A (HE)

@ T REER (8)

mBELEE

REERDESRRE AKREEERE
HEEBRARNENAEBEXBHTE
RKFZREMRREEEY  WRIERS
MERDTE EREERRITEEZE
A ERETEREE -

AEBEKERTERFA/AEENRDES
KR -R-_F-NFE+_A=1t—H &
SEYWEARREDRITEERE (R=F—N
Frt-A=1t—BOARERRITEERE
HE: ARBMIBEL) - REBEZRTT
EEFIGEHNH 27 -

ER bt RARERERR/AEEL &
ERERNRBDESRER  WHENETE
EAERNARRINANPT BB -

O TRFAJIAREBITES R A AR
TAKNEEA - TRIVRBAEE TR
EXRBERZ&EFAH  UERAEZIE]
RS RELRERT

TREHIMNERAZRERE - B E
MARFBNE  FERSBRBESBER
EHRM AR SR ARFTHE o
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37 Financial instruments (continued) 37 &¢®WMIA(E)
Categories of financial instruments (continued) SR TAEER (#)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBELERE (E)
Weighted
average On demand/ Total
effective less than 3 months to Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1month  1-3 months 1 year 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
ERH RER/ FHRRE
ERAE -@AUT -Z=@A =EAZ-% -ZE8% BENUE RELE SREE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFL ARETR AREBFT ARETRT ARETR AREFTT ARBTR
31 December 2019 RZZ-NE+=A=+-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ {74 ¢BEE
Trade and other payables FEATBR 30 S EoAn JE 1 FROB — 981,370 — — — — 981,370 981,370
Amount due to a non-controlling EHE DR — &R
shareholder of subsidiaries R 7 308 — 26,142 — — — — 26,142 26,142
Bank borrowings — variable rate RITIEE — 2 BFIE 4.41-4.46 — 45618 91,507 2,730,813 — 2,867,938 2,430,000
Amount due to a joint venture EN—HAELERE — 46,833 — — — — 46,833 46,833
Lease liabilities BERE 490 10471 20,942 94,237 510,600 156,837 793,087 573323
1,064,816 66,560 185,744 3,241,413 156,837 4,715,370 4,057,668
31 December 2018 RZZ-\F+ZA=1—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ J{T4£ & BE &
Trade and other payables ENRRRE RN HIE — 761,488 — — — - 761,488 761,488
Amount due to a non-controlling FEAT I8 2 ) — B IR
shareholder of subsidiaries 53 7 7B — — — — 44,296 — 44,296 44,296
Bank borrowings — variable rate BIEE—FBRE 441-4.46 7,900 15,034 80,074 1,682,282 849,802 2,635,092 2,109,000
Amount due to a joint venture Rt —HABLENE — 13,602 — — — — 13,602 13,602
782,990 15,034 80,074 1,726,578 849,802 3,454,478 2,928,386

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments

for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes

in variable interest rates differ from those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Price risk

The Group's financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at

the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to

price risk. The management manages this exposure by maintaining

a portfolio of structured investment products with different risk

profiles. Details of the financial assets at FVTPL are set out in note

24.

“E-NFER

i) B 1) 3 528 B B X 4R 5 AR E 2 M R
fBEt R EXBITAESRAE 2 F 8

B mE

AEBEARAFHEFABRZEREER
BEMRARFEFE - At - AEEE
HERRAR - EEEREFETRERR
BREBEREEMESRERZRAR
R AFHEFABRZ EREENFBH

R RE24 o
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Financial instruments (continued) 37 £WMIAE)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments ERMIAZATEFE

As at 31 December 2019, the management of the Company RZZE-—NF+HA=+—8 FRQAE
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial BERBPERE M MER P IR EK AT
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial ENSsREERERABENREEARRE
statements approximate their fair values. As at 31 December 2018, RNFEBE RIZE-NFFTHA=+—
except as detailed in the following table, the management of the B BRTERMININ RRRERERRE
Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and EMBHRERPRBEER AT ENEREE
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated LemagnGmEALL A TEES

financial statements approximate their fair values:

31 December 2018

—E-N\F
+-A=+—8H
Carrying amount Fair value
BREE NEE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT AREFTT
Financial liabilities ctmEas
Amount due to non-controlling FE AT BT B 2 R 3EHE AR AR R K IE
shareholder of subsidiaries 44,296 42,426
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair value at AEBETHEREELESERS HRE
the end of each reporting period. The following table gives BATFERNE c TRIBRABOARTE
information about how the fair values of these financial assets are A ENATE (CERHEREME
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs RH@EALE) ER -
used).
Fair value
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s)
SREE ATER ATEEREE HESENIERANSHY
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
ZE-AFTZD | ZE\FTC
A=t-H A=t+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTTT ARBFT
Financial assets at FVTPL
BEATEGABRZEREE
1. Structured investment products 480,980 540,860 Level 3 Discounted cash flow: Future cash flows are estimated based on expected
BBEUREER return, discounted at a rate that reflects the risk of underlying investments.
EH= TRBEETE  ERNEHEREZREAERERRFERE - Bt AXRE
TE e
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38 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing 38 HBEETHELEMNEBEYR
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising TRAVNAEEREMEETDHEENEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. 28 AERSRIERGEH -BEFH
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash EXNEESEDANEAEEFER S
flow were, or future cashflows will be classified in the Group's MERPOEAREZNZRERE -
consolidated statement of cash flows from financing activities.
Amount due
to a non-
controlling
Bank Interest Lease shareholder of
borrowings payables liabilities subsidiaries Total
EAHEAR
FERBRR
RITHE BRI HESE HE “E
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARBTF T ARBTR AREFR ARBFR
At 1 January 2018 RZT-N\F—A—H 1,375,202 1,853 — 89,795 1,466,850
Dividend declared BEERKE — — — 104,145 104,145
Capitalised borrowing cost BEREMEBERE — 77,832 — — 77,832
Financing cash inflow/(outflow) REEFHREAA/ (R 733,798 (77,001) — (149,644) 507,153
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F
+=ZA=+—8H 2,109,000 2,684 — 44,296 2,155,980
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RNB B BEREESR
(refer note 2) 16358 (2EH7E2) — 666,322 — —
At 1 January 2019 — as restated RZZE-NFE-A—H
—gE5| 2,109,000 2,684 666,322 44,296 2,822,302
Dividend declared BEERKE — — — 118,426 118,426
Capitalised borrowing cost EREMEERAR — 104,101 — — 104,101
Interests on lease liabilities HEEEHNE — — 32,649 — 32,649
Financing cash inflow/(outflow) BEEBRSTA/ (L) 321,000 (103,507) (125,648) (136,580) (44,735)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+=A=+—H 2,430,000 3278 573,323 26,142 3,032,743
39 Pledge of assets 39 EEKEH

At 31 December 2019, the Group pledged certain of the Group's (i)
property, plant and equipment in the PRC of RMB3,045 million (31
December 2018: RMB2,337 million) and (ii) right-of-use in the PRC of
RMB1,724 million (31 December 2018: prepaid lease payment in the
PRC of RMB1,772 million); and property under development in the
PRC of RMB1,228 million (31 December 2018: RMB1,044 million) to
secure bank loan facilities with carrying value of approximately
RMB2,430 million (31 December 2018: RMB2,109 million)

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK

R-E—NF+-_A=1+—8 £&£EE
ERAEBRETOAARBIMSEET
(ZE—-N\FE+-A=+—B: ARW2337
BB RFEZYE - BB XS i)
BARE1 72488 (ZE—N\F+ZA
=+—H: AARB1772BE TR FEH
ZIENAEFE) (R B2 A REEE
MEBARM128BEL(ZE—N\F+=
A=+—8: AR¥1,044FETT) (LA F
BlrBEBTPYE (EALXSBEERERE
HEBARM24308E L (ZE—N\F+=
A=+—H: ARM21098 &) WRTT
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40 Related party disclosure

41

150

parties:

T-NF+-A=T-ALEE

40

ﬁﬁkiﬁ%

Except as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial RERE BB mER A DB K&
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related B DEEEATETUATHRS
(a) Transactions (@ X%
During the year, the Group had entered into the following FRN - REEETIIEEANLET
significant transactions with the following related parties. THERR S
2019 2018
—E-hEF Z—\F
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBT T ANEREFT
Nature of related parties BAEALRZHMEE
transactions
Variable lease payments expenses TRNT—BEEREZAIEHA
and management fee to a joint ENRAZRERE(ZE
venture (2018: including fixed —N\F: BEEFHEEM)
lease payments) 79,781 196,309
Interest income from amount due KE—HEBEREREBEZNE
from a joint venture WA 958 1,070
Expenses related to lease S TFRAEMBAR ZHERN
payments to a fellow subsidiary REBZRAX 146 5,938
Rental expenses and management KRB — il & A A AH S F
fee from an associate rERE 9,219 9,356
Repayment of lease liabilities to a M—HEeECXEEHEAE
joint venture (including principal (BIEAS RHNEEHD)
and interest elements) 116,135 —
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) FEEBEASFHMH
The remuneration of the executive director being the key BITESERFTEEBEAB ZFHM
management personnel, was determined by the remuneration EHRAREHME S GREEAFN

committee of the Company having regard to the performance
of the individuals and market. Details of which together with
the other four (2018: four) highest paid employees are
disclosed in note 11 above.

Retirement benefits schemes

Hong Kong

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme under
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF Scheme”). Both the
Group and the employee contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
for the MPF ordinance. No forfeited contribution was available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local governments in relevant jurisdictions. The Group is required to
contribute and recognise a specified percentage of payroll costs to
the schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligations of the Group
with respect to these schemes are to make the specified
contributions and recognise the respective retirement pay in
accordance with terms set out in the schemes and relevant
jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the above
mentioned schemes during the year amounted to approximately

RMB6.8 million (2018: RMB6.8 million).
4
s | ;X',

A

41

MEREMET - EHHEREAM
NE(ZE—N\F WmE)z2&=H
EEFHBERAWEIEE -

B 8

$EI/,\€§$ Rl ((®ESFE]D T

REMKETE - AEERE THAS%E
)\E'ﬁ FFEIHER - RIFBTESFTEEH) -
BE®" A AL LR A30,000%8 T o #E8 I
AT BIERVE A SR F S TR -
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AEBEPHEOEIHEMEHEESR
& # AR R 1 07 BUT B AE MY Bl R B IR AR KA
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RAREEB DL EIAEEBIE
ﬂ RE B IE LA B — N EERFH
7E IR0 HE AR IR R AT &I P8 AV IR AN B
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BROAARECEETL(ZE—N\F:
AREECSABETT) ©

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 019 B ZE — T — N F+_A=+—BIFE

42 Particulars of principal subsidiaries 42
At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the details of the Company's
principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(a) General information of subsidiaries

FENBATFE
R-E—AER-T—N\GF+-A=+—

B ARBZEEMBRAFELT

() HMEBLRAN-—KREH

Place/Date of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share Attributable equity
Name of company establishment and operation capital/registered capital interest of the Group Principal activities
ARMAIREFHE
Pk WRERALEH BRTRES/ HREA FEEERER ITER
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NE —E-\F ZE-NE -NE
Ample Sun Group Limited Hong Kong RMB62,050,000 RMBA62,050,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
17 August 2007
EREDERAA B AR#62,050,0007 | AEH62,0500007T 60% 0% RARR
“ERLENATLE
LEAKBEBRAF PRC US$12,000,000 US$12,000,000 65% 65%  Retailing business
Shanghai Ongoing Department Store Limited 26 July 2004
LEAXRRERAT h 12,000,000% 70 12,000000% 7T 65% 0% FEEH
ZTENELASTAR
Wingold Limited Hong Kong RMB10,000 RMB10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
20 April 2007
REERAT £k AR#10,0007 AR100007 60% 0% BERR
“ERLEMAZTE
MiEEEEER (LR ARAR PRC RMB2,683,903,967 RMB2,500,000,000 100% 100%  Property development
23 April 2012
h AR#2,683,9039677 | AR 525000000007 100% 0% NxER
1) oy
LEREREEARAR PRC RMB15,000,000 RMB15,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
31 March 2012
h AR%15,0000007 | ARH150000007T 100% 0% TEEH
“T-EZAZt-H
ABSEEEARAA PRC RMB710,090,392 RMB710,090,392 100% 100%  Retaling business
1 December 2006
# AR%7100903927 | AKH71009039271 100% 00% EEEHK
ZEERETZA-R
MERSEM BRAT PRC RMB853,238,000 RMB683,955,600 100% 100%  Retalling business
L\festyle Plaza (Suzhou) Co., Limited 1 March 2007
h ARH853,238,00070 | AKH6839956007 100% 0% TEEH
ZEEtEZA-8
NEBENE) BRAF PRC US$45,000,000 US$45,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
9 October 1993
h 45,000,000% 7T 45,000,000 100% 0% TEEH
“WA=E+ANA

a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC.

* wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
at the end of both reporting periods.

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK
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42 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued)

152

(a)

(b)

42 FEWEATFHE (E)

General information of subsidiaries (continued) (a) MEARN—RER(F)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, FFRINEEERAREEZER
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or SEEXBENEEZRRANMNER
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries A BEERA  REAMHELRE
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of MeEYHFBEBLER -
excessive length.
Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) HEERFERERNIZENES
material non-controlling interests ARFE
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRINTHEBEERFEREROA
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling SEE2EMBARINFE
interests:
Proportion of ownership interest
Name of Place of incorporation/and and voting rights held by (Loss)/profit allocated to Accumulated
company principal place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FERBECEARR DB FERER
WEAREE HRUBERTIELELY SRR 0 (B518), /&7 R FERES
As at As at
2019 2018 2019 2018 31.12.2019 31.12.2018
® IS
—E-hE —T-N\F
ZEB-NF ZE-N\E —B-NE —Z-N\F |+=ZA=+-B |tZA=t—H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT ARBT T ARBTT
Wingold Limited  Hong Kong 40% 40% (210,798) 122,300 906,844 1,120,712
e e
Shanghai The PRC 35% 35% 99,321 98,182 153,716 152,340
Ongoing
EEAK $
Ample Sun Hong Kong 40% 40% 13,375 9,326 210,591 214,627
Group
BREE e
(98,102) 229,808 1,271,151 1,487,679

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

.A R N

ERAAEERAEASFERER
MEBARZHEERBEIIAT -
NTEIZHBERMEREER
ARIAEERTH SR
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42 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 42
(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has

TEMBEREFHE (&)
A B AR R M 2

(b)

material non-controlling interests (continued) NEIWFE (E)
(i) Wingold Limited (i) #E
2019 2018
—E-NF —N\F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFTT
Current assets MEEE 135,446 144,438
Non-current assets IERBEE 2,228,722 2,800,950
Current liabilities nBEE 36,480 37,648
Non-current liabilities JEREEE 60,578 105,959
Equity attributable to owners ~ RNATIHE A AEGEZ
of the Company 1,360,266 1,681,069
Non-controlling interests IR RE 906,844 1,120,712
Income LN — 306,255
Expenses Bz 526,996 505
(Loss)/profit and total AEE (BB, aMEE2mE
comprehensive (expense)/ (AX) W=
income for the year (526,996) 305,750
(Loss)/profit and total RARHEA AR (E18),/
comprehensive (expense)/ wmAREE (X)W
income attributable to R
owners of the Company (316,198) 183,450
(Loss)/profit and total SEYRRRAEZS (R (F518) %7
comprehensive (expense)/ kEE(RX) WataE
income attributable to the
non-controlling interests (210,798) 122,300
(Loss)/profit and total AEFE (BB wHkEE
comprehensive (expense)/ (AX) Matas
income for the year (526,996) 305,750
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from 482 & &) PE £ KR €
operating activities S ORH) F 5 955 (5,019)
Net cash inflow from investing & & /EBIFTE AR EHEA
activities ikl 45,384 76,744
Net cash outflow from REEBELENRS D
financing activities EER (45,291) (114,104)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) WERACrt) #58 1,048 (42,379)

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK
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42 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 42 FEMNBEATFE (E)
(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) HEERFERERNIZENES
material non-controlling interests (continued) AT FE ()
(i)  Shanghai Ongoing (i) /XA
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARBETF T
Current assets BB E 984,288 1,029,815
Non-current assets FERBEE 567,815 33,359
Current liabilities nBEE 682,868 627,917
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 430,046 —
Equity attributable to owners AR FHEB AEIG#ER
of the Company 285,473 282,917
Non-controlling interests JEVER 153,716 152,340
Income WA 977,240 923,046
Expenses 353 693,466 642,527
Profit and total comprehensive ZANFE & F| & 2 =B 5
income for the year 283,774 280,519
Profit and total comprehensive RAFI#EA A E N R 2 H
income attributable to W s 4858
owners of the Company 184,453 182,337
Profit and total comprehensive 312 B %5 FE A8 1) &2 2 H
income attributable to the W s 4858
non-controlling interests 99,321 98,182
Profit and total comprehensive 784 2 i 1) & 2 [ i 4= 42 58
income for the year 283,774 280,519
Net cash inflow from KR FTEEMIRERA
operating activities FEE 296,022 207,266
Net cash inflow from investing & & & BIFTE £ MR A
activities FEE 24,837 20,592
Net cash outflow from REBEEBFEEANRESRD
financing activities FRE (347,855) (274,817)
Net cash outflow B m L FE (26,996) (46,959)

154

.A N

Lifestyle China Group Limited Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %3 & 81 %% 3R 3% K} &% (&)
for the year ended 31 December 019 B ZE — T — N F+_A=+—BIFE

42 Particulars of principal subsidiaries (continued) 42 FEMWE R AFE (&)
(b) Details of a non-wholly owned subsidiary that has (b) HEEERFERERNIZENWS
material non-controlling interests (continued) NEIWFE (E)
(i) Ample Sun (i) # R
2019 2018
—B-AF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBFT
Current assets MEEE 12,062 13,535
Non-current assets EREEE 515,011 533,274
Current liabilities mEAE 597 10,241
Equity attributable to owners ~ ANAFHE B A=
of the Company 315,886 321,941
Non-controlling interests IR IE = 210,591 214,627
Income WA 35,662 34,129
Expenses 2 2,223 10,813
Profit and total comprehensive 2N [& )& F| &2 2 [ U & 48 58
income for the year 33,439 23,316
Profit and total comprehensive ZANAR#EA A aMN K2
income attributable to e 4B 58
owners of the Company 20,064 13,990
Profit and total comprehensive JFZ % 2 FE (5 & F 2 2 H
income attributable to the e 4B 58
non-controlling interests 13,375 9,326
Profit and total comprehensive 2N [& & F| 2 2 [ U & 42 58
income for the year 33,439 23,316
Net cash outflow from K EBEEME SR
operating activities FRE (41,077) (659)
Net cash inflow from investing & & /EEBFTEEMNBELRA
activities JREE 53,900 13,475
Net cash outflow from BB EBEEMBE SR
financing activities FRE (12,800) (12,800)
Net cash outflow &M FEE 23 16

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK
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43 Statement of financial position and reserves of 43 FAATRUBRRKRRFEE
the Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the RIERR - AARPBARRKERBIE:
Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFTT
Non-current asset EMBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N IEENGIE 6,907,364 6,903,359
Amounts due from a subsidiary (note a) JE U — S B B A R B
(Mtzta) 248,975 78,000
7,156,339 6,981,359
Current assets mBEE
Other receivables H b e U FRE 204 215
Amounts due from a subsidiary (note b) FE U — I P B A Rk IE
(KT &Eb) 21,261 196,312
Cash and cash equivalents B NREEEY 4,670 8,746
26,135 205,273
Current liabilities mEBEaE
Other payables Hfth & A5 5RIE 3,184 12,356
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note c) B /B A B ZRIE
(KizEc) 369,752 362,142
Tax payable FE TR 716 743
373,652 375,241
Net current liabilities mEBERE (347,517) (169,968)
6,808,822 6,811,391
Capital and reserves BEARRFEHE
Share capital &% 7 6,291 6,291
Reserves (note d) w1 (KisEd) 6,802,531 6,805,100
6,808,822 6,811,391
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43 Statement of financial position and reserves of
the Company (continued)

Movement of the equity of the Company is as follows:

ARFESEEIT

43 AR FMBRRERREE (&)

Share Merger Retained
premium reserve profits Total
IR 1D E EOtEEE R & A st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AR®BTRT ARETT ARETET
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—H—H 6,940,091 480 270,373 7,210,944
Loss and total AEFEBBEE2EXE
comprehensive expense FE
for the year — — (8,885) (8,885)
Repurchase of shares o] BER% 19 (396,959) — — (396,959)
At 31 December 2018 RZZT—N\F+=A
=+—H 6,543,132 480 261,488 6,805,100
Loss and total REEEEREZEZH
comprehensive expense e
for the year — — (2,569) (2,569)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+=-—A=+—H 6,543,132 480 258,919 6,802,531
Notes: P 5

(a) The amounts due from a subsidiary included amount of RMB78,000,000
(2018: RMB78,000,000) and RMB170,975,000 (2018: nil), which were
unsecured, carried fixed interest of 4.5% and 4.3% per annum, and
repayable in March 2021 and December 2022 respectively.

(b) The amount due from a subsidiary was unsecured, interest free (2018:
carried fixed interest of 4.30% per annum) and repayable within twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

(c) The amounts due to subsidiaries were unsecured, interest free, and

repayable on demand.
(d) The Company's reserves available for distribution as at 31 December 2019

consisted of share premium, merger reserve and retained profits of
RMB6,802,531,000 (2018: RMB6,805,100,000).

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK
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44
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Subsequent events

Following the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“the COVID-19
outbreak) in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control
measures have been and continued to be implemented across the
country, including extension of the Chinese New Year holiday
nationwide, postponement of work resumption after the Chinese
New Year holiday in some regions, certain level of restrictions and
controls over the travelling of people and traffic arrangements,
quarantine of certain residents, heightening of hygiene and
epidemic prevention requirements in factories and offices and
encouraged social distancing.

People were discouraged from going out to prevent the spread of
the disease. Both Shanghai Jiuguang and Suzhou Jiuguang
shortened their opening hours. This, coupled with the lower footfall
caused by the pandemic outbreak, adversely affect business at the
two department stores at the beginning of February 2020. As
operator of department stores in China, the Group's revenue, cash
flows and profit from the operation are expected to decrease as
compared to the same period in 2019 due to the impact from the
COVID-19 outbreak.

At this point in time, the Group cannot determine the duration of
the COVID-19 outbreak and therefore, the Group is not yet able to
quantify the full financial impact. In the case of a prolonged
coronavirus crisis, there may be a larger effect on the Group's 2020
financial results. The management of the Group will pay close
attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and
perform further assessment of its financial impact.

The COVID-19 outbreak is a non-adjusting event after the financial
year end and does not result in any adjustments to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Five-Year Group Financial Summary

T FEEEERE

Results

For the year ended 31 December

HE+_A=T—HILFE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“B-NF ZE-N\F ZE—tF ZE-RF “E-hHF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFI AREFL AREFL AREFI
Revenue WA 1,204,057 1,183,752 1,222,785 1,132,287 1123961
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners AREERE AEE
of the Company (B518)/ %7 (83,516) 338,074 269,590 278,038 248,964
(Loss)/earnings per share (RMB) FR(EE)/BI(ARE)
— Basic —HK (0.057) 0222 0.168 0173 0.155
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
At 31 December R+—-—A=+—H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-NF “E-N\E “E—tF ZE-RF —T-RE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFL AREFL AREFL AREFL
Total assets BELE 14,424,611 13,744,799 13,051,300 12,344,395 11,720,331
Total liabilities BlEEE 4,174,702 3,194,851 2,630,052 2,289,094 8,980,068
Net assets BEFE 10,249,909 10,549,948 10,421,248 10,055,301 2,740,263
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,271,151 1,487,679 1,354,395 1,253,909 1,118,399
Net assets attributable to owners ARREE NERL
of the Company BEFE 8,978,758 9,062,269 9,066,853 8,801,392 1,621,864
Net assets per share (RMB) FREEFE(ARY) 7.00 7.20 6.50 627 171
Net assets per share attributable to FRAHE AEGER
owners of the Company (RMB) EEFE(ARE) 6.13 6.19 5.66 549 101
Number of shares issued BETRHHE 1,464,448500 | 1464448500 1602586500  1,602,586,500  1,602,586,500

HRPEKERRLE —E-FFHK
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Particulars of Major Property

ETEMEFR

Property under development BRPYE
Attributable
Gross Site Nature of  interestto  Category Stage of Expected
floor area area property  the Group of lease completion completion Lot number
KEH
AREER GRER 0 PEME EAEE  HEEERN 0 THRRR 0 BRRI 0 RBGR
sq.m. sq.m.
A Fhk
Property under development, 348,337 50,154 Commercial 100% Medium Under 2021 2012-33
33Qiy, 312 Jiefang, [GES ] development
Daning Road, BRH

Jing'an District,

Shanghai, PRC
PEEETHRREAEHE

32EYBEZERPNE
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Llfest le China Group Limited
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Lifestyle China Group Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
20/F., East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

NEFEREARAF
(RBISBLS MMM BRAT)
BB IREE B 555%
RARL201E

Tel E5E: (852) 2833 8338

Fax{EE&: (852) 2838 2030

Email E#B: info@lifestylechina.com.hk
www.lifestylechina.com.hk
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